
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Page 1 of 2

Scrutiny Board
15 December 2015

Time 6.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny

Venue Committee Room 3 - Civic Centre, St Peter's Square, Wolverhampton WV1 1SH

Membership
Chair Cllr Stephen Simkins (Lab)
Vice-chair Cllr Barry Findlay (Con)

Labour Conservative

Cllr Ian Angus
Cllr Philip Bateman
Cllr Alan Bolshaw
Cllr Paula Brookfield
Cllr Craig Collingswood
Cllr Dr Michael Hardacre
Cllr Lorna McGregor
Cllr Peter O'Neill
Cllr Rita Potter
Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman

Cllr Arun Photay

Quorum for this meeting is four Councillors.

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the democratic support team:

Contact Abby Vella
Tel/Email 01902 553219 or abigail.vella@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Address Democratic Support, Civic Centre, 2nd floor, St Peter’s Square,

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:

Website http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/ 
Email democratic.support@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Tel 01902 555043

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording, and use of social media in meetings, 
copies of which are displayed in the meeting room.

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public.

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.support@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Page 2 of 2

Agenda
Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Declarations of interest 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting (3 November 2015) (Pages 3 - 8)
[To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record.]

4 Matters arising 
[To consider any matters arising in the minutes.]

DISCUSSION ITEMS

5 Draft Budget 2016/17 (Pages 9 - 68)
[To review the comments of each Scrutiny Panel and provide further feedback to 
Cabinet.]

6 Corporate Performance Report - Quarter Two 2015/16 (Pages 69 - 112)
[To review performance of the corporate performance indicators for quarter two 
2015/16.]

7 Information Governance Performance Report - Quarter 2 2015/16 (Pages 113 - 
118)
[To review and comment on the Quarter Two performance for Information 
Governance.]

8 Quarter 2 Corporate, Social Care and Public Health Complaints Report (Pages 
119 - 146)
[To review complaints management and performance for the period of 1 July 2015 to 
30 September 2015.]

9 Work Programme (Pages 147 - 158)
[To consider the Board’s work programme for future meetings.]



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes
Page 1 of 5

Scrutiny Board
Minutes - 3 November 2015

Attendance

Members of the Scrutiny Board

Cllr Ian Angus
Cllr Philip Bateman
Cllr Alan Bolshaw
Cllr Paula Brookfield
Cllr Craig Collingswood
Cllr Barry Findlay (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Dr Michael Hardacre
Cllr Peter O'Neill
Cllr Arun Photay
Cllr Rita Potter
Cllr Stephen Simkins (Chair)
Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman

Employees
Adam Hadley Group Manager - Democracy
Keith Ireland Managing Director
Abby Vella Graduate Management Trainee
Mark Perlic Principle Welfare Rights Officer

Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

1 Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Elias Mattu, Kevin O’Keefe, Mark 
Taylor and Tony Ivko.

2 Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

3 Minutes of the previous meeting (8 September 2015)
Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2015 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair.

4 Matters arising
There were no matters arising.



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes
Page 2 of 5

5 Tracking and Monitoring of the Welfare Reform - Unclaimed Benefits Scrutiny 
Review
Mark Perlic, Principle Welfare Rights Officer gave an update on progress of the 
implementation of recommendations resulting from the Welfare Reform – Unclaimed 
Benefits scrutiny review which had been undertaken in 2014-15. He reported that a 
working group had identified problems posed by welfare reform for residents, local 
organisations, businesses and the City of Wolverhampton Council. 

The Principle Welfare Rights Officer highlighted that a number of issues were 
identified in relation to Universal Credit, concerning the communication of correct 
information to residents and housing providers.  He reported that the Welfare Rights 
Service provided training for a range of local organisations including Age UK, 
Citizens Advice Bureau and YMCA. To date, these had been attended by 681 
people.

The Principle Welfare Rights Officer also advised that the Specialist Support Team 
and Communications Team were working in partnership to provide online information 
and signposting and to anticipate the implications of providing an online directory.  
He advised that this directory had two phases.  The first was identifying advice-giving 
organisations in the City.  The second was identifying what assistance these could 
provide following the introduction of Universal Credit.

The Board thanked the Principle Welfare Rights Officer for his presentation of the 
report and Cllr Potter for chairing the review.

A discussion took place between Councillors about the directory which highlighted 
the following:

 The full implementation of the online directory would be a difficult process as it 
required hard to reach groups, such as those with a disability or pensioners, to 
have access to the internet.

 It would be an important resource for residents who had been refused or lost 
benefits or who were appealing against a decision.

 There was uncertainty about its impact on other services, the budget and 
allocating resources.

 The potential impact of this change on food banks should payments be 
missed.

 The referral of residents to credit unions and responsible lenders would be 
inaccessible to those who were not on the electoral register.

The Principle Welfare Rights Officer advised that the directory was almost in a 
position to be launched ready for the arrival of Universal Credit in Wolverhampton 
during early February 2016 and could be used to signpost both individuals and local 
organisations to the appropriate help. He was aware of the issue of appeals and 
dispute cases but reported that work was being done to target hard to reach groups. 
He referred to work being undertaken by a body of law students at the University in 
the area of disability benefits, which resulted in an additional £450,000 in benefits 
being granted to those with disabilities.
 
Cllr Batemen enquired about the figures in 3.4 of the report, which stated that 36% of 
residents in Wolverhampton had no internet access. In response to a question from 



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes
Page 3 of 5

Cllr Potter, the Principle Welfare Rights Officer responded that there had been ward 
by ward mapping on this which he agreed to circulate.

The Managing Director reported that the board for Welfare Reform - Unclaimed 
Benefits had been working on this and had been liaising with the customer service 
team.  He advised that the overall strategy aimed to increase the number of people 
using the web, to release telephones and have employees with the right expertise 
available to visit residents from hard to reach groups.  He commented that the 
Council had adopted a ‘digital by design’ approach rather than ‘digital by default’, 
however, communities, families and the voluntary sector needed to be utilised to 
support people without access to the internet.

Councillors discussed recommendation 8 regarding Job Seekers Allowance 
sanctions and it was agreed that the statistics were concerning and an equality 
analysis of those who had sanctions applied to them should be undertaken. 

In response to a question from Cllr Potter, the Principle Welfare Rights Officer 
explained that in relation to people directly paying rent – this was already the case for 
the private sector and was now being extended to the social housing sector. 

The Chair raised a concern about the monthly arrears.  He advised that as this policy 
develops, accessibility to computers should be increased through possible liaison 
with schools. 

Resolved:
1. That progress made to implement recommendations from the Review of 

Welfare Reform – Unclaimed Benefits which concluded in January 2015 was 
noted.

2. That the board receive an update of the Tracking and Monitoring of the 
Welfare Reform – Unclaimed Benefits Scrutiny Review in six months’ time.

3. That the Group Manager – Democracy circulate a ward by ward break down 
of accessibility to computers in Wolverhampton.

6 Information Governance Performance Report - Quarter One 2015/16
Adam Hadley, Group Manager – Democracy, presented the quarterly one 
Information Governance Performance report. 

The Group Manager – Democracy, reported that in the absence of local statistics for 
the cost of processing Information Governance (IG) requests, there was national 
base-lining data. He referred to paragraph 3.3 of the report which outlined these 
costs.

In reference to paragraph 3.4, the Group Manager – Democracy, advised that there 
was currently a review being undertaken about mandatory training for protecting 
information.

Cllr O’Neill enquired about the time spent by local authorities processing requests for 
information by the press and media. 



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes
Page 4 of 5

The Group Manager – Democracy advised that the government was currently 
undertaking a review of freedom of information which he would circulate once 
published.

A discussion took place between the Councillors and the Managing Director about 
the identity of those requesting information.  They recognised that processing these 
requests used a lot of resources and the costly exercise of processing freedom of 
information requests.

Resolved:
That the Group Manager – Democracy circulate results of the national review 
of freedom of information once published.

7 Work programme
The Group Manager - Democracy presented the work programme.  He reported that 
the Chairs of the Review Panels were due to meet in November to discuss their 
work.  He also commented that scrutiny of budget would take place in the next round 
of meetings.

It was agreed that the Tracking and Monitoring of the Welfare Reform – Employability 
and Skills report be moved to the 12 January 2016 meeting of Scrutiny Board.

The Chair reported that a meeting had been set up for the Chairs and Vice Chairs to 
discuss the development of the scrutiny function.  The Chair invited feedback from 
Councillors about improving the scrutiny function. 

Cllr Hardacre reported that following correspondence with various organisations 
during a scrutiny review, it appeared as though that obtaining Disclosure and Barring 
Service (DBS) clearance was left to the volunteers.
It was agreed that this would be investigated further.

The Group Manager – Democracy requested that Specific Reserves Working Group 
be added to the Confident Capable Council work programme. 

Cllr Brookfield enquired about additional panel and board meetings which were not 
scheduled in the work programme at the beginning of each municipal year.  She 
commented that scheduled meetings throughout the year would be better than 
arranging additional ones.

The Chair advised that task and finish groups were also justified if there was a major 
issue to be worked on.  It was agreed that this would be looked into further.

Resolved:
1. That subject to the following amendments, the work programme be agreed:
a. Tracking and Monitoring of the Welfare Reform – Unclaimed Benefits 

Scrutiny Review be moved to the 12 January 2016 Scrutiny Board 
meeting.

b. Specific Reserves Working Group be added to the Confident Capable 
Council work programme.



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes
Page 5 of 5

2. That the Group Manager – Democracy look into additional scrutiny meetings 
being included in the schedule of meetings.

3. That the process for volunteers obtaining DBS checks be investigated.





This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 Agenda Item No:  5 

 

Scrutiny Board 
15 December 2015 
 

  
Report title Draft Budget 2016/17  
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Councillor Roger Lawrence 
Leader of the Council 
 
Councillor Andrew Johnson 
Resources 

Wards affected All 

Accountable director Keith Ireland, Managing Director 

Originating service Strategic Finance 

Accountable employee(s) Mark Taylor 

Tel 

Email 

Director of Finance 

01902 55(6609) 

mark.taylor@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Strategic Executive Board 

Children, Young People and Families 

Scrutiny Panel 

Adults and safer City Scrutiny Panel 

Health Scrutiny Panel 

Vibrant and Sustainable City Scrutiny 

Panel 

Stronger City Economy Scrutiny Panel 

Confident and Capable Council Scrutiny 

Panel 

Audit Committee 

 

6 October 2015 

25 November 2015 

 

24 November 2015 

26 November 2015 

3 December 2015 

 

1 December 2015 

2 December 2015 

 

14 December 2015 

 

 

Recommendation(s) for action or decision: 

 

The Scrutiny Board is recommended to: 

 

1. Review the comments of each Scrutiny Panel and provide further feedback to Cabinet on 

the Draft Budget 2016/17. 
 

 

mailto:mark.taylor@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 2 of 4 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to seek Scrutiny Board’s feedback on the Draft Budget 

2016/17 that was approved as the basis of consultation by Cabinet on 21 October 2015. 

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 At its meeting on 21 October 2015, Cabinet considered a Draft Budget 2016/17 as the 

basis of budget consultation and scrutiny over forthcoming months. 

 

2.2 The Cabinet report identified that due to the uncertain financial future, a full update of the 

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2016/17 – 2018/19 would only be conducted 

once the Spending Review and the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 

had been announced on 25 November and mid-December 2015 respectively.  

 

2.3 The Cabinet report recommended that Savings Proposals amounting to £14.1 million and 

£7.1 million of Base Budget Revisions in 2016/17 proceed to the formal consultation and 

scrutiny stages of the budget process.   

 

2.4 The Draft Budget 2016/17 has been considered by all scrutiny panels during November 

and December.  The feedback from those meetings is included in Appendix A.  This 

feedback along with further comments received at Scrutiny Board on 15 December will 

be sent as a formal response to Cabinet on 13 January 2016.   

 

2.5 If there are substantial changes or recommendations of the Scrutiny Board are not 

accepted, then the Scrutiny Board will consider the budget again in January 2016, 

following an update to Cabinet on the Local Government finance settlement, which is 

scheduled for 13 January 2016.   

 

2.6 If there are no changes to the savings proposals considered by Scrutiny, the outcome of 

this Board meeting will be incorporated into the final Cabinet budget report, scheduled for 

February 2016, ahead of Full Council considering the budget in March 2016. 

 

2.7 In order to limit the volume of paper used as part of the budget reporting process, the 

Cabinet report has not been appended to this covering report.  Board members are 

instead requested to bring their copy of the 2016/17 Draft Budget report, which was 

circulated with the 21 October 2015 Cabinet agenda.  Detail of all the Council’s individual 

savings proposals, including the latest to be considered by Cabinet on 21 October 2015, 

can be found on the council’s website at: 

http://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/budgetsavings 

 

3.0 Budget Proposals 

 

3.1 All comments from Scrutiny Panels are included at Appendix A.  The Board is requested 

to review the comments and further scrutinise the proposals for submission to Cabinet. 

 

http://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/budgetsavings


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 3 of 4 

 

3.2 In addition to comment on investment in services and savings proposals, the Board may 

also request additional information or clarification.  Any such requests will be noted 

separately, either for consideration by the Board or a Scrutiny Panel at a future date, or 

for information to be forwarded to the Panel members concerned. 

 

4.0 Financial implications 

 

4.1  The financial implications are discussed in the body of the report, and in the report to 

 Cabinet.  Should any of these proposals and options not be delivered, the projected 

budget deficit will increase by an equivalent sum and alternative savings will have to be 

identified.  

 

[MH/08122015/V]. 

 

5.0 Legal implications 

 

5.1  Legal implications are discussed in the report to Cabinet. 

 

 [TS/04122015/S] 

 

6.0 Equalities implications 

 
6.1  Under the Equality Act 2010, the Council has a statutory duty to pay due regard to the 

 impact of how it carries out its business on different groups of people.  This is designed 
 to help the council identify the particular needs of different groups and reduce the 
 likelihood of discrimination.  An equality analysis screening has been conducted on each 
 proposal, and fuller equality analysis will be conducted where appropriate.  Further 
 equalities implications are discussed in the report to Cabinet. 

 

7.0 Environmental implications 

 

7.1  Environmental implications will be addressed on a case by case basis as part of 

individual savings proposals. 

 

8.0 Human resources implications 

 

8.1  Human resource implications are discussed in the report to Cabinet.  

 

9.0 Schedule of background papers 

 

9.1  Cabinet, 21 October 2015 Draft Budget 2016/17 

 

 Children,Young People and Families Scrutiny Panel 

 Adults and safer City Scrutiny Panel 

 Health Scrutiny Panel 

 Vibrant and Sustainable City Scrutiny Panel 

 Stronger City Economy Scrutiny Panel 

25 November 2015 

24 November 2015 

26 November 2015 

3 December 2015 

1 December 2015 



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 Confident and Capable Council Scrutiny Panel 

 Audit Committee 

2 December 2015 

14 December 2015 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

1
 

 A
d

u
lt

s
 a

n
d

 S
a

fe
r 

C
it

y
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

2
4
.1

1
.1

5
 

 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

R
e
s

h
a
p

in
g

 o
f 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

(F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
il

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 ‘

B
e
tt

e
r 

C
a
re

 T
e
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d

 S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
t 

H
o

m
e
’ 

re
p

o
rt

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
o

n
 2

2
 J

u
ly

 a
n

d
 

1
1

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

) 
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
e

 p
ri
o

r 
a
p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

re
a

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 o

ff
e

r,
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e
d

 r
e
a

b
le

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

e
le

c
a

re
, 

to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
tl
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 h
o

m
e

s
. 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
e

 p
ri
o

r 
a
p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
 f

o
rm

a
l 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 d
e

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t 

M
e

rr
y
h

ill
 H

o
u

s
e

 a
n
d

 N
e

ls
o
n

 M
a
n

d
e

la
 H

o
u

s
e

 a
n

d
 

tr
a
n

s
fe

r 
to

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
m

a
rk

e
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
e

 p
ri
o

r 
a
p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
 f

o
rm

a
l 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 d
e

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t 

W
o
d
e
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 C

e
n

tr
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
-p

ro
v
id

e
 h

ig
h

 

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
c
y
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 i
n

 t
h
e

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
m

a
rk

e
t 

th
ro

u
g
h

 a
 

p
e

rs
o
n
a

lis
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h
. 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
e

 p
ri
o

r 
a
p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
 p

u
rs

u
it
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
x
te

rn
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 r

e
a

b
le

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 

P
e

o
p

le
 

A
d

u
lt
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

r 
C

it
y
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 
h
a

s
 

c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

in
 d

e
p

th
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
‘B

e
tt
e

r 
C

a
re

 

T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
 a

n
d

 S
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n

in
g
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

t 

H
o
m

e
’ 
o

n
 1

4
 J

u
ly

 a
n

d
 1

0
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

a
s
 p

re
-

d
e

c
is

io
n

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 i
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 t

h
e

 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

 A
d

u
lt
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

r 
C

it
y
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 
w

ill
 

m
a

in
ta

in
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
s
h

a
p

in
g
 o

f 
o

ld
e

r 
p
e
o
p

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

2
 

 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
a

 s
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 
d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 r
e
a

b
le

m
e
n

t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

R
e
s

tr
u

c
tu

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

  
P

e
o

p
le

 

T
h
e

 A
S

C
 P

a
n

e
l 
h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

. 
 T

h
e

 P
a
n
e

l 
fe

lt
 s

tr
o
n

g
ly

 a
n

d
 w

e
re

 

in
 t

o
ta

l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 p

re
-d

e
c
is

io
n

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
. 

S
h

e
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
n
e

l 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 2
6

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

6
 a

n
d
 s

u
g
g
e

s
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

if
 t
h

is
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 
ti
m

e
ly

 t
h
a

t 
a

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

d
. 

M
o

v
e

 W
a

rs
to

n
e
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 B

a
s

e
  

(c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l)
 

 W
a
rs

to
n

e
s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 a

n
 o

ff
ic

e
 b

a
s
e
 f

o
r 

a
n
 

in
te

rn
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

th
e

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 C

a
re

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
T

e
a
m

, 
a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 u
s
e
d

 b
y
 s

ix
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 e
x
p

lo
re

d
 o

th
e

r 
o
p

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 

b
u

ild
in

g
 b

u
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 u

n
a
b

le
 t
o

 f
in

d
 a

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 

o
p

ti
o
n

. 

T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 t
o

 r
e
lo

c
a

te
 t
h

e
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
T

e
a
m

 a
n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 g

ro
u
p

s
 t
o

 

re
lo

c
a

te
 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 v

e
n

u
e

s
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 

T
h
e

 P
a

n
e

l 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h
a

t 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 i
n

to
 A

c
a
d

e
m

ie
s
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
a

ll 

fu
lf
ill

in
g
 t

h
e

 ‘
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 O

ff
e

r’
 a

n
d

 s
h

e
 a

s
k
e

d
 

th
a

t 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 c
h
e

c
k
in

g
 j
u

s
t 

o
n
e

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
if
 a

ll 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

h
e

c
k
e

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 O

ff
e

r 
is

 b
e

in
g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

T
h
e

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 h

e
 w

o
u

ld
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 

th
e

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e

 P
a

n
e

l 
s
o

u
g
h

t 
a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 s
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b
e

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 a
s
 a

 d
ir
e

c
t 

re
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

is
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
 T

h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
a
d

v
is

e
d

 t
h
a

t 

v
e

ry
 f

e
w

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

e
re

 p
re

s
e

n
ti
n

g
 a

t 
W

a
rs

to
n
e

s
 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

3
 

 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 s
p

e
n

t 

a
c
tu

a
lly

 a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

im
p

a
ir
e

d
. 
T

h
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
a
g
re

e
d

 t
o

 t
a

k
e
 

th
is

 i
s
s
u
e

 a
w

a
y
 a

n
d

 g
iv

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 

to
 i
t.

 U
n

is
o

n
 a

tt
e
n

d
s
 s

ix
 w

e
e

k
ly

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n

g
e

o
v
e

r 
o
f 

S
W

 r
o
le

s
 t
o

 

m
o

re
 g

e
n

e
ri
c
 r

o
le

s
. 

A
S

C
 t
o

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
d

e
ta

il 
a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 u

s
e

r 

g
ro

u
p

s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
e

y
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

m
e
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
e

. 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

[N
O

T
 P

R
O

T
E

C
T

IV
E

L
Y

 M
A

R
K

E
D

] 
  

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B
 

  
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

4
 

 A
d

u
lt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

E
a

rl
y
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

e
x

is
ti

n
g

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
–
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s

 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

a
re

 

P
a

c
k
a

g
e
s

 

 E
a

rl
y
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
(0

0
7
4

) 
-L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 C
a

re
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t-

C
a
re

 

P
a

c
k
a

g
e

s
. 

T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

ill
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 i
n
 c

a
re

 

p
a

c
k
a

g
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

is
a
b

ili
ty

 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 C
a

re
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t.
 T

h
is

 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

: 

- 
a

 r
o
b

u
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
h

ig
h

 c
o

s
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
u

rs
in

g
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n

ts
, 
b

o
th

 i
n

 

a
n

d
 o

u
t 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

- 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 u

s
e

 o
f 

a
s
s
is

ti
v
e

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
 

- 
p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
e

 

- 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

- 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

  

P
e

o
p

le
 

T
h
e

 P
a

n
e

l 
h

a
d
 c

o
n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 

th
ro

u
g
h

 a
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 

u
s
e

 o
f 

a
s
s
is

ti
v
e

 t
e

c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
, 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e

, 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 a
n

d
 t
a

rg
e

te
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
. 

 

T
h
e

 P
a

n
e

l 
s
o

u
g
h

t 
a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
c
a

re
 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b
e

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
t 
w

a
s
 c

la
ri
fi
e
d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

 

a
s
 o

p
p

o
s
e
d

 t
o

 a
c
tu

a
l 
c
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l.
  

 T
h
e

 P
a

n
e

l 
s
o

u
g
h

t 
a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 t
h

a
t 

fr
ie

n
d

s
h

ip
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b
e

 d
is

ru
p

te
d

 i
n
 m

o
v
e

s
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 a
d
v
is

e
d

 
th

a
t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

o
f 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

s
o
m

e
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 c
o

u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 m

o
v
e

d
 

a
t 

a
ll 

b
u

t 
th

a
t 
a

ll 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

n
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
b

a
s
is

 t
o

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
e
a

c
h

 p
e

rs
o
n

. 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

[N
O

T
 P

R
O

T
E

C
T

IV
E

L
Y

 M
A

R
K

E
D

] 
  

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B
 

  
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

5
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 r

e
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

th
e

 I
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
L

iv
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

 R
e
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

2
9
,0

0
0

 s
a

v
in

g
 a

s
 t

h
e

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 r
e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 r

e
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

In
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
L

iv
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 R
a

c
e

c
o

u
rs

e
 

R
o
a

d
 I
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 

N
o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
 o

f 
o

n
e
 o

ff
 g

ra
n

ts
 f

o
r 

A
d

u
lt

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 b

e
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
t 

is
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e

 n
e
t 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
6
/1

7
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
im

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

P
e

o
p

le
 

N
o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

          



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

[N
O

T
 P

R
O

T
E

C
T

IV
E

L
Y

 M
A

R
K

E
D

] 
  

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B
 

  
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

6
 

 P
u

b
li
c

 H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll

b
e
in

g
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
u

ti
li
s

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

P
u

b
li
c
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 -
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
, 

R
e
s

il
ie

n
c
e

, 
H

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

S
c

h
o

o
ls

 

 It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

te
a
m

, 
th

e
 R

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 t
e
a

m
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
e

a
m

 a
re

 f
u

lly
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
d
 (

b
o

th
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 a

n
d

 r
u
n
n

in
g
 c

o
s
ts

) 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 

N
o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 
 

 

  



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

7
 

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

G
ro

w
th

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
re

s
s

u
re

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

A
d

u
lt

s
 &

 S
a

fe
r 

C
it

y
 

 

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
L

iv
in

g
 W

a
g
e

 (
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

5
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
) 

     

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

y
/D

e
m

a
n
d

/T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 

    

T
o

ta
l 

A
d

u
lt

s
 &

 S
a

fe
r 

C
it

y
 

P
a

n
e

l 
w

a
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 f

ig
u

re
s
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

re
p

o
rt

 m
a

y
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e
v
is

e
d

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 C
h

a
n

c
e

llo
rs

 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 2

5
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0
1

5
. 

    

  
 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

8
 

 H
e
a

lt
h

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 P

a
n

e
l 

2
.1

2
.1

5
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

U
s
e

 o
f 

P
u

b
li
c

 H
e

a
lt

h
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s
 w

it
h

 p
o

s
it

iv
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

p
u

b
li
c

 h
e

a
lt

h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

 W
h
ils

t 
e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 s

tr
ic

t 
a
d

h
e

re
n

c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

u
le

s
 

fo
r 

s
p
e
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 g
ra

n
t,

 t
h

is
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
s
e

e
k
s
 t

o
 u

ti
lis

e
 r

in
g

-f
e
n

c
e

d
 p

u
b

lic
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 m
o
n

ie
s
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 

re
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
/d

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 

 T
h
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 i
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

th
a

t 
m

a
k
e

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 h
e
a

lt
h

 

in
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

. 
 

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 t

h
o

s
e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
e

 b
ig

g
e

s
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 h
e

a
lt
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d
/o

r 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n

 t
h
o

s
e

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

 

P
e

o
p

le
 

T
h
a

t 
a
n

 u
p

d
a

te
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
u

tu
m

n
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

is
 P

a
n

e
l 
o
n

 1
4
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

. 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

9
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h
 f

u
n

d
s
. 

       F
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
u

ti
li
s

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

P
u

b
li
c
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 -
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
, 

R
e
s

il
ie

n
c
e

, 
H

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

S
c

h
o

o
ls

 

 It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

te
a
m

, 
th

e
 R

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 t
e
a

m
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
e

a
m

 a
re

 f
u

lly
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e
 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
d
 (

b
o

th
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 a

n
d

 r
u
n
n

in
g
 c

o
s
ts

) 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 

T
h
a

t 
a
n

 u
p

d
a

te
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
u

tu
m

n
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

is
 P

a
n

e
l 
o
n

 1
4
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

. 

   
 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

1
0
 

 S
tr

o
n

g
e
r 

C
it

y
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

1
.1

2
.1

5
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

P
h

a
s

e
d

 R
e

m
o

v
a

l 
o

f 
re

m
a

in
in

g
 G

ra
n

d
 

T
h

e
a

tr
e
 G

ra
n

t 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 a
 p

h
a

s
e

d
 r

e
m

o
v
a

l 
o
f 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 t

o
 G

ra
n

d
 T

h
e
a

tr
e
. 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 

P
la

c
e
 

A
d

ri
a

n
 J

a
c
k
s
o

n
, 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e
 G

ra
n
d
 

T
h
e

a
tr

e
 h

a
d

 a
tt

e
n
d

e
d

 a
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 a
n
 i
n

 

d
e

p
th

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 h

a
d
 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 r
e

la
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t
h

is
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
 

 
T

h
e

 P
a

n
e

l 
w

e
lc

o
m

e
d

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
 a

n
d

, 
in

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 h

is
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

fi
t 

c
e
n

tr
e
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 t
h

e
 t
h

e
a

tr
e
's

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.
 

 T
h
e

 C
h

a
ir
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
c
u

ts
 t

o
 v

e
n

u
e

s
 

in
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 c

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 d
ir
e

c
t 

a
n
d

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 

th
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

V
is

it
o

r 
E

c
o

n
o

m
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
f 

c
a

re
 i
s
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e

n
. 
T

h
e
 P

a
n

e
l 
h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

it
 w

a
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
fo

r 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 a

d
v
is

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

th
o

s
e

 v
e

n
u

e
s
 t
o

 a
s
s
is

t 
in

 t
h
e

ir
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.
  
T

h
e

 P
a
n

e
l 
re

q
u

e
s
te

d
 f
u

tu
re

 f
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 

o
n

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 v
e

n
u

e
s
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
e

d
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 L
ig

h
th

o
u

s
e

 M
e
d

ia
 

C
e
n

tr
e

 G
ra

n
t 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 t
o

 r
e
m

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 

P
la

c
e
 

T
h
e

 P
a

n
e

l 
w

e
re

 r
e
m

in
d

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 

th
e

 L
ig

h
th

o
u

s
e

 T
h
e

a
tr

e
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e

d
 a

t 
a

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
. 
T

h
e

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
h
a

d
 m

e
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 L

ig
h

th
o
u

s
e

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

1
1
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

g
ra

n
t 

fu
n
d

in
g
 t

o
 L

ig
h

t 
H

o
u

s
e

 M
e
d

ia
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e

a
tr

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
m

 a
n

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 

to
 c

o
m

e
 b

a
c
k
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

o
n
e

 o
ff

 a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

, 
to

 
h

e
lp

 a
s
s
is

t 
th

e
ir
 f

u
tu

re
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n

in
g
. 

A
s
 y

e
t 

th
e

y
 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
ta

k
e

n
 u

p
 t
h

e
 o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
. 

 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
C

it
y
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 

 R
a
ti
o
n

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

to
 m

e
e

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 m
e
e

t 
n
e

w
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

P
la

c
e
 

T
h
e

 P
a

n
e

l 
h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 ‘
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n

’ 
in

 
th

e
 a

u
tu

m
n

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
e

 n
e
e

d
 f
o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 E

c
o

n
o
m

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, 

w
h

o
 w

o
rk

 
d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
in

v
e

s
to

rs
, 
to

 b
e

 g
e

n
u

in
e

 
a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
 v

a
lu

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 m
a

in
lin

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t,
 

it
 w

a
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

h
a

d
 r

e
a

c
h
e

d
 t

h
e

 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

g
e

 o
f 

s
o
m

e
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
b

id
s
 f

ro
m

 
E

u
ro

p
e

a
n

 U
n

io
n

 w
h

ic
h
 w

o
u

ld
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 

a
ro

u
n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

t 
th

e
 f

ro
n

tl
in

e
. 

It
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t
o

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
h

e
 E

R
D

F
 f
u

n
d

e
d
 B

la
c
k
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
 

G
o

ld
 G

ra
n

t 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 f
o
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 

 T
o
g
e

th
e
r 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 E

S
F

 f
u

n
d
e

d
 S

k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

b
id

 t
h
e

re
 

c
o

u
ld

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 b

e
 u

p
 t
o

 t
e
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 

E
u

ro
p
e

a
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 n
e

x
t 

th
re

e
 y

e
a

rs
. 

 

T
h
e

 n
e

e
d
 t

o
 m

a
tc

h
 f
u

n
d

 m
e
a

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
it
 w

a
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 

re
d

u
c
e

 m
a

in
lin

e
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 a

n
y
 f

u
rt

h
e

r.
  

In
c

re
a
s

e
 n

e
w

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 w
it

h
in

 
P

la
c
e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
v
e

n
u

e
s
 h

a
d

 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 i
n

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

1
2
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 

v
e

n
u

e
s

 (
A

rc
h

iv
e

s
, 

A
rt

 G
a

ll
e

ry
, 

B
a
n

to
c

k
 H

o
u

s
e

) 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 n
e

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 s

it
e

s
 

    

d
e

p
th

 a
t 

a
 r

e
c
e

n
t 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
. 

 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

e
x

te
rn

a
l 

fu
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
O

u
td

o
o

r 

e
v
e

n
ts

. 

 R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

£
2
0

,0
0

0
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 

O
u

td
o

o
r 

E
v
e

n
ts

 b
u

d
g
e
t.

 P
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
fi
n
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e

 A
p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 C
it
y
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y
 

E
v
e

n
ts

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 y

e
t 
to

 b
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

P
la

c
e
 

T
h
e

 r
e
c
e
n

t 
b

o
n
fi
re

 e
v
e

n
t 

a
t 
th

e
 R

a
c
e
 c

o
u

rs
e
 w

a
s
 

p
ra

is
e

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
a

lly
 g

o
o

d
 f

a
m

ily
 e

v
e

n
t.

 T
h

e
re

 h
a

d
 

b
e

e
n

 a
n
 i
s
s
u

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 c
a

r 
p
a

rk
 m

a
rs

h
a

lli
n
g
 b

u
t 

th
is

 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 a
t 
fu

tu
re

 e
v
e

n
ts

 a
t 

th
e

 r
a
c
e

 
c
o

u
rs

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
e

s
 w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

 
T

h
e

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

V
is

it
o

r 
E

c
o

n
o
m

y
 w

a
s
 a

s
k
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 d
o
u

b
le

 u
p
 o

n
 e

v
e

n
ts

, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 h

o
rs

e
 

ra
c
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 M

a
d

n
e

s
s
 C

o
n

c
e

rt
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
d

 t
a

k
e

n
 

p
la

c
e

 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

u
m

m
e

r.
  

 T
h
e

 P
a

n
e

l 
re

q
u
e

s
te

d
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

P
a

n
e

l 
a

b
o

u
t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

s
 a

t 
o
th

e
r 

v
e

n
u
e

s
. 

 

B
il
s

to
n

 C
ra

ft
 G

a
ll
e

ry
 –

 r
e

v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 

e
x

h
ib

it
io

n
s

 a
n

d
 c

ra
ft

 p
la

y
 

 

P
la

c
e
 

B
ils

to
n

 C
ra

ft
 G

a
lle

ry
 –

 r
e
v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

e
x
h

ib
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
ra

ft
 

p
la

y
 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

1
3
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

c
ra

ft
 p

la
y
 a

n
d

 o
n

e
 o

ff
 

e
v
e

n
ts

 t
h
a

t 
a

re
 e

x
te

rn
a
lly

 f
u

n
d
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 C

ra
ft

 

G
a

lle
ry

. 
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
x
h

ib
it
io

n
s
 

to
 b

e
 r

e
lo

c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 A

rt
 G

a
lle

ry
. 

M
a

k
e

 t
h
e

 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 s

p
a

c
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

s
tu

d
io

 h
ir
e

. 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

c
ra

ft
 p

la
y
 a

n
d

 o
n

e
 o

ff
 e

v
e

n
ts

 t
h
a

t 
a

re
 e

x
te

rn
a

lly
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 C

ra
ft

 G
a

lle
ry

. 
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 e

x
h

ib
it
io

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
lo

c
a

te
d

 a
t 

th
e

 A
rt

 
G

a
lle

ry
. 

M
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 s

p
a

c
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f
o

r 
e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 s
tu

d
io

 h
ir
e

. 
P

la
c
e
 
S

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
w

a
s
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 t
h

e
re

 h
a

d
 b

e
e
n

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
u

a
ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 i
t 
h

a
d

 b
e

e
n
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

re
ta

in
e
d

 a
t 
B

ils
to

n
 C

ra
ft

 G
a

lle
ry

. 
 T

h
e

 P
a

n
e

l 
h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 m

a
y
 b

e
 g

ro
u
p

s
 i
n

 
th

e
 B

ils
to

n
 a

re
a

 t
h

a
t 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 w

ill
in

g
 t

o
 p

a
y
 f

o
r 

ro
o

m
 

a
n

d
 v

e
n

u
e

 h
ir
e
. 

 
 T

h
e

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 
v
o

ic
e
d

 c
o
n

c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 k
e
e

p
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 c

le
a
n

 a
n

d
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l,
 i
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 c
ra

ft
 

p
la

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 o
n
e

 o
ff

 e
v
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
w

a
n

te
d

 t
o

 
k
n

o
w

 w
h

a
t 

p
la

n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

is
. 

 
 P

a
n

e
l 
h

e
a

rd
 t

h
a

t 
d

is
p

la
y
s
 b

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 i
n
 e

a
c
h

 
v
e

n
u

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 m

in
im

a
l 
in

p
u

t 
b

y
 c

u
ra

to
ri
a

l 
s
ta

ff
, 
th

e
 g

ro
u

p
s
 t
e

n
d
e
d

 t
o

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

m
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 

to
 s

e
t 
u

p
 d

is
p
la

y
s
 t

h
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
. 

 T
h
e

 P
a

n
e

l 
a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 f

o
r 

B
ils

to
n

 C
ra

ft
 G

a
lle

ry
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s
 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

1
4
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n

in
g
. 

M
a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
a

t 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 f
iv

e
 y

e
a

r 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 f
o

r 
e
a

c
h

 v
e

n
u

e
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 b
e
tt

e
r 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

in
c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 p

la
n

n
in

g
. 

 

 . 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

  
  

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

1
5
 

 S
tr

o
n

g
e
r 

C
it

y
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

1
.1

2
.1

5
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
 o

f 
o

n
e
 o

ff
 g

ra
n

ts
 f

o
r 

C
it

y
 

E
c

o
n

o
m

y
 

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 b

e
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
t 

is
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e

 n
e
t 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
6
/1

7
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
im

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

P
la

c
e
 

T
h
e

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e

r 
o

u
tl
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

d
ra

w
d

o
w

n
 w

a
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 b

e
in

g
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
t 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
im

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

P
a

n
e

l 
th

a
n

k
e
d

 t
h
e

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e

r 
fo

r 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g
 t

h
e

 d
ra

w
d

o
w

n
 f

u
n
d

in
g
. 

 

 

   
 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

  
  

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

1
6
 

 C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 F
a
m

il
ie

s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

–
 2

5
.1

1
.1

5
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 S
c

h
o

o
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 F

u
tu

re
 P

ri
v
a

te
 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 R
e

fi
n

a
n

c
in

g
 

 A
 o

n
e

 o
ff

 s
a

v
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 a

 

re
fi
n
a

n
c
in

g
 o

f 
P

F
I 
S

c
h
e

m
e
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 

H
ig

h
fi
e
ld

s
 a

n
d

 P
e

n
n

 F
ie

ld
s
 S

c
h
o

o
ls

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 

b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
e

rv
e

s
; 

th
e

s
e
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p

le
n

is
h
e

d
 i
n

 f
u

ll 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
e
 P

F
I 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 d

e
fe

rr
e

d
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 t
h

a
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 s

h
e

e
t.
 

 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
q
u
e

ri
e

d
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
H

ig
h

fi
e
ld

s
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 a

c
a

d
e

m
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 
to

 
w

h
ic

h
 i
t 
w

o
u

ld
 a

ff
e

c
t 

th
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

C
llr

 C
la

ir
e

 D
a

rk
e

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d
 t

h
a

t 
a
 f

u
tu

re
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

ta
tu

s
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
a
ff

e
c
t 

th
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o
 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 n

o
 p

la
n

s
 t
o

 l
o
o

k
 a

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

s
im

ila
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

t 
o

th
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 b

u
ilt

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 
B

u
ild

in
g
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

F
u

tu
re

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

C
llr

 V
a

l 
G

ib
s
o

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n

te
d

 t
h
a

t 
e
a

c
h

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
w

ill
 b

e
 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

t 
o

n
 a

n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
b
a

s
is

 i
f 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 t

o
 r

e
fi
n

a
n

c
e

 a
 P

F
I 

s
c
h
e

m
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

fu
tu

re
. 

 T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
q
u
e

ri
e

d
 i
f 

th
e

 s
a
m

e
 m

e
th

o
d

 c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

a
p

p
lie

d
 t

o
 a

ll 
o

th
e

r 
P

F
I 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 s
im

ila
r 

s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

C
llr

 D
a
rk

e
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 o

p
ti
o
n

 t
o

 r
e

-
fi
n
a

n
c
e

 w
o

u
ld

 d
e
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

F
I 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 
m

a
k
e
 a

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
h

a
t 

c
o
u

ld
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
 s

im
ila

r 
s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 l
o

o
k
 f

o
r 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 

g
e

t 
a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
d
e

a
l 
fr

o
m

 P
F

I 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 

 T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
q
u
e

ri
e

d
 i
f 

fu
tu

re
 P

F
I 
d

e
a

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 d
ri
v
e

 t
o

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 t

h
a

t 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

  
  

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

1
7
 

 

a
ll 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

c
a

d
e
m

ie
s
. 

C
llr

 D
a
rk

e
 

e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 l
o

o
k
 f

o
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

o
re

 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

lly
 b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 o

r 
g
e

n
e

ra
te

 s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

 

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 

 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 T

e
a

m
 -

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

s
a

v
in

g
s

 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e

 t
h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d

in
g
 T

e
a
m

 (
Y

O
T

) 
b
y
 £

1
5

0
,0

0
0

. 

T
h
e

s
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

e
lim

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

c
a

n
t 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 p

o
s
ts

 f
ro

m
 a

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

w
o

rk
s
tr

e
a

m
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
. 

O
n
e

 

0
.5

 p
o

s
t 

is
 a

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
p

o
s
t,
 a

n
d

 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 c

re
a

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 

th
e

 a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

 t
e
a
m

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
a

l 

w
o

rk
e
r 

b
u

d
g
e

t.
 

P
e

o
p

le
 

C
llr

 V
a

l 
G

ib
s
o

n
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 d

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o

s
ts

. 
T

h
e

 d
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

C
llr

 G
ib

s
o

n
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 g

ra
n

t 
b
u

d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
re

d
u

c
ti
o
n

s
. 

 
 N

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 r
e
c
o

rd
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
 

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 *
 

P
e

o
p

le
 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e

 n
e

x
t 

a
g
e

n
d

a
 i
te

m
. 

 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

  
  

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

1
8
 

 * 
F

u
ll 

d
e

ta
ils

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 C
a
b

in
e

t 
s
e

p
a

ra
te

ly
 o

n
 1

1
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

5
 (

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 p
h
a

s
e

 

tw
o

 r
e
p

o
rt

) 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 l
a

te
r 

in
 t
h

is
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
. 

   C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
 o

f 
o

n
e
 o

ff
 g

ra
n

ts
 f

o
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 

a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 b

e
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

it
 i
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

e
t 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
6
/1

7
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
im

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

P
e

o
p

le
 

N
o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 r
e
c
o

rd
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
 

 

           



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

  
  

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

1
9
 

   E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

(e
x

p
a
n

s
io

n
s

) 
- 

u
ti

li
s

e
 g

ra
n

t 
n

o
w

 

s
e

c
u

re
d

 t
o

 r
e

p
la

c
e

 p
ru

d
e
n

ti
a

l 

b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 

 S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 h

a
d

 t
o
 b

e
 f
u

n
d

e
d
 b

y
 

p
ru

d
e
n

ti
a

l 
b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 

b
a

s
ic

 n
e

e
d

 g
ra

n
t 

b
e

in
g
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
. 

It
 i
s
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t
o

 u
ti
lis

e
 t

h
e

 g
ra

n
t 

n
o

w
 

s
e

c
u

re
d

 t
o

 r
e
p

la
c
e

 p
ru

d
e

n
ti
a

l 

b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
. 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 

C
llr

 D
a

rk
e
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h
e

 r
e
a

s
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
m

a
k
in

g
 t
h

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
o

 r
e
p

la
c
e

 p
ru

d
e

n
ti
a

l 
b

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 w

it
h

 a
 g

ra
n

t.
 

 N
o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 r
e
c
o

rd
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
 

 

  

  



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

2
0
 

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

G
ro

w
th

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
re

s
s

u
re

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 &

 F
a

m
il
ie

s
 

 

F
o
s
te

ri
n

g
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 

A
ft

e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

  
C

llr
 G

ib
s
o

n
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d
 t
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 f

e
e

s
. 

 N
o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 r
e
c
o

rd
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
 

   

T
o

ta
l 

C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 &

 

F
a
m

il
ie

s
 

      

 

 

 
 

 
 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

2
1
 

 V
ib

ra
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

it
y
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

  
3

.1
2

.1
5

 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 In
tr

o
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 o

n
 

m
o

re
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
s
 l
a
n

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
it
y
. 

P
la

c
e
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

p
h
a
s
e

 i
n

 a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
w

e
re

 a
d

v
is

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

e
n

t 
liv

e
 o

n
 3

0
.1

1
.1

5
. 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 w

e
re

 a
 f

ix
e

d
 p

e
n

a
lt
y
 n

o
ti
c
e

 
w

o
u

ld
 a

p
p

ly
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 u
s
in

g
 b

u
s
 l
a
n

e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 
re

c
o

rd
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
a

m
e

ra
. 
T

o
 d

a
te

 t
h
e

re
 h

a
d
 n

o
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a

p
p
e

a
ls

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 p

e
n

a
lt
y
 n

o
ti
c
e

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

v
id

e
o

 
re

c
o

rd
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

. 
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
b

u
s
 

la
n

e
 c

a
m

e
ra

s
 o

n
ly

 a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

ro
a

d
s
. 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
- 

C
it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
 c

a
u

g
h

t 
u

s
in

g
 t
h

e
 b

u
s
 l
a

n
e

 h
a

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 3
,0

0
0

 
p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
 t

o
 1

,7
0

0
 s

in
c
e

 i
t 

w
a

s
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
. 
T

h
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

p
o

lic
y
 w

a
s
 a

im
e
d

 a
t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

ra
ff

ic
 f

lo
w

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
n

g
 i
n

c
o
m

e
. 

 T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
q
u
e

ri
e

d
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

fi
n
e

s
 p

a
id

 a
n

d
 u

n
p

a
id

 
s
in

c
e

 t
h
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

 w
a

s
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
. 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
- 

C
it
y
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

e
x
p

la
in

e
d
 t

h
a

t 
a

b
o

u
t 
7

0
%

 o
f 

fi
n

e
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e

n
 

p
a

id
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
o

rk
s
 h

a
rd

 t
o

 r
e
c
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 d

e
b

t,
 t
h

is
 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

2
2
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 
b

a
ili

ff
s
. 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
- 

C
it
y
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
g
re

e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
s
 

fo
r 

tr
a
ff

ic
 f

in
e

s
. 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

a
rk

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s

 

w
id

e
r 

N
e
w

 C
ro

s
s

 a
re

a
 

 T
o
 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
e

 a
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

N
e
w

 C
ro

s
s
 a

re
a

. 
T

h
e

 

fi
rs

t 
p
h

a
s
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
h

e
 W

o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 

R
o
a

d
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 p
h

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 

G
ra

is
e

le
y
 L

a
n

e
 a

re
a
. 

It
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

s
u

b
s
id

is
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

p
a

y
 a

n
d

 

d
is

p
la

y
 p

a
rk

in
g
. 

P
la

c
e
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 w

o
u

ld
 a

ff
e

c
t 
p

a
rk

in
g
 a

t 
th

e
 r

e
a

r 
o
f 

th
e

 
h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
s
it
e

. 
T

h
e

 C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
a
d

v
is

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
in

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
a

rk
in

g
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 t
h

e
re

 
w

a
s
 a

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 p

a
rk

in
g
 

p
e

rm
it
 s

c
h

e
m

e
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 i
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 d
e

v
is

e
 a

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 t
h

a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
lim

it
s
 o

n
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a

c
e
 f

o
r 

v
is

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 o
r 

fa
m

ily
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 a
n

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 

s
u

b
s
id

is
e

d
 b

y
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 p
a

y
 a

n
d

 
d

is
p
la

y
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 f

o
r 

n
o

n
-r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

s
 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

v
e

re
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
. 
T

h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
w

e
re

 a
d

v
is

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
it
 w

a
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
6

0
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 p
a

y
 

a
n

d
 d

is
p
la

y
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
. 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
it
y
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

d
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

c
e

rn
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 c

a
u

s
e

d
 b

y
 p

a
rk

in
g
. 

 T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
s
o

u
g
h

t 
re

a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
a

p
p

lie
d
 t

o
o

 r
ig

id
ly

 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
d

ic
a
te

d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 –

fo
r 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

2
3
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o
d

 t
h
a

t 
c
h
a

rg
e

s
 w

ill
 a

p
p

ly
. 

  T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

p
a

rk
in

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
5

9
 b

u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 o

ft
e

n
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 f
re

q
u

e
n

t 
d
e

la
y
s
 a

s
 a

 
re

s
u

lt
. 
T

h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
c
o

m
m

e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e
 

tr
a
v
e

l 
n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 b
u

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
 p

h
a
s

e
 t

w
o

 r
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

tr
e

e
t 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

 

 T
h
e

 p
h

a
s
e
 t

w
o

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

ill
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

o
p
e

ra
ti
o
n

a
l 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 

b
o

th
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
a

c
ti
v
e

 s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 a
 r

e
a
lig

n
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 

P
la

c
e
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

 t
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 

A
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
T

ri
a

l 

 T
h
e

 t
ri
a

l 
w

ill
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 a
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 i
s
s
u

in
g
 

fi
x
e

d
 p

e
n

a
lt
ie

s
 f

o
r 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 l
it
te

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 d
o

g
 

P
la

c
e
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

K
in

g
d

o
m

 S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 i
n

 t
a

c
k
lin

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 o

f 
d

o
g
 f

o
u

lin
g
 a

n
d

 
lit

te
r 

in
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
. 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

c
o
m

m
e

n
te

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 m
e
d

ia
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

A
t 

p
re

s
e

n
t 
7
0

%
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 
p

a
y
 t

h
e

ir
 s

p
o
t 
fi
n
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 d
a

te
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

d
 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 l
a

rg
e

r 
fi
n
e

. 
A

 r
e
c
e

n
t 
c
a

s
e
 l
e

d
 t
o

 a
 h

e
a

ri
n

g
 

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

rt
s
 w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 w

a
s
 u

p
h

e
ld

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

2
4
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

fo
u

lin
g
. 

T
h
e

 t
ri
a

l 
w

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 o

n
 a

 1
2

 m
o
n

th
 

b
a

s
is

 b
y
 C

a
b

in
e
t 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

P
a
n

e
l 
o

n
 

3
0

 J
u
n

e
 2

0
1
5

. 
It
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

s
 o

n
 1

0
 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
5
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
3
 

m
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 

te
n

d
e

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

s
u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
y
e

a
rs

 i
f 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l.
 

fi
n
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

o
 £

7
7

0
 t
o

 c
o

v
e

r 
c
o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
. 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
q
u
e

ri
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
in

 t
h
e

 p
a

s
t 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 W
a

rd
e
n

s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 n
u

is
a
n

c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

c
it
y
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 o
p

e
n

 g
re

e
n

 s
p
a

c
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 i
n
c
id

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 
th

e
n
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 g

e
t 
th

e
 m

a
tt
e

r 
d
e

a
lt
 

w
it
h

. 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 a
b

o
u

t 
w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 a

re
 u

s
e

d
. 
T

h
e

 c
u

rr
e
n

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 a

 1
2
 m

o
n

th
 t
ri
a
l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

 f
ro

m
 K

in
g
d

o
m

 
S

e
c
u

ri
ty

 w
ill

 b
e

 d
ir
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
h

e
 i
s
 

o
p

e
n

 t
o
 s

u
g
g
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
u

s
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 f

ro
m

 K
in

g
d

o
m

 
S

e
c
u

ri
ty

. 

S
u

rf
a
c

e
 w

a
te

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
re

a
lig

n
e

d
 w

it
h

 f
u

tu
re

 k
n

o
w

n
 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
. 

P
la

c
e
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

U
rb

a
n

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 f
o

r 
W

a
ls

a
ll

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 

to
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 m
e

rg
e

d
 U

rb
a
n

 

P
la

c
e
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
h

e
 

h
a

d
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 v

is
it
e

d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

tr
o
l 
ro

o
m

. 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

b
e

in
g
 a

b
le

 t
o

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 t

h
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
p

a
n

e
l 
s
h

o
u

ld
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

 t
o

 v
is

it
 t

o
 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
ro

o
m

 t
o

 i
t 

in
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
. 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

2
5
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
(U

T
C

) 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 

b
y
 W

o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 

 T
h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 c

o
u

ld
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 b

e
 m

e
t 

in
 a

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

w
a

y
s
:-

 

- 
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

p
o

s
t 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
te

a
m

 

(n
u

is
a
n

c
e
, 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
ri
m

e
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
, 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 e

tc
.)

 

- 
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 C

o
n

s
u

m
e

r 
A

d
v
ic

e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

p
o

s
t 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 T

e
a
m

 

- 
A

 c
o

m
b

in
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
w

o
 

p
o

s
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 (

h
a

lf
 a

 p
o

s
t 

in
 e

a
c
h

 a
re

a
) 

- 
S

h
a

re
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 a
 B

la
c
k
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
t 

- 
O

v
e

ra
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

- 
A

 c
o

m
b

in
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 b
u
t 

w
it
h

 a
 

p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

im
p
a

c
t 

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 e

n
d
 u

s
e

r 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 s
ta

ff
 g

ro
u

p
. 

P
la

c
e
 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

m
e

r 
a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

ff
e

re
d

 b
y
 W

o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 t
h
e

 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

s
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 r
e

p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

re
g
io

n
. 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
w

e
re

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 a

b
o

u
t 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
e

x
p

e
rt

is
e
. 

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

re
c
e

n
t 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 f

ra
u

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

s
e

iz
e

d
 

c
o

u
n

te
rf

e
it
 g

o
o
d

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

a
s
t.
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d
 t

h
a

t 
h
e

 n
o

t 
d

id
 t
h

in
k
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e

 w
o

u
ld

 
h

a
v
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 

R
e
c

o
n

fi
g

u
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

la
y
 A

re
a

s
  

P
la

c
e
 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

2
6
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

 P
la

y
 a

re
a

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
c
o

n
fi
g
u

re
d

 b
a

s
e

d
 

u
p

o
n

 t
h
e

ir
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 p
la

y
 

v
a

lu
e

, 
a

n
d
 w

ill
 t
a

k
e

 i
n

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

x
im

it
y
 o

f 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e
 p

la
y
 a

re
a

s
 w

it
h

in
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 p
la

y
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

u
p

o
n

 t
h
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

p
la

y
 a

re
a

s
 b

e
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 a

 t
e
n

 m
in

u
te

 

w
a

lk
, 
a

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 W

o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 O

p
e

n
 

S
p

a
c
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 

A
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

la
y
 a

re
a

s
 w

ill
 e

n
a

b
le

 a
 

m
o

re
 c

o
s
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

p
la

y
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 

a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 r
e
m

a
in

 o
f 

a
 h

ig
h

 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
. 

P
la

y
 a

re
a

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 t
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 p
o

o
r 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 

o
ff

e
ri
n

g
 l
im

it
e
d

 p
la

y
 v

a
lu

e
 t
a

k
in

g
 i
n

to
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
/p

ro
x
im

it
y
 o

f 

o
th

e
r 

p
la

y
 a

re
a

s
 c

lo
s
e

 b
y
. 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
p

la
y
 

a
re

a
s
 i
s
 k

n
o

w
n

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

p
la

y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
. 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 r
e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 l
o
o

k
 a

t 
th

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
o
f 

c
o
n

s
o

lid
a

ti
n

g
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 p

la
y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
ro

m
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 o
n

e
 

s
it
e

 t
o

 a
 s

in
g
le

 l
o
c
a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e

 a
im

 i
s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

la
y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 w
it
h

 l
o

w
e
r 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

2
7
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

w
e

e
k
ly

 s
a

fe
ty

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
p

la
y
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 

re
a

d
ily

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
. 

  R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 f

o
r 

th
e

 M
a
rk

e
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
  

 T
h
e

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
u

p
o

n
 t
h

e
 W

e
s
ts

id
e

 

re
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 

th
e

 r
e
lo

c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 W
o

lv
e

rh
a

m
p

to
n

 

M
a

rk
e
t.
 

T
h
e

 r
e
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 M

a
rk

e
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q
u

ir
e

 f
e

w
e

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
o

 

o
p

e
ra

te
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 

th
e

 n
o

n
-f

ill
in

g
 o

f 
v
a

c
a

n
t 

p
o

s
ts

 a
n
d

 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 r

e
q
u

e
s
ti
n

g
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

h
o

u
rs

 o
r 

V
R

. 

P
la

c
e
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
re

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

a
n
e

l 
o

n
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
w

ill
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 t
h

e
 

d
e

le
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 v

a
c
a

n
t 

p
o
s
t.

 
 N

o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

 

R
e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i
n

 W
a
s

te
 D

is
p

o
s
a

l 
C

o
s

ts
 

 A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

th
e

 r
e
le

v
a

n
t 

le
g
is

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

P
la

c
e
 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
q
u
e

ri
e

d
 t
h

e
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
la

c
k
 o

f 
g
re

e
n

 w
a

s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 
in

 t
h

e
 w

in
te

r 
m

o
n
th

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
e

x
te

n
d

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
o

s
e

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
o

 m
a

k
e
 h

ig
h

 u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

y
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 t
o

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e
 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

2
8
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

re
c
e

n
t 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 D
e
fr

a
 h

a
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 a

 c
lin

ic
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 d

o
 n

o
t 
n

e
e

d
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

b
e

c
a
u

s
e

 t
h

e
 w

a
s
te

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
, 

w
h

ils
t 

u
n

p
le

a
s
a
n

t,
 i
s
 n

o
t 

h
a

z
a

rd
o

u
s
 o

r 

in
fe

c
ti
o
u

s
. 

If
 t

h
e

 w
a

s
te

 p
ro

d
u

c
e
d

 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
lin

ic
a
l 

w
a

s
te

 a
n

d
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

re
q
u

ir
e

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
, 
tr

e
a

tm
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 d

is
p

o
s
a

l,
 i
t 
is

 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t
o

 o
ff

e
r 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
o

r 
la

rg
e

r 
s
iz

e
d

 b
ro

w
n

 b
in

 t
o

 

e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

ir
 w

a
s
te

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 

d
is

c
re

te
ly

 i
n

 a
n

 e
n

c
lo

s
e

d
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
r 

b
y
 

th
e

 n
o

rm
a

l 
h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 w
a

s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

n
 a

 w
e

e
k
ly

 b
a

s
is

. 

T
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
in

g
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 

a
n

y
 h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
, 

b
u

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 a

re
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 o

n
ly

 

b
e

in
g
 u

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

is
p
o

s
a

l 
o
f 

c
lin

ic
a
l 

w
a

s
te

 t
h

a
t 
a

c
tu

a
lly

 r
e
q

u
ir
e

s
 t

h
is

 

tr
e
a

tm
e

n
t.
 

 In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

it
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
g
re

e
n

 w
a

s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 c

h
a

rg
e

 a
n

d
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
o

p
ti
o
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 o

f 
m

o
v
in

g
 a

w
a

y
 f

ro
m

 a
 c

it
y
 w

id
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

to
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 f
ro

m
 a

re
a

s
 w

a
n

ti
n

g
 a

 g
re

e
n

 
w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 w
in

te
r 

m
o
n

th
s
. 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

2
9
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

th
e

 p
o

lic
y
 o

f 
n

o
t 

p
a

y
in

g
 d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

re
d

it
s
 t

o
 t
h

ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
a
n
d

 

c
h

a
ri
ta

b
le

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e

s
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 w

ill
 s

ti
ll 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
b

e
n
e
fi
t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 s
a

le
 o

f 
a

n
y
 

re
c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
s
te

 t
h

e
y
 c

o
lle

c
t 

b
u

t 
w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

in
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 t
h
e

 a
d
d

e
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

in
c
o

m
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

re
d

it
s
 p

a
id

 b
y
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il.

  

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 v
e

ry
 s

ta
b

le
 m

a
rk

e
t 
fo

r 
u
s
e

d
 

te
x
ti
le

s
, 

w
it
h

 a
 h

ig
h

 m
a
rk

e
t 

v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 

m
a

te
ri
a

l 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 f
a

r 
in

 e
x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
m

o
u

n
t 
th

a
t 

is
 c

la
im

e
d
 a

s
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

c
re

d
it
s
. 

 G
ro

u
n

d
s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 r
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
 t

w
o

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 

e
le

m
e

n
ts

 a
s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

C
e
a

s
e

 m
o

re
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 b

o
x
 

m
o

w
in

g
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 i
n

 

P
la

c
e
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

3
0
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
. 

C
e
a

s
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
b
e

d
d

in
g
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 

c
e

n
tr

e
 i
n
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
. 

 T
h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e

s
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
: 

• 
C

o
n

v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
b

e
d
d

in
g
 d

is
p
la

y
 

a
re

a
s
 i
n

to
 s

h
ru

b
 b

e
d

s
 o

r 
la

w
n

. 

• 
F

lo
w

e
r 

b
e

d
s
 c

o
n

v
e

rt
e
d

 t
o

 s
h

ru
b

 b
e
d

s
 o

r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
la

w
n

. 

T
h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 i
n

it
ia

l 
c
o

s
t 

to
 c

o
n

v
e

rt
 t
h
e

 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
b
e

d
d

in
g
 a

re
a

s
 a

n
d

 a
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
v
it
y
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 i
n

-h
o
u

s
e

 

g
ra

s
s
 c

u
tt

in
g
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 

 O
n

e
-o

ff
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 

 A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
In

c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e

ra
te

d
 b

y
 b

u
s
 l
a
n

e
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
d

u
ri
n

g
 i
n

it
ia

l 
p

e
a

k
 p

o
s
t 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

. 

P
la

c
e
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 a
c

ro
s

s
 C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 P
u

b
li
c

 R
e

a
lm

 

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

o
 b

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 f
ro

m
 

P
la

c
e
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

3
1
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 P

u
b

lic
 R

e
a

lm
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 r
e
v
e

n
u

e
 

b
u

d
g
e

ts
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
a

re
a

s
. 

In
 t

h
e

 e
v
e

n
t 
th

a
t 

u
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 

a
ri
s
e

s
, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 s

e
v
e

re
 w

e
a

th
e

r 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
, 

a
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 c

a
ll 

u
p
o

n
. 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 u
p

o
n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
a

lis
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 

s
u

b
-c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 b
u

d
g
e

ts
, 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 d
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 v
a

c
a
n

t 
p
o

s
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 h

o
u

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 

o
f 

p
o

s
ts

. 

  

P
la

c
e
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

 

S
tr

e
e

t 
L

ig
h

ti
n

g
 –

 r
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

e
x

is
ti

n
g

 s
tr

e
e

t 
la

n
te

rn
s
 w

it
h

 m
o

re
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

L
E

D
 t

e
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y

 

 W
o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 h

a
s
 a

n
 a

g
e

in
g
 s

tr
e

e
t 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 s

to
c
k
, 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

s
tr

e
e

t 

P
la

c
e
 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
. 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 
th

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 p

la
n

 t
o
 t
u

rn
 o

ff
 s

tr
e
e

t 
lig

h
ts

. 
C

a
b

in
e
t 

M
e

m
b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 

re
p

la
c
e

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 l
ig

h
ts

 d
o

e
s
 p

re
s
e
n

t 
a
 r

is
k
 a

s
 f
u

tu
re

 
a

d
v
a

n
c
e

s
 i
n

 t
e

c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 m

a
y
 o

ff
e

r 
b
ig

g
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 i
n

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

3
2
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 

c
o

u
n

tr
y
, 

th
e

re
fo

re
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

to
 

n
e

w
 m

o
re

 c
o

s
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ts

 w
ill

 

s
a

v
e

 m
o

n
e

y
 o

n
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 

ru
n

n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

. 

e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
s
ts

. 

 

F
le

e
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c

a
p

it
a
l 

s
p

e
n

d
 p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 

V
e

h
ic

le
 R

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

 T
h
e

 r
e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
, 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
, 

lif
e

ti
m

e
s
 

a
re

 b
e

in
g
 e

x
te

n
d

e
d

 a
s
 f
a

r 
a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
, 
in

 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
k
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

n
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 M
in

im
u
m

 R
e

v
e

n
u
e

 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 (
M

R
P

).
 T

h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 w
ill

 

th
e

re
fo

re
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 T

re
a

s
u

ry
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
b

u
d

g
e

t.
 

P
la

c
e
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

p
o

lic
y
 i
s
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
g
e

tt
in

g
 m

o
re

 u
s
e

 o
u

t 
o
f 

th
e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 f

le
e

t 
a

n
d

 t
o

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

 m
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 

o
n

 t
h

e
ir
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
. 

 
 N

o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

 

In
c

re
a
s

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
W

V
 A

c
ti

v
e

 

 T
o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

th
e

 t
h

re
e

 m
a

in
s
tr

e
a
m

 l
e

is
u
re

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 

o
p

e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 W

V
 A

c
ti
v
e

. 
M

a
rk

e
t 

s
e

g
m

e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 d
a

ta
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 S

p
o

rt
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 u
s
e
d

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 l
a

te
n

t 

P
la

c
e
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
W

V
 A

c
ti
v
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f
o
c
u

s
 o

n
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 

c
o

u
rs

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
. 
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
c
o
m

m
e

n
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 t
o

 
e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 u
s
e

 t
h
e

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

3
3
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 f

o
r 

s
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 a
s
s
is

t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 t
o

 r
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 u

s
e

 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 n

e
w

 o
r 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 

a
tt

ra
c
t 
n

e
w

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
. 

 T
h
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 
u

s
e

 a
t 

th
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h
e

ir
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 

o
f 

n
a

ti
o
n
a

l 
g
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

ie
s
 f
o

r 
s
p
o

rt
. 

W
e

s
t 

P
a

rk
 C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

to
ry

 –
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 

 A
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
W

e
s
t 

P
a

rk
 c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

to
ry

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
u

b
lic

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 a
n

 

a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n
t 

to
 v

ie
w

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

to
ry

 o
n

 

a
 w

e
e

k
ly

 b
a

s
is

. 

P
la

c
e
 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 
h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
it
e
 

a
n

d
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 u
s
e

s
. 
T

h
e
 p

a
n

e
l 
s
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

it
 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 h
e

lp
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

u
ld

 p
ro

m
o
te

 
in

te
re

s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

 a
n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
. 
C

a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d

 t
h
a

t 
id

e
a

s
 f
o

r 
a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
u

s
e

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 w

e
d

d
in

g
 v

e
n

u
e

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d

. 
 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

tr
a

y
 D

o
g

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 
P

la
c
e
 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

3
4
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

c
h

a
rg

e
s

 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 a
n

d
 n

e
w

 c
h
a

rg
e

s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

s
tr

a
y
 d

o
g
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 

D
o
g
 W

a
rd

e
n

 w
h

ic
h
 a

re
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 

re
tu

rn
e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

e
rs

. 

C
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 s

tr
a
y
 d

o
g
s
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 

o
w

n
e

rs
' a

d
d

re
s
s
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
h

a
rg

e
d

 f
o

r.
 

C
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
, 

th
e

 c
h
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a

 

d
o

g
 t

a
k
e
n

 t
o

 t
h
e

 k
e
n

n
e
ls

 (
£
2

5
) 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

v
e

r 
c
o
s
ts

. 

T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
s
 i
n

 

b
o

th
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 s
c
e
n

a
ri
o
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 

g
re

a
te

r 
c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

s
u

b
s
id

y
 

o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 c
h
a

rg
e

s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 a

d
d

e
d
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o
f 

d
e

te
rr

in
g
 f

u
tu

re
 s

tr
a
y
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

. 

It
 i
s
 e

n
v
is

a
g
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
b

e
n

e
fi
t 

a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 a

n
d

 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 c
o

s
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 £
1

0
,0

0
0

. 

  

a
b

o
u

t 
s
tr

a
y
 d

o
g
s
. 

 
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

p
o

lic
y
 w

a
s
 a

im
e
d

 a
t 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 d

o
g
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 
T

h
e

 o
w

n
e

rs
 o

f 
s
tr

a
y
 d

o
g
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 
to

 t
h
e

 c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

C
o
u
n

c
il 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
e

n
 a

 d
o

g
 i
s
 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
b
e
fo

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n
e

r.
 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

3
5
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

R
e
v
ie

w
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
C

ro
s

s
in

g
 P

a
tr

o
ls

 

 C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
 S

c
h
o

o
l 
C

ro
s
s
in

g
 P

a
tr

o
l 

re
v
ie

w
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 r
a
ti
n
g
 

o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

it
e

s
 –

 t
h

o
s
e

 t
o

 r
e
m

a
in

 

b
e

c
a
u

s
e

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 h

ig
h

 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 t

h
o

s
e

 t
h

a
t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 d

e
-

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
. 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

d
 b

y
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
C

ro
s
s
in

g
 P

a
tr

o
l 
p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l 
w

ill
 b

e
 

g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti
o
n

 t
o

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
C

ro
s
s
in

g
 P

a
tr

o
l 
a

t 

a
 s

it
e

 e
v
e

n
 i
f 

it
 i
s
 d

e
e
m

e
d

 l
o

w
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 i
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 d
e

-e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

th
e

 s
it
e

. 

P
la

c
e
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
- 

C
it
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

e
x
p

la
in

e
d
 t

h
a

t 
it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 

re
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 l
o
o

k
 t

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 s
it
e

s
. 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 

g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti
o
n

 t
o

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e

 f
in

a
n

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
f 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
 i
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 b
e

 l
o

w
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

. 
  

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 A

ll
o

tm
e

n
t 

C
o

s
ts

 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 f
o

r 
p
lo

ts
 o

n
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
llo

tm
e
n

t 
s
it
e

s
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
e

s
 s

e
lf
-m

a
n

a
g
e
d

 

a
llo

tm
e
n

ts
).

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 A
llo

tm
e
n

t 
A

c
t 

1
9
2

2
 -

 1
2

 

m
o

n
th

s
’ 
n
o

ti
c
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 w

ill
 a

p
p

ly
. 

P
la

c
e
 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
q
u
e

ri
e

d
 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a
n

n
u
a

l 
c
o

s
t 
o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

T
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

c
h
a

rg
e

 i
s
 £

2
4

 a
 y

e
a

r 
a
n
d

 i
s
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 
fi
g
u

re
 i
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

o
 £

3
8

. 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
- 

C
it
y
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

e
x
p

la
in

e
d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 f

iv
e

 y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
d

is
c
u
s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 m

e
ri
ts

 o
f 

fr
e
e

z
in

g
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

s
 o

p
p

o
s
e

d
 t
o

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
in

fl
a
ti
o
n

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
. 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

3
6
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

A
llo

tm
e
n

t 
h

o
ld

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t

o
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
e

lf
-m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h
 w

o
u

ld
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

m
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

o
v
e

r 
fe

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 w

h
ils

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

to
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

v
ia

 r
e
d

u
c
e

d
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 

c
o

s
ts

. 

 C
it

y
 A

s
s

e
ts

 

 

  
D

e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
n

o
n

 H
R

A
 t

e
n

a
n

te
d

 g
a

ra
g

e
s

 

fr
o

m
 H

R
A

 t
o

 G
e

n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 

 A
 t

e
c
h
n

ic
a
l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
n
c
y
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 t

o
 

tr
a
n

s
fe

r 
g
a

ra
g
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
n

te
d

 b
y
 n

o
n

- 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

te
n

a
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

R
e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n
t 

(H
R

A
) 

to
 t
h

e
 g

e
n
e

ra
l 

fu
n

d
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 b
e

in
g
 

a
c
c
ru

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
fu

n
d
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 

th
e

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 m
a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

. 
 

 T
h
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

ill
 

P
la

c
e
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

3
7
 

 

  
D

e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

re
m

a
in

 u
n

c
h

a
n

g
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

W
o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 H

o
m

e
s
. 

 R
a
ti

o
n

a
li

s
e
 a

ll
 c

a
te

ri
n

g
 a

c
ro

s
s

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
b

y
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 s
in

g
le

 

c
a

te
ri
n

g
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
 o

f 

W
o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 C

o
u
n

c
il.

 

 It
 w

o
u

ld
 e

n
ta

il 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
: 

* 
A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
a

te
ri
n

g
 f

u
n

c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 P
la

c
e

 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 

* 
A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
a

te
ri
n

g
 f

u
n

c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

P
e

o
p

le
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 

* 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ll 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 

fu
n

c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
te

ri
n
g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 

a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

/l
e

a
s
e

s
 

 

P
la

c
e
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 A

s
s
e

ts
 c

o
m

m
e

n
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
h

e
 w

a
s
 

c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
t 
th

a
t 

th
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 P

u
b

li
c
 C

o
n

v
e

n
ie

n
c
e
s

 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 

 

P
la

c
e
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 A

s
s
e

ts
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
a
ff

e
c
t 
th

e
 t

o
ile

t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
B

o
b

 J
o

n
e

s
 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

u
b

. 
 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

3
8
 

 

  
D

e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
h
a

rg
e

s
 t

o
 u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ix
 

p
u

b
lic

 t
o

ile
ts

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 O

n
e

 S
to

p
 T

o
ile

t 

fa
c
ili

ty
 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
q
u
e

ri
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 t
o

 
u

s
e

 t
o

ile
t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 N
ic

k
 A

ld
e

rm
a

n
, 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
- 

C
it
y
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t,

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
is

 t
o

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

 
a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
h
a

rg
e

 f
ro

m
 1

0
p
 t

o
 2

0
p
. 
T

h
e

 p
la

n
s
 

in
v
o

lv
e

 t
h

e
 c

lo
s
u

re
 o

f 
to

ile
t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
A

s
h

m
o
re

 P
a

rk
 d

u
e

 t
o

 
lo

w
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

s
it
e

s
. 
T

h
e
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

in
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 t
o

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
a

b
o
u

t 
v
a

n
d

a
lis

m
 t
h

a
t 
a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 w

a
s
 m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 b

y
 

a
 s

h
o
p

 o
w

n
e

r 
o
n

 t
h
e

 s
it
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 e

x
p

la
in

 t
h

e
 l
o

w
 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
. 
T

h
e

 p
a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e
n

te
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 f
a

c
ili

ty
 i
s
 

a
n

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

s
s
e

t 
a

n
d

 i
s
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t
h

e
 s

h
o

p
s
 t
o

 
a

tt
ra

c
t 
p

e
o
p

le
. 

 C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 A

s
s
e

ts
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 r
e
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
in

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 p
a
n

e
l.
 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

3
9
 

 C
it

y
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

C
a
p

it
a
li

s
e

 t
h

in
 s

u
rf

a
c
in

g
 o

f 

c
a

rr
ia

g
e
w

a
y
s

 

 C
h
a

n
g
e

 i
n

 f
in

a
n

c
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 

th
in

 s
u

rf
a

c
in

g
 o

f 
c
a

rr
ia

g
e

w
a

y
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
, 

fr
o
m

 r
e
v
e

n
u
e

 t
o

 c
a
p

it
a

l,
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
 

re
v
e

n
u

e
 s

a
v
in

g
. 

 

P
la

c
e
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

C
a
r 

P
a

rk
in

g
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 b
u

d
g
e

te
d

 c
a

r 
p
a

rk
in

g
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 

b
a

s
e
d

 o
n
 l
e

v
e

ls
 e

a
rn

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
4
 -

 2
0
1

5
 

P
la

c
e
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

L
a
n

d
s

c
a

p
e

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 L

a
n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 a
n

d
 

E
c
o

lo
g
y
 f

e
e

s
 s

e
c
u

re
d

 f
o

r 
2
0

1
6

/1
7

. 

P
la

c
e
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

R
e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 

c
h

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 L

e
is

u
re

 P
F

I 
s

c
h

e
m

e
 

 W
o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 S

w
im

m
in

g
 a

n
d

 F
it
n

e
s
s
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 i
s
 a

 l
e

is
u
re

 P
F

I 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

P
la

c
e
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

4
0
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

p
a

y
s
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 

fo
r 

th
e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 c

e
n

tr
e
. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
fi
le

 a
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 

a
g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 P

F
I 
p

ro
v
id

e
r.

 T
h
e

re
 w

ill
 

b
e

 n
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 c
u
rr

e
n

t 
le

v
e

l 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

  C
it

y
 A

s
s

e
ts

 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

 M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 –
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

in
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s

fu
l 

g
ra

n
t 

b
id

 

 R
e

-p
ro

fi
le

 p
ru

d
e

n
ti
a

l 
b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
a

t 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 t
h
e

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
b

id
 f
o

r 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 C
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 F
u
n

d
 

m
e

a
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

s
o
m

e
 p

ru
d
e

n
ti
a

l 
b

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 

c
a

n
 b

e
 d

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
e

 

P
la

c
e
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 A

s
s
e

ts
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l.
 

 N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

4
1
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 c
a

p
it
a

l 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 w
ill

 r
e
m

a
in

 t
h
e

 

s
a

m
e
 b

u
t 

b
y
 d

e
fe

rr
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
ru

d
e
n

ti
a

l 

b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 w

e
 c

a
n

 s
a

v
e

 o
n

 i
n
te

re
s
t 

c
h

a
rg

e
s
. 

A
c

c
e

le
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 i

n
 F

a
c

il
it

ie
s

 

M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 r
e

-p
ro

fi
lin

g
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

th
e

 o
u

tt
u

rn
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

4
/1

5
. 
It

 i
s
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t
o

 b
ri
n

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 f
o

r 
2
0

1
7
/1

8
 a

n
d

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 w

a
s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 t
it
le

d
 "

R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
F

M
 

fu
n

c
ti
o
n

" 

 

P
la

c
e
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 A

s
s
e

ts
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l.
 

 N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

 

R
e
p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
M

e
a

ls
 I

n
c

o
m

e
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 

 S
c
h

e
d
u

le
 o

f 
R

a
te

 p
ri
c
e
s
 t

o
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 t
o

 

o
n

ly
 b

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 2

.5
%

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

6
/1

7
 

o
n

w
a

rd
s
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 d

u
e

 t
o
 

P
la

c
e
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

it
y
 A

s
s
e

ts
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
a

n
d

 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
 c

h
a

rg
e

 d
ir
e

c
t 

to
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
o

n
 p

u
p

ils
. 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e

r 
e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
t 
a

 s
m

a
ll 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
h

a
rg

e
. 

 N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

4
2
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

th
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
a
l 
In

fa
n

t 
F

re
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
M

e
a

l 

(U
IF

S
M

) 
a
n

d
 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

s
im

ila
r 

m
e
a

l 
n
u

m
b

e
rs

 f
o

r 
2
0

1
6

/1
7

. 

P
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t
h

is
 c

a
n
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 d
o

n
e

 

a
s
s
u

m
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
U

IF
S

M
 

(s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

s
 i
n

it
ia

lly
 a

 2
 y

e
a

r 

p
la

n
).

 P
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t
h

is
 i
s
 c

h
a

rg
e

 t
o

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 d

ir
e

c
t;

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

l 

g
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

ie
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 

to
 p

u
p

ils
. 

   



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

4
3
 

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

G
ro

w
th

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
re

s
s

u
re

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t 

V
ib

ra
n

t 
&

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 C
it

y
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

W
a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 D

is
p
o

s
a

l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

/C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

in
fl
a

ti
o

n
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

in
fl
a
ti
o

n
. 

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 o

ff
s
e
t 

b
y
 a

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 

G
ro

u
n

d
s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 S

tr
e
e
t 

S
c
e
n

e
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ly
 o

ff
s
e

t 
b

y
 a

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
o
f 

£
8
3

,0
0

0
 

C
a
rb

o
n

 R
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
- 

B
la

c
k
 C

o
u
n

tr
y
 

L
e

is
u
re

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

L
e

is
u
re

 P
F

I 
u

ti
lit

y
 p

a
s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
c
o

s
ts

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o

 r
is

e
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
s
ts

 
n

a
ti
o
n

a
lly

. 
 T

h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
s
ts

 a
re

 n
o

t 
a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

r 
u
s
e

 o
r 

a
n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

T
o

ta
l 

V
ib

ra
n

t 
&

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 C
it

y
 

 

   
 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

4
4
 

 C
o

n
fi

d
e
n

t 
C

a
p

a
b

le
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 2
.1

2
.1

5
 

 R
e
s

o
u

rc
e
s
 

 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 –

 

a
c

c
e

le
ra

te
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 

 A
c
c
e

le
ra

te
 t

h
e

 m
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
 u

s
in

g
 "

lif
t 

a
n

d
 s

h
if
t"

 m
e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
, 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 

e
n

d
 t
o

 e
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 r

e
-e

n
g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 

a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
. 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
a

s
k
e
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
 e

x
p

la
n

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 “
lif

t 
a

n
d

 
s
h

if
t”

 m
e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
. 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 

e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 t

e
rm

 r
e
fe

rs
 t
o
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
b

ri
n

g
in

g
 i
n

 b
a

c
k
ro

o
m

 f
u

n
c
ti
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 a

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
a
 p

e
ri
o
d

 o
f 

ti
m

e
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 

to
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
m

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
a

n
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
n

e
e
d

s
. 

S
u

e
 H

a
n

d
y
, 

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

g
a

v
e

 e
x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
e

re
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 h

a
d

 
b

e
e
n

 m
a
d
e

 t
o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h
e

m
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
b

y
 

re
m

o
v
in

g
 u

n
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 s

ta
g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
.T

h
is

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 l
e
d

 t
o
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 a
n
d

 l
o

w
e

r 
a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 c
o

s
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il.

 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c

o
u

n
c
il
 t

a
x
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 

d
is

c
o

u
n

ts
 

 (i
) 

T
o

 r
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 w

it
h

 a
 

s
in

g
le

 p
e

rs
o
n

 d
is

c
o
u
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e
m

o
v
e

 w
h

e
re

 

th
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

re
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 r
e
d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
fr

a
u

d
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
in

g
 

n
e

w
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 s
h

a
ri
n

g
 o

f 
in

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

. 
T

h
e
 

e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 d

is
c
o
u

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

fi
rs

t 
2
1

 d
a

y
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

4
5
 

 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 

(i
i)
 T

o
 e

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

is
c
re

ti
o
n

a
ry

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 

d
is

c
o
u

n
t 

g
iv

e
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 

2
1

 d
a

y
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 i
s
 e

m
p

ty
. 

W
o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 H

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

v
o

id
s
. 

T
h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
e

m
p

ti
o
n

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

y
 i
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 n

e
e
d

s
 m

a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

 d
o

n
e

 t
o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
. 
 

 T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
q
u
e

ri
e

d
 t

h
e

 r
e
a

s
o

n
 f
o

r 
n
o

t 
in

tr
o
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 

p
o

lic
y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 e
a

rl
ie

r.
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 t
h

re
e
 y

e
a

rs
 a

g
o

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
is

 i
s
s
u

e
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

 c
o
n

s
e
n

s
u

s
 t
h

a
t 
2

1
 

d
a

y
s
 w

a
s
 a

 r
e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 t
im

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 t

o
 g

ra
n

t 
a

 
d

is
c
o
u

n
t 

g
iv

e
n

 f
o

r 
a

n
 e

m
p

ty
 p

ro
p
e

rt
y
. 

 T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
q
u
e

ri
e

d
 i
f 

th
e

 p
o

lic
y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 a
p

p
lie

s
 t

o
 

c
h

a
ri
ti
e

s
 o

r 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
b
o

d
ie

s
 o

w
in

g
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
. 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
c
h

a
ri
ti
e

s
 p

a
y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 n
o

t 
a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

 e
it
h
e

r 
a
 

d
is

c
o
u

n
t 

b
e
tw

e
e

n
 o

f 
8
0

%
 t

o
 1

0
0

%
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 

c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
. 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
IC

T
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

N
o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

4
6
 

 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

 

R
e
m

o
v
a

l 
o
f 

le
g
a

c
y
 p

ri
n

ti
n

g
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
s
k
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
, 

h
a

s
 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

a
n

d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 c
o

s
ts

. 

  E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
a

im
s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 c
o

s
ts

 a
n
d

 

d
e

liv
e

r 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
h

o
w

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
o

n
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 b

a
n

k
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
t,
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

o
f 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
c
a

rd
s
, 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
ri
n

te
d

 p
a

y
s
lip

s
, 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
re

q
u

is
it
io

n
in

g
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 

c
e

n
tr

a
lis

in
g
 a

n
d

 r
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

in
v
o

ic
e
 

s
c
a

n
n

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

n
 

in
-h

o
u

s
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
. 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

N
o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

 

R
e
v
is

e
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 t

o
 P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

 R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a

m
 t
o

 a
 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

. 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

N
o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

4
7
 

 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 r

e
s
id

u
a

l 
fr

a
u

d
 r

e
s

o
u

rc
e

 (
w

it
h

in
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

) 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

th
e

 B
e

n
e
fi
t 

F
ra

u
d

 

In
v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 T

e
a
m

 t
o

 t
h

e
 D

W
P

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 S

in
g
le

 F
ra

u
d

 I
n

v
e
s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 t
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il'

s
 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
fr

a
u

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
w

e
 c

a
n

 m
e
e

t 
o

u
r 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
fr

a
u

d
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 c

e
n

tr
a
l 
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

a
n

ti
-f

ra
u
d

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e

m
a

in
 u

n
d
e

r 

re
v
ie

w
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 

th
e

 c
a

s
e

. 

  

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 C
h
a

ir
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

N
o
 

p
a

n
e

l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

 

C
h

a
rg

e
s

 f
o

r 
la

te
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
in

v
o

ic
e

s
 

 C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
d

o
 n

o
t 
p

a
y
 

in
v
o

ic
e
s
 o

n
 t

im
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 l
a

te
 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
fe

e
s
. 

T
h
e

s
e

 f
e

e
s
 a

re
 s

e
t 

in
 l
a

w
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e

 a
n

 

in
te

re
s
t 

c
h

a
rg

e
 (

8
%

 p
lu

s
 B

a
n

k
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 

b
a

s
e

 r
a
te

) 
p
lu

s
 a

 f
ix

e
d

 f
e

e
 v

a
ry

in
g
 f

ro
m

 £
4

0
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 T

h
e

 p
a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

h
a

v
e

 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
e

d
 e

a
rl
ie

r.
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 
c
o

s
t 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 c
h

a
s
in

g
 l
a

te
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

in
v
o

ic
e
s
 

w
h

ic
h
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

a
n

y
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

F
u
rt

h
e

r 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f

in
a

n
c
e

 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 a

b
le

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h
e

 
ta

s
k
. 
T

h
e

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

A
g
re

s
s
o

 s
y
s
te

m
 h

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

4
8
 

 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

 

to
 £

1
0

0
 d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
u
p
o

n
 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n
t 

o
v
e

rd
u

e
. 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
o

s
t 
to

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 c

h
a

s
in

g
 l
a

te
 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
a

k
in

g
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
. 

U
n
d

e
r 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
th

e
 f

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

le
v
y
in

g
 

a
 l
a

te
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
c
h

a
rg

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 

a
 w

a
y
 o

f 
p

ro
m

p
ti
n

g
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
o
n

 t
im

e
, 

a
v
o

id
in

g
 c

o
s
tl
y
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 a

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 

  

it
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 l
a

te
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

in
v
o

ic
e
. 

- 

  G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

ta
ff

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

 A
 £

9
0

,0
0

0
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

b
u
d

g
e

t 
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 

w
h

ic
h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
: 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
llr

 P
a

u
l 
S

w
e

e
t,

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
g
a

v
e

 a
n

 o
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 c
h
a

n
g
e

. 
C

a
b

in
e
t 

M
e

m
b
e

r 
fo

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

s
 a

n
d

 
n

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 w

e
re

 e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
. 
T

h
e

 p
a
n

e
l 
w

e
re

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

4
9
 

 - 
T

e
rm

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 i
n
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
A

d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n

's
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(£
3

0
,0

0
0

) 

- 
R

e
m

o
v
a

l 
o
f 

th
e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 t

h
re

e
 y

e
a

r 

'G
ro

w
 y

o
u

r 
o
w

n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r'
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

in
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

w
h

ic
h
 c

e
a

s
e

s
 i
n

 

2
0

1
5

-1
6

 (
£
5

0
,0

0
0

) 

- 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
(£

1
0
,0

0
0

).
 

a
d

v
is

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

£
9
0

,0
0

0
 w

a
s
 

e
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
o
f 

1
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
b
u

d
g
e

t.
 

 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 S

e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e

e
d

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 
a

 

le
a

n
e

r,
 f

la
tt
e

r 
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 b
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 M

id
d

le
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
p

o
s
ts

. 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

o
u

ld
 a

ff
e

c
t 
p
o

s
ts

 i
n
 m

id
d

le
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 
T

h
e

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
w

a
n

ti
n

g
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 

le
a

n
e

r 
a

n
d
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

d
 h

o
w

 w
e

ll 
th

e
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 h

a
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n
d
e

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

. 
 T

h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
q
u
e

ri
e

d
 i
f 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 h

a
d
 l
e

d
 t
o

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
re

p
o

rt
e
d

 
s
tr

e
s
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 i
lln

e
s
s
e

s
. 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 i
s
s
u
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 r
e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 d

e
m

a
n
d

s
. 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
a

 
p

a
p
e

r 
p
ro

p
o

s
in

g
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
ic

k
n
e

s
s
 

a
b

s
e
n

c
e

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 n

e
x
t 

w
e

e
k
. 

 T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

, 
R

e
d

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 
 

5
0
 

 

s
e

n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n
d

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 w
a

s
 

im
p

a
c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 e

ff
o

rt
s
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 
T

h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

in
te

ri
m

 p
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 
to

 w
h

ic
h
 t

h
is

 
h

a
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
. 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
o

u
tl
in

e
d

 t
h
e

 b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 
in

te
ri
m

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

ir
 r

o
le

 i
n
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d
 t

h
a

t 
c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t

o
 

in
te

rn
a

l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 w

e
re

 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
 l
e

a
n
e

r 
a

n
d

 f
la

tt
e

r 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
s
im

p
ly

 a
 c

o
s
t 

c
u

tt
in

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
. 

 T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
re

p
e
a

te
d

 c
o
n

c
e

rn
 a

b
o
u

t 
re

ta
in

in
g
 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

k
e

e
p

in
g
 i
t.

 C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 
e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 r
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 

it
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
. 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

5
1
 

 R
e
s

o
u

rc
e
s
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

N
e
t 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 O

n
-c

o
s
t 

S
a

v
in

g
s

 d
u

e
 t

o
 

c
le

a
ri

n
g

 s
tr

a
in

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 o
w

in
g

 t
o

 W
e
s

t 

M
id

la
n

d
s
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 

 A
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 C
a
b

in
e

t 
o

n
 2

2
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
5

, 
a

s
 a

 

re
s
u

lt
 o

f 
a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
4
/1

5
, 

in
s
te

a
d
 

o
f 

s
p

re
a

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

p
e
n

s
io

n
 s

tr
a
in

 o
v
e

r 
a
 

p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
u
p

 t
o

 t
h

re
e

 y
e

a
rs

, 
a

ll 
s
u
m

s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

th
e

 W
e
s
t 
M

id
la

n
d

s
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

p
e

n
s
io

n
 s

tr
a
in

 w
e

re
 f

u
lly

 a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
in

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
. 
T

h
is

 e
n

a
b

le
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 s

e
c
u

re
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 

lia
b

ili
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 u

p
 t
o

 2
0

1
7
/1

8
. 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

e
n

tr
o

 L
e

v
y

 

 It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 

th
e

 C
e
n

tr
o

 l
e
v
y
 i
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
v
is

e
d

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t.
 

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
fo

llo
w

s
 a

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 l
e

a
d

e
rs

 
o
f 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 l
e

v
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

re
d

u
c
e
d

. 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

e
n

s
io

n
s

 c
o

s
ts

 

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

N
o
 p

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

5
2
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
ts

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 

fo
rm

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
. 

    T
re

a
s

u
ry

 M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s

a
v
in

g
s

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

M
in

im
u

m
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 t
o

: 

- 
im

p
ro

v
e

 r
e
tu

rn
 o

n
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

- 
re

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 M
R

P
 p

o
lic

y
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
n

g
 a

s
s
e
ts

 

- 
re

v
ie

w
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 c

o
s
t 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
s
 

(i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 s
h

o
rt

e
r 

te
rm

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
) 

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h
e

 
b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 a

ls
o
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 
tr

e
a

s
u

ry
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
te

a
m

 w
h

o
 l
o

o
k
 f
o

r 
o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

y
 t

a
k
in

g
 

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
ra

te
s
. 
T

h
e
 t

a
s
k
 i
s
 

c
o

m
p

lic
a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

u
n

c
e

rt
a

in
ty

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 

d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
in

te
re

s
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 r

a
te

s
. 

T
h
e

 l
o

w
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 

ra
te

s
 p

re
s
e

n
ts

 a
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 i
n

 m
a
x
im

is
in

g
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 o

n
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

fu
n

d
s
. 

 C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 h

is
 

th
a

n
k
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
tr

e
a

s
u

ry
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
te

a
m

 
in

 l
o
o

k
in

g
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 f

in
a

n
c
e

s
 

 

R
e
v
e

n
u

e
s

 a
n

d
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 –

 M
a

x
im

is
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h
e

 
b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
T

h
e

 p
a
n

e
l 

q
u

e
ri
e

d
 i
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
re

la
te

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
a
s
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 

5
3
 

 D
e
ta

il
s
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 b

e
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
t 

is
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e

 n
e
t 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
6
/1

7
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
im

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d

it
. 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

is
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
w

a
s
 

u
n

re
la

te
d

. 

 

A
c

c
e

le
ra

te
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s

 a
n

d
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 t

e
a

m
 

re
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

 T
o
 b

ri
n

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
7

/1
8
 t

o
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 

th
e

 f
in

a
l 
e

le
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

b
y
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 R
e
v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e
fi
ts

 

te
a
m

. 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

N
o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

   



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 C
 

 
2

0
1
6

/1
7
 D

ra
ft

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
s

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s

 

5
4
 

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

G
ro

w
th

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
re

s
s

u
re

 
2

0
1
6

/1
7
 

£
0

0
0
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
 

P
a

y
 A

w
a

rd
 

1
,3

3
7
 

P
e

n
s
io

n
 

6
,4

1
1
 

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
In

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
6

7
2
 

P
a

y
 I

n
c
re

m
e

n
ts

  
1

,2
4
8
 

B
ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 A
ir
p

o
rt

 D
iv

id
e

n
d

s
 

(1
3

2
) 

T
re

a
s
u

ry
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 M

in
im

u
m

 
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

 
2

,3
9
8
 

W
e
s
t 

M
id

la
n

d
s
 I
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 L
e

v
y
 

o
ff

s
e

t 
b

y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
1

3
4
 

A
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 r

is
e
 i
n

 n
o

n
-d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 

1
4

5
 

A
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 r

is
e
 i
n

 e
n

e
rg

y
 p

ri
c
e

s
 

1
6

2
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
C

a
re

 F
u
n

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d
. 

A
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
u

m
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 i
n

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

p
ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

o
v
e

rs
p
e

n
d

s
 

1
,3

0
0
 

F
u
tu

re
W

o
rk

s
 -

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 a

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
o

n
 1

0
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 o
ff

s
e

t 
b
y
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
a
m

e
 

a
m

o
u

n
t 
in

 2
0

1
7

/1
8

 a
n
d
 2

0
1
8

/1
9

 

7
1

6
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 C

o
s
ts

 o
f 
fo

rm
e

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 o

ff
s
e
t 

b
y
 a

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
1

7
6
 

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 A
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
2

0
0
 

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
1

4
,7

6
7
 

 



 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 P

U
B

L
IC

 
 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
[N

O
T

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
L

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

D
] 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 C
 

 
2

0
1
6

/1
7
 D

ra
ft

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
s

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s

 

5
5
 

    T
h
e

 p
a

n
e

l 
q
u
e

ri
e

d
 t
h

e
 a

s
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
a

b
le

. 
T

h
e
 p

a
n

e
l 
w

e
re

 a
d

v
is

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 g

ro
w

th
 f

ig
u

re
 f

o
r 

p
a

y
 a

w
a

rd
 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
n

 a
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
 o

f 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
n

e
g
o

ti
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
a

 l
ik

e
ly

 1
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

. 
C

a
b

in
e
t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 t

h
a

t 
c
a

re
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

ill
 f

a
c
e

 i
n

 p
a

y
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
liv

in
g
 w

a
g
e

. 
 

 T
h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

u
tu

m
n

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
is

 s
ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
. 
T

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o
 t

h
e

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 i
s
 a

 c
a
u

s
e

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
. 

  

 





This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 1 of 4 

 

Recommendation(s) for action or decision: 

 

The Scrutiny Board is recommended to review performance of the corporate performance 

indicators for quarter two 2015/16 and suggest which indicators (if any) should be referred to 

the appropriate Scrutiny Panel for further investigation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Agenda Item No:  6 

 

Scrutiny Board 
15 December 2015 

  
Report title Corporate Performance Report – Quarter Two 

2015/16 
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Councillor Roger Lawrence 
Leader 

Wards affected All 

Accountable director Keith Ireland, Managing Director 

Originating service Transformation 

Accountable employee(s) Gareth Payne 

Tel 

Email 

Policy Officer 

01902 554103 

gareth.payne@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Strategic Executive Board (SEB) 

Cabinet (Performance Management) 

Panel 

27 October 2015 

23 November 2015 



[PROTECT] 

 

 
Report Pages 

Page 2 of 4 

 

1.0  Purpose 

 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to update the board on the performance of the corporate 

performance indicators, for quarter two, published in the Council’s Corporate Plan for 

2015/16. 

 

2.0  Background 

 

2.1.  The Council’s planning and performance management approach for 2015/16 is focussed 

 on the delivery of the Corporate Plan, which simplifies our priorities into ‘Stronger 

 Economy’ (Place), ‘Stronger Communities’ (People) which is supported by a ‘Confident 

 Capable Council’ (Corporate) in a ‘plan on a page’.   

 

2.2.  The Corporate Plan is published with 71 performance indicators included and the targets 

 that the Council aims to achieve by the end of March 2016. These indicators are broken 

 down by the following corporate plan themes: 

 

 Place (Stronger Economy) – 25 Indicators  

 People (Stronger Communities) – 33 Indicators 

 Confidence, Capable Council – 13 Indicators 

 

2.3.  This report also includes performance as at quarter one for those indicators included in 

 the Council’s Corporate Plan, however only includes the actual at the end of that period 

 (June 2015). A full quarter one report was not submitted to Scrutiny Board on 3 

 November, as scheduled, as this would have not contained the most up-to date 

 information available at the time. However, the full quarter one report is available upon 

 request. 

 

3.0  Changes to the report structure and content 

 

3.1.  The format of the corporate performance report has been revised for 2015/16, to make it 

 easier for the report to be interpreted. These changes also address issues identified (or 

 that caused confusion) previously. 

 

3.2.  The corporate performance report is attached as appendix 1 

 

4.0  Summary of performance 

 

4.1.  Data for 53 (75%) indicators have been reported in quarter two and are included in this 

 report. The remaining 18 (25%) indicators are reported at more infrequent intervals and 

 will be reported once data becomes available. 

  

4.2.  Twenty-Six (37%) measures have been reported as green. These measures have 

 met or exceeded the set target for this quarter. However, the following measures have 

 exceeded their target significantly (greater than 10% of the target) and could be 

 highlighted as ‘good news’ stories for the Council. 



[PROTECT] 

 

 
Report Pages 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 Percentage of customers satisfied with street cleaning 

 Number of financial health checks undertaken 

 Number of families who have been identified and with whom work has 

commenced as part of the second phase of the Troubled Families programme 

 Number of referrals made to Channel Panel (Prevent Agenda) 

 Percentage of calls to Customer Services resolved at 1st contact 

 

4.3. Six (8%) measures have been reported as amber. These measures have failed to meet 

or exceed to set target for this quarter, but have not exceeded the acceptable tolerance 

level. Until these meet or exceed their target (i.e. reported green), directorates should 

now employ more rigorous performance management arrangements on these measures. 

 

4.4. Seven (10%) measures have been reported as red. These measures did not meet the 

set target for this quarter. A number of these were specifically discussed at Cabinet 

(Performance Management) Panel, including: 

 

 Rate of alcohol related emergency admissions (under 75 years per 100,000 

population)  

 The indicator was described, as well as some of the key issues that have been 

 learnt regarding alcohol harm in the city. It was agreed that local data would be 

 used in future updates to indicate direction of travel. 

 

 Rate of young people involved in violent crime (with injury) (per 10,000 

population aged 10 – 17) : Victims 

  A discussion was had about the way that this indicator was presented. The figure 

  is a cumulative of quarters one and two, but this does not show the marked  

  improvement shown in the figures specifically for quarter two.  

 

4.5.  The Decent Homes measure in the Corporate Plan (WCPI012) has been removed from 

the Corporate Plan Report (and subsequently will be removed from the Corporate Plan), 

following the end of decent homes funding and thus large scale decent homes 

 programme of works. New performance measures to monitor decent / non-decent 

 homes will be introduced as part of the 2016/17 Corporate Plan refresh. 

 

4.6.  Furthermore, fourteen (20%) indicators have had data reported this quarter, but have not 

 yet had targets supplied. This may be due to being the first year of data collection 

 (baseline year). Targets will need to be confirmed for these indicators in the future, to 

 allow an assessment of performance to be made in the future. 

 

5.0  Financial implications 

 

5.1.  Monitoring of the performance indicators highlighted in this report is integral to the 

 monitoring of the budget.  Where there are areas of underperformance, there is often a 

 direct impact on the budget and medium term financial strategy.  The impact is assessed 

 and monitored on a case by case basis and fed in to the budget process. 

 



[PROTECT] 

 

 
Report Pages 

Page 4 of 4 

[GE/30112015/E]  

 

6.0  Legal implications 

 

6.1.  There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 

 

[TS/30112015/P] 

 

7.0  Equalities implications 

 

7.1.  Most of the performance measures in this report have equalities implications, however 

 there are no equality implications relating to this report. 

 

8.0  Environmental implications 

 

8.1.  Some of the indicators in this report may have implications for the environment, however 

 there are no implications arising directly from this report. 

 

9.0  Human resources implications 
 

9.1.  Some of the indicators in this report may have implications for human resources, 

 however there are no implications arising directly from this report. 

 

10.0 Corporate landlord implications 

 

10.1. Some of the indicators in this report may have implications for the Council’s property 

 portfolio, however there are no implications arising directly from this report. 

 

11.0 Schedule of background papers 

 

11.1. Wolverhampton City Council’s Corporate Plan 2015/16 

 Corporate Performance Report – Quarter One 

 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

1
 o

f 
4
1

 

        

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

  

                

T
h

is
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 m

e
a
s
u

re
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e

 
g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

. 

T
h

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 d
e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

h
e
 

s
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 

m
e

a
s
u

re
, 

a
s
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
. 

T
h

is
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 t
a

rg
e
t 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
 

(u
n
le

s
s
 s

ta
te

d
),

 a
s
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 i
n
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
. 

T
h

is
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 l
a

te
s
t 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

ig
u
re

 (
if
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

).
 

T
h

e
 R

e
d

, 
A

m
b

e
r 

a
n
d
 G

re
e
n

 (
R

A
G

) 

ra
ti
n
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
 m

e
a

s
u
re

. 

T
h

is
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

ig
u
re

 (
if
 

a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

).
 T

h
e
 R

e
d
, 

A
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d

 
G

re
e
n
 (

R
A

G
) 

ra
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 D
ir
e

c
ti
o
n

 
o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

. 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

2
 o

f 
4
1

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 

L
in

k
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

 
B

a
s
e

li
n

e
 

 
E

n
d

 o
f 

Y
e

a
r 

T
a

rg
e
t 

  

Q
1

 A
c

tu
a

l 
 

Q
2

 A
c

tu
a

l 
Q

2
 T

a
rg

e
t 

R
A

G
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

P
ro

m
o
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 
e

n
a

b
lin

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 

lif
e

s
ty

le
s
 

R
a

te
 o

f 
a

lc
o

h
o

l 
re

la
te

d
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

u
n
d
e

r 
7

5
 y

e
a
rs

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
) 

(W
C

P
I0

2
7

) 

7
8
2
 

(2
0
1

2
/1

3
) 

T
o
 

s
ta

b
ili

s
e

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

8
5
1
 

(2
0
1

3
/1

4
) 

<
7

8
2
 




P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 

P
a

g
e

 2
0

 

P
ro

m
o
ti
n

g
 

In
d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e
 f
o

r 
O

ld
e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
c
a

re
r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
(W

C
P

I0
3
0
) 

1
1
2
4
 

1
3
5
0

 
1
2
7
 

3
7
9
 

6
7
5
 




P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 

P
a

g
e

 2
1
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a
rd

in
g

 
P

e
o
p

le
 i
n
 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 
S

it
u

a
ti
o

n
s
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o

 A
d

u
lt
s
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a
rd

in
g

 w
h

e
re

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 
is

 a
n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 f
a

c
to

r 
(W

C
P

I0
4
1

) 
1

0
.4

%
 

1
2
%

 
9

.6
%

 
7

.2
%

 
1

2
.0

%
 




P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 

P
a

g
e

 2
7

 

C
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 a
n
d
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

to
 P

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 B

e
s
t 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d

 
s
p

e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 u
n

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 

b
a
la

n
c
e

s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n
 8

%
 o

f 
b

u
d
g

e
t 

s
h

a
re

 (
W

C
P

I0
4
9
) 

4
0
%

 
2
0
%

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

6
0
%

 
(4

6
) 

2
0
%

 



P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 

P
a

g
e

 3
1

 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 s
e

c
o

n
d
a

ry
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 u
n

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 

g
re

a
te

r 
th

a
n

 5
%

 o
f 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

s
h

a
re

 
(W

C
P

I0
5
0
) 

1
2
%

 
0
%

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

3
3
%

 
(2

) 
0
%

 



P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 

P
a

g
e

 3
1

 

K
e

e
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 

S
a

fe
 

R
a

te
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 
v
io

le
n
t 

c
ri
m

e
 (

w
it
h

 i
n
ju

ry
) 

(p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 a
g

e
d
 1

0
-1

7
) 

: 
V

ic
ti
m

s
 

(W
C

P
I0

5
4

a
) 

3
6
1
 

T
o
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 

3
5
 

(8
3
) 

6
0
 

(1
4
1

) 
4
9
 

(1
1
6

) 



P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 

P
a

g
e

 3
3

 

 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

3
 o

f 
4
1

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 

L
in

k
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

 
B

a
s
e

li
n

e
 

 
E

n
d

 o
f 

Y
e

a
r 

T
a

rg
e
t 

  

Q
1

 A
c

tu
a

l 
 

Q
2

 A
c

tu
a

l 
Q

2
 T

a
rg

e
t 

R
A

G
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

C
o

n
fi
d

e
n
t,
 C

a
p
a

b
le

 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o

u
r 

e
lig

ib
le

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

(W
C

P
I0

6
3
) 

7
3
.4

%
 

1
0
0
%

 
N

o
t 

A
v
a

ila
b
le

  
5
3
%

 
1
0
0
%

 


 
P

le
a
s
e

 s
e

e
 

P
a

g
e

 3
8
 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

4
 o

f 
4
1

 

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 R
e
p

o
rt

, 
b

y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 T

h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 A

im
. 
D

a
ta

 f
o

r 
5
3
 (

7
5
%

) 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

re
p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

tw
o
 a

n
d

 a
re

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
m

in
d
e

r 
1
8
 (

2
5
%

) 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

re
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 a
t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fr

e
q

u
e
n

t 
in

te
rv

a
ls

 a
n
d

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 o

n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 
b

e
c
o

m
e

s
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

. 
 

 
T

o
ta

l 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

G
re

e
n

 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

A
m

b
e
r 

A
m

b
e
rs

 
R

e
d

 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

O
th

e
r 

P
la

c
e

 (
S

tr
o

n
g

e
r 

E
c

o
n

o
m

y
) 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 D

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 c
o

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

a
n
t 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 A

n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

w
h

e
re

 n
e
w

 a
n
d

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t
h

ri
v
e

 

 
 

 
 

 

 P
e

o
p

le
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 t

h
e
 s

k
ill

s
 t

o
 g

e
t 
a

n
d

 k
e

e
p

 w
o

rk
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

P
e

o
p

le
 (

S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
) 

 

 
 

 
 

 

  
P

e
o
p

le
 l
iv

e
 l
o
n

g
e

r,
 h

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

liv
e

s
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
A

d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

re
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 i
n

 t
im

e
s
 o

f 
n

e
e

d
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
P

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 f
u

ll 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

 
 

 
 

 

C
o

n
fi

d
e
n

t 
C

a
p

a
b

le
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 (

S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

) 

 
 

 
 

 

 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

5
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

0
1
 

A
m

o
u
n

t 
o
f 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 v

e
h
ic

le
 f

le
e
t 

2
,9

4
7

,5
1

1
 

k
g

s
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
: 

7
4
2
,4

8
5
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 




N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
: 

1
,4

7
1

,7
9

7
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 b
a

s
e
lin

e
 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 h

o
w

 m
u

c
h
 

fu
e
l 
is

 u
s
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 f

le
e
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 

u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 
c
a

p
tu

ri
n
g

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 g

re
y
 f

le
e
t 
a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 h

ir
e

d
 i
n

 b
y
 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 b

a
s
e

lin
e
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 m
a

rg
in

a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

0
.7

%
 i
n

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 d

u
e

 t
o
 h

ig
h

e
r 

Q
1

 l
e
v
e

ls
 a

lt
h

o
u
g

h
 t

h
e
 

tr
e

n
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o
n

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

w
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

n
d

 o
n
 

ta
rg

e
t.

 

W
C

P
I0

0
2
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
u

s
to

m
e
rs

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
tr

e
e
t 
c
le

a
n

in
g

 

5
5
%

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
5
 




7
1
.7

%
 

(1
2
9

) 
5
5
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

u
b
lic

 R
e

a
lm

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 J

u
n
e
/J

u
ly

. 
 1

8
0
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h

e
 

s
u

rv
e

y
 a

n
d

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

ls
 w

e
re

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 5
0
-6

0
 p

e
rc

e
n
t 
b
a

s
e
d

 o
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r’

s
 

re
s
u
lt
s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 w
a

s
 7

1
.7

%
 a

n
d
 a

 
b

ig
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r'
s
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
5

3
%

. 
T

h
is

 f
o

llo
w

s
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n

c
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

o
p
ti
m

is
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 s

tr
e

e
t 
c
le

a
n

in
g
 &

 g
ro

u
n

d
s
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 r

o
u
te

s
, 
ro

u
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
. 

T
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 
s
u

c
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
 S

p
ri
n

g
 C

le
a
n

, 
S

u
m

m
e
r 

C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 

a
n
d

 t
h

is
 y

e
a
r’
s
 C

le
a
n

e
r,

 G
re

e
n

e
r,

 B
e

tt
e

r 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

ra
is

e
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

c
le

a
n

in
g

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 v

ia
 

W
o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 T

o
d
a

y
/p

re
s
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o

 
e

n
g

a
g

e
d
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p

s
 /
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 /
 

s
p

o
n

s
o
rs

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 c

le
a
n

 u
p

 e
v
e

n
ts

  
a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

c
it
y
. 

  



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

6
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

0
3
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
u

s
to

m
e
r 

s
tr

e
e
t 

c
le

a
n

in
g

 e
n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 

re
s
p
o

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 w
it
h

in
 s

e
t 
ti
m

e
fr

a
m

e
 

9
4
%

 
9
4
%

 
(1

,1
7

7
) 

9
4
%

 


 
9
6
%

 
(1

,2
7

6
) 

9
4
%

 


 
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

P
u

b
lic

 R
e

a
lm

 r
e

c
e
iv

e
s
 a

 l
a

rg
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
tr

e
e
t 
c
le

a
n

in
g
 

re
q

u
e
s
ts

 e
v
e

ry
 m

o
n
th

. 
O

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 4

3
1

 e
n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 a

re
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 e

a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

 w
it
h

 5
5

%
 o

f 
c
a

lls
 r

e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 f

ly
 

ti
p

p
in

g
 a

lo
n
e
. 

A
ll 

s
tr

e
e
t 

c
le

a
n

in
g

 r
e
q

u
e
s
ts

 a
re

 m
a

d
e

 v
ia

 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e

s
 b

y
 t

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
, 

e
m

a
il 

o
r 

th
e
 

W
o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 R

e
p
o

rt
 I
t 
a

p
p

. 
A

ll 
e

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 a

re
 l
o

g
g

e
d
 

o
n
 C

R
M

 b
y
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
u

s
to

m
e
r 

c
a

ll 
v
o

lu
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
im

e
s
 a

re
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 

C
O

N
F

IR
M

. 
 A

ll 
e

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 a

re
 v

is
it
e

d
 a

n
d

 e
v
a

lu
a
te

d
 a

n
d

 
re

s
p
o

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

p
e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 c

le
a
n

in
g

 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
. 
S

o
m

e
 e

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 a

re
 p

ic
k
e

d
 u

p
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
; 
o

th
e
r 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 a
 h

a
z
a

rd
 

to
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
s
/d

ri
v
e

rs
 (

i.
e

. 
d

e
a

d
 a

n
im

a
ls

/s
y
ri
n
g

e
s
/ 

o
v
e

rf
lo

w
in

g
 l
it
te

r 
b

in
s
/s

p
ill

a
g

e
s
) 

a
re

 r
e
s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

s
a

m
e

 d
a
y
. 
F

ly
 t

ip
p
in

g
 a

n
d

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
s
tr

e
e
t 
c
le

a
n

in
g
 

e
n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 a

re
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d

e
d
 t
o

 w
it
h

in
 5

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
. 
 

W
C

P
I0

0
4
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 k
ill

e
d
 o

r 
s
e
ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 (

K
S

I)
 i
n

 
ro

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
c
c
id

e
n

ts
 

7
3
.0

0
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

 
A

c
c
id

e
n

t 
d

a
ta

 a
re

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 m

a
d

e
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

v
ia

 t
h

e
 S

p
e
c
tr

u
m

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 g

e
n
e

ra
lly

 n
o
t 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 u
n

ti
l 
s
e

v
e

ra
l 

m
o

n
th

s
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 U
n
fo

rt
u

n
a

te
ly

, 
th

e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 c

a
n
 b

e
 i
n
te

rr
o
g

a
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 i
n
te

ri
m

 f
ig

u
re

s
 t

o
 

b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
, 

a
s
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 l
o
a

d
in

g
 a

c
c
id

e
n

t 
d
a

ta
 o

n
to

 t
h

e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 m

a
y
 m

e
a
n
 t

h
a
t 

a
n

y
 s

u
c
h
 i
n

te
ri
m

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
lia

b
le

 a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 m

is
le

a
d

in
g

. 

  



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

7
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

0
5
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
u

s
e
s
 o

f 
c
y
c
le

 r
o

u
te

s
 

7
0
,8

5
7
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

D
a

ta
 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 b

y
 a

u
to

m
a

ti
c
 c

y
c
le

 c
o

u
n

te
rs

 i
n

 t
w

o
 

lo
c
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 w

e
s
t 
s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 
T

h
e
 l
im

it
e

d
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
it
e

s
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h

a
t 
fi
g

u
re

s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b

e
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e
 c

it
y
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 a
n

d
 a

n
y
 e

rr
o
rs

, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 d

u
e

 t
o
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
fa

ilu
re

, 
w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
. 

A
 f
u

ll 
c
o

rd
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 i
s
 

c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

e
v
e

ry
 2

 y
e

a
rs

 u
s
in

g
 m

a
n
u

a
l 
c
o

u
n
ti
n

g
 

te
c
h
n

iq
u

e
s
 a

n
d
 g

iv
e

s
 a

 m
u

c
h
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
 p

ic
tu

re
 o

f 
c
y
c
le

 u
s
e

. 
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
rd

o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 t

o
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 e
x
p

e
n

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t
o

 j
u

s
ti
fy

. 

W
C

P
I0

0
6
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
tr

a
ff

ic
 l
ig

h
t 
fa

u
lt
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 w
it
h

in
 2

 
h

o
u

rs
 

1
0
0
%

 
9
7
%

 
1
0
0
%

 


 
 1

0
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

D
a

ta
 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

a
l 
F

a
u

lt
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
, 
c
o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 

re
p
a

ir
s
 i
n

p
u
t 
fa

u
lt
 c

le
a
ra

n
c
e
s
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 i
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

O
u

t 
o
f 

a
 t
o

ta
l 
o
f 

1
0
5

 t
ra

ff
ic

 s
ig

n
a
l 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 1

3
8

 
p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
s
 i
n

 W
o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 t

h
e
re

 w
e

re
 a

 
to

ta
l 
o
f 

7
1
 u

rg
e

n
t 
fa

u
lt
s
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d
 t

o
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h

e
 m

o
n

th
s
 

o
f 

J
u

ly
/A

u
g

u
s
t/
S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

5
, 

w
it
h

 r
e

p
a

ir
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 r

e
p
a

ir
 t

im
e
 i
n

 7
0
 c

a
s
e
s
. 

 

     



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

8
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

0
7
 

T
o
ta

l 
le

n
g

th
 o

f 
c
y
c
le

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 

2
6
k
m

 
N

o
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

 




 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

 
C

y
c
le

 r
o

u
te

s
 a

re
 a

d
d

e
d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 b
y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

th
ro

u
g

h
 c

a
p
it
a

l 
s
c
h
e

m
e

s
 o

r 
b

y
 p

ri
v
a

te
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
 a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
T

h
e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
ro

u
te

s
 a

re
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d

 a
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
y
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 f
o

r 
u

s
e
, 
b

u
t 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 

s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 e

a
c
h

 y
e

a
r 

m
e

a
n

s
 t
h

e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 d
u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

is
 v

e
ry

 u
n
e

v
e

n
 

a
n
d

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

le
n
d
 i
ts

e
lf
 t
o

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g

. 

W
C

P
I0

0
8
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
m

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 (
n

e
t)

 (
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 N

e
w

 B
u

ild
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
) 

6
5
0
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
  

3
1
0
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
m

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 c
o

v
e

rs
 n

e
w

 
b

u
ild

 o
f 

a
ll 

ty
p

e
s
 (

m
a
rk

e
t 
h

o
u

s
in

g
, 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

a
n
d

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
) 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 n

o
n

-r
e

s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
b
u

ild
in

g
 

c
o

n
v
e

rt
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l.
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 v
e

ri
fi
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 P

la
n
n

in
g

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
b

a
s
is

 a
n
d

 
in

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e
. 
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

h
o
u

s
in

g
 i
s
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 w

it
h

 n
e

w
 P

la
n
n

in
g

 p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 

a
n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 o

n
 s

it
e

. 
If
 t
h

is
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n

s
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

6
5
0

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
m

e
s
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 m

e
t.
 

    



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

9
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

0
9
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

1
1
5
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 n

e
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 R

e
g

is
te

re
d
 P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 n

o
n

-r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

b
u
ild

in
g

s
 c

o
n
v
e

rt
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l.
 T

h
e

s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 
v
e

ri
fi
e

d
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 t

h
e
 H

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 o

n
 

a
n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
b

a
s
is

. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

n
e
w

 b
u
ild

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 e

it
h

e
r 

o
n
 s

it
e

 o
r 

a
b
o

u
t 
to

 s
ta

rt
 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 1

5
 h

o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
t 
T

h
o
m

p
s
o
n

 a
v
e

n
u

e
 

d
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
. 

M
a

jo
r 

R
P

s
 a

re
 t

a
k
in

g
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 i
n
 l
a

rg
e

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 f
o

rm
e
r 

J
e

n
n

ie
 

L
e
e

 C
e
n

tr
e
 w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 1

5
 S

1
0
6

 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 B

ils
to

n
 U

rb
a
n

 v
ill

a
g

e
, 

w
it
h

 m
a

n
y
 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

. 
C

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 

th
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
re

n
t 
c
h

a
rg

in
g

 (
1

%
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
4
 y

e
a
rs

) 
h

a
s
 

c
a

s
t 

u
n
c
e

rt
a

in
ty

 r
e
g

a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 v

ia
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

y
 l
e

a
d

 t
o
 a

 r
e

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 

in
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

W
C

P
I0

1
0
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
h

o
m

e
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 

3
0
0
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
5
 


 

2
1
9
 

8
0
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
 

ta
k
e

n
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
, 
e
m

p
ty

 h
o
m

e
s
 

b
ro

u
g

h
t 
b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
, 

a
n

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 g
ra

n
ts

 
a

w
a

rd
e

d
 t

o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
. 

2
1
9
 h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 o

f 
th

e
 3

0
0
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n

te
rv

e
n
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 a
h
e
a

d
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
t.

 

  



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

1
0
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

1
1
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
a

c
a
n

t 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 t

o
 o

c
c
u
p

a
ti
o

n
 o

r 
d

e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 

2
0
0
 

3
4
 

 Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 n
o
t 

s
e

t 
b

y
  

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
re

a
 


 

5
6
 

 Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 n
o
t 

s
e

t 
b

y
  

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
re

a
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

is
 c

o
u
n

ts
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

lo
n
g

 t
e

rm
 e

m
p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

th
a
t 
a

re
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 

b
a
c
k
 i
n

to
 u

s
e

 o
r 

a
re

 d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d

 d
u
e

 t
o
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
. 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 o

w
n

e
rs

 i
n

 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
n

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
m

 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

e
m

 i
n

 b
ri
n
g

in
g

 t
h

e
ir
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 b

a
c
k
 i
n

to
 u

s
e

. 
W

h
e
re

 
o

w
n

e
rs

 a
re

 u
n
c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
e

rt
y
 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 
d

e
tr

im
e

n
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 l
o
c
a

l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t,

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 

c
a

n
 a

n
d

 d
o
 t

a
k
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a

c
ti
o
n
. 
 A

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 

y
e

a
r’
s
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
q

u
a

rt
e
r 

2
. 
W

h
ils

t 
b

e
h

in
d
 t
a

rg
e
t 
th

is
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 a
n
n

u
a

l 
tr

e
n
d

s
, 
w

it
h

 a
 

g
re

a
te

r 
ra

te
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

s
 c

o
m

in
g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 3
 a

n
d

 4
 a

s
 m

o
re

 c
o

m
p

le
x
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
. 

W
C

P
I0

1
2
 

T
o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h

o
m

e
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 d

e
c
e

n
t 

h
o
m

e
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 

D
u

e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

d
e
c
e

n
t 
h

o
m

e
s
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 t
h

u
s
 l
a

rg
e

 s
c
a

le
 d

e
c
e

n
t 
h

o
m

e
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
, 
th

is
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 a

n
d
 a

lt
e

ra
ti
v
e

 m
e

a
s
u
re

s
 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
d

e
c
e

n
c
y
/n

o
n
-d

e
c
e

n
c
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

W
C

P
I0

1
3
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

3
1
1
0
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
 

8
4
5
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
 

1
,4

2
8
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
ti
o

n
, 
a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
fo

r 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
r 

th
o
s
e

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
. 

W
it
h

 5
8

3
 h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
, 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

1
,4

2
8
 h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

th
is

 t
a

rg
e
t 

is
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o

 b
e

 m
e
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

  



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

1
1
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

1
4
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

la
n
d

lo
rd

s
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 t

h
e
 M

id
la

n
d
 

L
a
n

d
lo

rd
 A

c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o
n

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 (

M
L

A
S

) 

2
0
0
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
5
 


 

2
0
3
 

2
0
0

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 2

0
3

 l
a
n

d
lo

rd
s
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

M
L

A
S

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t.
 W

o
rk

 
is

 o
n
-g

o
in

g
 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 l
a
n
d

lo
rd

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
P

D
 p

o
in

ts
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 l
e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

to
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
c
c
re

d
it
e

d
. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

in
g

 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 t

h
e

 R
e
n

t 
w

it
h

 C
o
n
fi
d

e
n

c
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 t

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

 a
 h

ig
h
 r

a
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

           



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

1
2
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

1
5
 

T
o
ta

l 
a

m
o

u
n
t 

o
f 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 

£
5
1

9
.7

 
m

ill
io

n
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
 

£
1
5

0
.4

 M
ill

io
n

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

M
a

jo
r 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

is
 o

c
c
u

rr
in

g
 i
n

 t
h
re

e
 r

e
g

e
n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 t

o
 s

ti
m

u
la

te
 t

h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
; 

h
o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
s
e

 a
re

a
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
a

p
tu

re
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
e
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
ta

k
e

s
 p

la
c
e

 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
. 

F
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
g

e
n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t,
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 a

ro
u

n
d
 t

h
e
 

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 f
lo

o
rs

p
a
c
e

, 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
o

r 
a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

In
 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 
tw

e
lv

e
 m

o
n
th

s
 t

h
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

v
e

s
te

d
: 

 


 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

- 
£
8
3
 m

ill
io

n
 


 

J
2
 

 
- 

£
5
9

6
.5

 m
ill

io
n

 


 

B
ils

to
n
  

- 
£

2
.6

5
 m

ill
io

n
 

 T
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 r

e
g

e
n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

h
e
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
, 
fo

r 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 t
h

e
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

im
e
s
c
a

le
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

tu
rn

 –
 f

o
r 

s
m

a
lle

r 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
h

e
s
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 a

s
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
T

h
e
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 
d

a
ta

 i
s
 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d
 m

o
n
th

ly
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a
rd

s
. 
T

h
e

 d
a

ta
 

w
ill

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
ro

m
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
ils

 o
w

n
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

o
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

r.
 

    



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

1
3
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

1
6
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 l
o
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
’s

 m
a

in
 

e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
a
s
 

3
,9

6
4
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

 


 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

W
it
h

in
 t

h
is

 q
u

a
rt

e
r,

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 a
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

J
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 2

 a
re

a
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

le
v
e

l 
o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
 i
s
 n

e
a
ri
n

g
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 s

h
o
rt

ly
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 a

b
le

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 8
0
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 l
o
c
a

te
d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 J
2
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

 a
t 
th

e
 

G
ro

w
th

 H
u
b

 w
ill

 s
o

o
n

 b
e

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 
th

e
s
e

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t

o
 o

p
e

n
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
m

, 
a

n
d

 o
ff

e
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
g

ro
w

th
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
d

in
g

. 
T

h
e
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
d

is
tr

ic
t 

a
n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

a
s
 6

7
8
 B

ID
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 g

o
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 u
s
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 B

ID
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
. 

B
ils

to
n
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 r
e

c
e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d

e
rg

o
n
e

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
, 

b
u
t 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

B
ils

to
n
 B

ID
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
a

v
a

ila
b
le

. 
A

n
n
u

a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 a
re

 
b

a
s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 a

 s
e
t 

o
f 

d
a
ta

 r
e

le
a
s
e

d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 

e
a
c
h

 y
e

a
r.

  
A

s
 a

n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
w

e
 d

o
n

’t
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 

in
te

ri
m

 d
a
ta

 a
t 
th

is
 l
e

v
e

l.
  
T

h
e
 d

a
ta

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

b
o

v
e

 w
ill

 
e

n
a

b
le

 u
s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 l
e

v
e

ls
, 

b
u
t 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

a
ta

. 
 

A
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 d
a

ta
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 o
b

ta
in

in
g

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 

d
a
ta

b
a

s
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

‘li
v
e

 ‘
c
o
m

p
a
n

ie
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 g

ro
w

th
 

a
re

a
s
. 

  



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

1
4
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

1
7
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
jo

b
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
’s

 m
a

in
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
g

ro
w

th
 a

re
a
s
 

5
4
,0

7
5
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

 


 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
jo

b
s
 l
o

c
a
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 

g
ro

w
th

 a
re

a
s
 i
s
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

id
e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 f

o
r 

W
C

P
I0

1
6
, 

w
h

ic
h

 
o

u
tl
in

e
s
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e

n
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
a
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t.
  
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 b
e
in

g
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 v

ia
 

th
e
 G

ro
w

th
 H

u
b

 h
e
lp

 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 t
o

 
e

x
p

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

 D
u

ri
n
g

 t
h

is
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 w
e

 
h

a
v
e

 s
e

e
n

 W
ig

g
le

 m
o

v
e

 i
n

to
 C

it
a

d
e

l 
J
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 B
ils

to
n
, 

c
re

a
ti
n
g

 3
0
0
 n

e
w

 j
o

b
s
. 
  
S

in
c
e
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
5
, 

3
,3

8
0
 p

e
o

p
le

 
h

a
v
e

 m
o

v
e

d
 i
n

to
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 1
6

6
0
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 d
u
ri
n

g
 

th
e
 l
a

s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r.

  
A

 j
o

b
s
 f
a

ir
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
W

o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 w

e
e
k
 i
n

 e
a
rl
y
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
h

a
d

 o
v
e

r 
5

0
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 

p
re

s
e

n
t 
w

it
h

 o
v
e

r 
1

0
0

0
 j
o

b
s
 o

n
 o

ff
e
r.

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
m

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

jo
b
s
 

c
re

a
te

d
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 t
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
jo

b
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

g
ro

w
th

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

a
p
tu

re
d
 i
n

 s
u
rv

e
y
 w

o
rk

. 
  

       



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

1
5
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

1
8
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
o

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
’s

 m
a

in
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
v
e

n
u

e
s
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 
1

2
2

,3
9

2
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 


 
8

0
,7

1
4
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 


 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

Q
2

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 C

iv
ic

 H
a

ll,
 

W
u
lf
ru

n
 H

a
ll,

 S
la

d
e

 R
o
o
m

s
, 
O

u
td

o
o
r 

E
v
e

n
ts

, 
A

rt
 

G
a

lle
ry

, 
B

ils
to

n
 C

ra
ft
 G

a
lle

ry
, 

A
rc

h
iv

e
s
 a

n
d

 B
a
n

to
c
k
. 

F
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

G
ra

n
d

 T
h

e
a
tr

e
, 

L
ig

h
t 
H

o
u
s
e

 M
e

d
ia

 C
e
n

tr
e
 

a
n
d

 N
e
w

h
a
m

p
to

n
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

re
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
. 

W
it
h

 t
h

e
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
ti
c
k
e

te
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

, 
a

ll 
m

e
th

o
d

s
 o

f 
v
is

it
o

r 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

 c
h

a
n
g

e
 i
n
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
. 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
s
 s

o
o
n
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 
T

h
e
 

c
o

n
c
e

rt
 v

e
n
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 h
is

to
ri
c
a
lly

 h
a
d

 a
 q

u
ie

t 
Q

2
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

th
is

 b
e
in

g
 l
o

w
 s

e
a
s
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
is

 
y
e

a
r'
s
 f

ig
u
re

s
 a

re
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n

 u
s
u

a
l 
d

u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

d
 

w
o

rk
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

iv
ic

 a
n
d

 W
u

lf
ru

n
 H

a
ll.

 

W
C

P
I0

1
9
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

ta
rt

-u
p
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 
9
4
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 


 
1
6
6
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 


 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
a
 o

f 
J
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 2

, 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 e
n

a
b
le

 u
s
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

a
t 
a

re
a
. 
 T

h
is

 s
u
rv

e
y
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 
b

e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 B

ils
to

n
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 g

iv
e

 u
s
 d

e
fi
n

it
iv

e
 l
e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

o
s
e

 a
re

a
s
. 
 F

o
r 

th
e
 

re
m

a
in

d
e

r 
o
f 

th
e
 c

it
y
, 
le

v
e
ls

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

t 
th

e
 G

ro
w

th
 H

u
b

, 
w

h
ils

t 
e

n
s
u

ri
n
g

 t
h

e
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
a
s
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
t 

d
u
p

lic
a

te
d
. 
 T

h
is

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
s
ix

 m
o

n
th

ly
 i
n

te
rv

a
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
a
s
, 

a
n
d
 o

n
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

re
m

a
in

d
e

r 
o
f 

th
e
 C

it
y
. 
 T

h
is

 d
a
ta

 w
ill

 e
n
a

b
le

 u
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 b
a
s
e

lin
e
 o

f 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

, 
a

n
d
 h

e
lp

 u
s
 

w
o

rk
 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 f

u
tu

re
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 
 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

1
6
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

2
0
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 
fi
v
e

 
y
e

a
rs

 

3
6

.9
%

 
N

o
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
 

3
7
%

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

 


 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
 o

n
 t

h
is

 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

it
h

 d
a

ta
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 O

N
S

 i
n

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

e
a
c
h

 
y
e

a
r.

  
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
a
ta

 o
n
 5

 y
e

a
r 

s
u
rv

iv
a

ls
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 G

ro
w

th
 H

u
b
, 
a

n
d

 
th

o
s
e

 l
e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
s
u

rv
iv

a
ls

 a
re

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
, 

3
7
 f

o
r 

th
is

 q
u

a
rt

e
r.

  
G

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

, 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
fr

o
m

 s
u
rv

e
y
s
 o

f 
th

e
 t
h

re
e
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
a
s
, 
w

ill
 e

n
a

b
le

 u
s
 t
o
 

c
a

p
tu

re
 d

a
ta

 r
e
g

u
la

rl
y
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 a

re
a

s
, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 G

ro
w

th
 

H
u

b
 c

o
lle

c
ti
n
g

 d
a

ta
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
it
y
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

. 
  

W
C

P
I0

2
1

a
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
s
m

a
ll 

a
n
d
 m

e
d

iu
m

 (
S

M
E

) 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 :
 S

m
a

ll 

1
7
6
5
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
 

1
2
9
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

 


 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
 G

ro
w

th
 H

u
b

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o

lle
c
ti
n
g

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
n
 t
h

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
, 

s
h

o
w

in
g

 1
2
9
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

th
e
 l
a

s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

 T
h

e
 d

a
ta

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

a
llo

w
 t

o
 s

h
o

w
 a

 
b

re
a
k
d

o
w

n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 s
m

a
ll 

a
n
d

 m
e

d
iu

m
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
, 

b
u
t 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e
n

te
d

 a
ll 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
s
 

b
e
in

g
 s

m
a

ll 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
. 

 
A

g
a

in
, 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 f
ro

m
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 o

f 
th

e
 t
h

re
e
 

g
ro

w
th

 a
re

a
s
, 

w
ill

 e
n
a

b
le

 u
s
 t
o

 c
a
p

tu
re

 d
a
ta

 r
e
g

u
la

rl
y
 

fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 a

re
a

s
, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 G

ro
w

th
 H

u
b

 c
o

lle
c
ti
n
g

 d
a

ta
 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

it
y
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

. 
  

W
C

P
I0

2
1

b
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
s
m

a
ll 

a
n
d
 m

e
d

iu
m

 (
S

M
E

) 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 :
  

M
e

d
iu

m
 

It
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t
o

 a
m

a
lg

a
m

a
te

 t
h

e
s
e
 t
w

o
 m

e
a
s
u

re
s
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r,

 r
a

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 s

e
p
a

ra
ti
n
g

 t
h

e
s
e
 

in
to

 s
m

a
ll 

a
n
d

 m
e

d
iu

m
. 
D

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 m
e

a
s
u
re

 i
s
 o

n
ly

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

re
p
o

rt
in

g
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

la
n
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o
 s

m
a

ll 
a

n
d

 m
e

d
iu

m
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

s
 r

e
g

a
rd

le
s
s
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 s
e

p
a
ra

ti
n
g

 t
h

e
s
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
y
 

a
d
d

e
d

 v
a

lu
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

 

 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

1
7
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

2
2
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

re
a
ti
v
e

 e
c
o

n
o
m

y
, 

le
a
rn

in
g

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri
n
g

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

2
2
,0

0
0
 

 8
,7

2
1
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 n
o
t 

s
e

t 
b

y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
re

a
 


 

 1
3
,9

4
8
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

T
a

rg
e
ts

 n
o
t 

s
e

t 
b

y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
re

a
 


 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e

n
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
. 

D
a

ta
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

th
a
t 
w

ill
 i
n

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 b

a
s
e

lin
e
 f
ro

m
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 c
a

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

fo
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
d

ra
w

s
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

5
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

it
h

in
 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 V
is

it
o

r 
E

c
o

n
o
m

y
 

 


 

P
e

o
p

le
 e

n
ro

lle
d
 o

n
 A

d
u
lt
 E

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
 C

re
a
ti
v
e

 
S

tu
d
ie

s
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 


 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 i
n

 a
 r

a
n
g

e
 C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
/e

v
e

n
ts

 i
.e

. 
C

ra
ft
 P

la
y
, 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
v
is

it
s
, 

A
rt

s
 F

o
ru

m
, 

F
a
m

ily
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
. 


 

L
o
c
a

l 
H

is
to

ry
 t

a
lk

s
, 

la
u
n

c
h

e
s
, 

a
rc

h
iv

e
 r

e
s
e
a

rc
h

, 
a

d
u

lt
s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n

 


 

P
e

o
p

le
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 w
o

rk
 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

/i
n
te

rn
s
h

ip
s
/a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h
ip

s
  


 

V
o

lu
n
te

e
rs

 r
e

c
ru

it
e

d
 a

n
d
 d

e
p

lo
y
e

d
 i
n

 C
u
lt
u

ra
l 

v
e

n
u

e
s
. 

 
 C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 d
a

ta
 a

t 
Q

2
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

6
3
%

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
1

5
-1

6
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
. 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 

le
a
rn

in
g

 b
y
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 s

tr
o

n
g

, 
a

c
c
o
u

n
ti
n
g

 f
o

r 
8

,9
3

0
 (

6
4
%

) 
o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e
rs

 f
o

r 
Q

2
. 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

 Q
3

 a
re

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

lly
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 i
n
 Q

1
 a

n
d

 Q
2

, 
p

ro
je

c
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
Q

3
 &

 Q
4

 i
n
d

ic
a
te

 w
e

 
a

re
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

ta
rg

e
t.
  

 

  



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

1
8
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

2
3
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o

r 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 
2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
 

4
6
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 
2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
 

4
2
0
7
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 


 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

is
 f
ig

u
re

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t,

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
lla

te
d

 i
n

 f
u

ll 
a

n
n

u
a

lly
 (

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 
2

0
1

6
) 

to
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 
a

c
a
d

e
m

ic
 r

e
tu

rn
s
. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 Q
2
 

a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
A

E
S

 d
a
ta

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
 Q

3
 w

h
e
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
ll 

d
a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 C

o
n
n

e
x
io

n
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 e

n
a

b
le

 a
 

ro
b
u

s
t 
b

a
s
e

lin
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f
o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

. 
 

          



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

1
9
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

2
4
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 k
e

y
 d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
  

a
re

a
s
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
e

d
 

th
o
u
g

h
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 
2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
 

4
6
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 
2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
 

1
1
9
1
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 


 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

is
 f
ig

u
re

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t,

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
lla

te
d

 i
n

 f
u

ll 
a

n
n

u
a

lly
 (

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 
2

0
1

6
) 

to
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 
th

e
 a

c
a
d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 r
e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 a

v
a

ila
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
A

E
S

 d
a
ta

. 
T

h
e

 h
ig

h
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 w

it
h

in
 

d
e
p

ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a

s
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 f

a
c
t 
th

a
t 
a

ll 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 j
o

in
tl
y
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 t
o

 
m

o
v
e

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t.
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 n
o
w

 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 o

v
e

r 
2

0
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 w

it
h

in
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
re

a
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
e

c
to

r 
b

a
s
e

d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 w
o

rk
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

re
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 g
ra

s
s
 r

o
o
ts

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 r
e

a
c
h
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

lo
n
g

s
id

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 s
u

c
h
 a

s
 t
h

e
 c

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 A

E
S

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

b
e
s
p

o
k
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 q
u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 w

o
rk

 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

it
h

 Y
O

O
 r

e
c
ru

it
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 
ro

u
te

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 u

p
ta

k
e

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 b

y
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

m
o
s
t 
d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

2
0
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

2
5
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

o
th

e
rs

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 

T
o
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 

1
6
.9

%
 

<
1

8
.8

%
 



N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

<
1

8
.8

%
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

Im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

C
O

 
m

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g

 
a

t 
e

v
e

ry
 

a
n
te

n
a

ta
l 

v
is

it
 a

n
d

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 L

if
e

s
ty

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 

c
e

s
s
a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

w
o

m
e

n
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 

ti
m

e
 
o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
in

 
th

e
 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 
E

n
g

la
n
d
 

a
v
e

ra
g

e
 f

o
r 

1
3
/1

4
 w

a
s
 1

2
%

 a
n
d

 f
o
r 

Q
1

 2
0
1

5
/1

6
 w

a
s
 

1
0
.7

%
. 

W
C

P
I0

2
6
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 w

e
ig

h
t 

lo
s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 w
e

ig
h

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

T
o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 

4
5
.1

%
 

<
3

9
.9

%
 



N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

<
3

9
.9

%
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
re

 
h

a
s
 

b
e
e

n
 

a
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 
in

 
th

e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 
o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n
g

 
a

 
w

e
ig

h
t 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 w

e
ig

h
t 

lo
s
s
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 

th
a
t 

W
o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
's

 
w

h
o
le

 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

w
it
h

 
it
s
 

o
b
e

s
it
y
 

c
a

ll 
to

 
a

c
ti
o

n
 

is
 

h
a
v
in

g
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t.

 

W
C

P
I0

2
7
 

R
a

te
 o

f 
a

lc
o

h
o

l 
re

la
te

d
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

u
n

d
e

r 
7

5
 y

e
a
rs

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

) 

T
o
 s

ta
b
ili

s
e

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

<
7

8
2
 


 

8
5
1
 

(2
0
1

3
/1

4
) 

<
7

8
2
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

is
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
fi
g

u
re

 s
h

o
w

s
 a

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 

a
lc

o
h
o

l 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
o

r 
2
0

1
3

/1
4

. 
  
U

n
fo

rt
u

n
a
te

ly
 

b
e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 
th

e
 t
im

e
 l
a
g

 i
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 t
h

is
 d

a
ta

 i
t 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e

c
t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 t

h
a
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
. 
 I
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e

n
 a

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
. 
E

n
g

la
n
d
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 f
o

r 
1

2
/1

3
 w

a
s
 6

3
7

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 f
o

r 
1

2
/1

3
 a

n
d

 f
o
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
3
/1

4
 w

a
s
 6

4
5

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

2
1
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

2
8
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
n

e
w

 u
s
e
rs

 o
f 
T

e
le

c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

5
0
0
 

8
2
 

7
5
 


 

1
6
6
 

1
7
5

 


 
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

R
e

a
lis

in
g

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 o

f 
b

e
tt
e

r 
c
a

re
 t

e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 i

s
 

c
e

n
tr

a
l 

to
 
th

e
 
re

d
e
s
ig

n
 
o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

's
 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

A
 

re
p
o

rt
 
w

ill
 
b

e
 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 
a

t 
1

1
th

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

c
a

b
in

e
t.
 

s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
a
t,
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 W
o

lv
e

rh
a

m
p

to
n
 

h
o
m

e
s
, 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

m
a

d
e

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

g
ra

ti
n
g

 
C

a
re

 
L

in
k
 

a
n
d

 
T

e
le

c
a
re

 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

a
n
d
 

re
tr

a
in

in
g

 
to

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

 
c
a

p
a

b
ili

ty
 

a
n

d
 

to
 

a
c
c
e
le

ra
te

 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

A
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
C

a
re

 
T

e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

 

W
C

P
I0

2
9
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

2
0
0
0
 

2
8
7
 

2
0
0
 


 

5
8
7
 

5
0
0

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

in
it
ia

l 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 

th
a
t 

h
a
v
e

 r
e

s
u
lt
e

d
 i

n
 a

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
in

c
o
m

e
 p

lu
s
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fu
ll 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t
h

e
 W

e
lf
a
re

 R
ig

h
ts

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 i
s
 

m
o

re
 t

h
a
n
 d

o
u

b
le

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i

n
 q

u
a

rt
e
r 

1
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g

 t
h

e
 W

e
lf
a

re
 R

ig
h

ts
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 
p

e
o

p
le

 
in

 
th

e
 
c
it
y
. 

T
h

e
re

 
h

a
s
 
b

e
e

n
 
a

 
c
h

a
n
g

e
 
to

 
th

e
 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 f

ig
u
re

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 a
 c

la
ri
fi
c
a

ti
o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

d
e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 

   



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

2
2
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

3
0
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
c
a

re
r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

1
3
5
0
 

1
2
7
 

3
3
7
 


 

4
2
7
 

6
7
5

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
 

n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 
in

 
c
a

re
rs

 
a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 a

 c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 C

a
re

 A
c
t 

h
a
v
e

 p
ro

v
e

d
 i

n
a
c
c
u

ra
te

. 
T

a
k
e

 u
p

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e

n
 m

u
c
h
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a
lly

. 
D

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
d
u

c
e
d

 t
o

 b
ri
n
g

 i
t 

in
 l

in
e
 

w
it
h

 
la

s
t 

y
e

a
rs

 
o

u
t-

tu
rn

. 
N

e
w

 
C

a
re

 
A

c
t 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 d
o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 h
a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 

fe
w

e
r 

jo
in

t 
c
a

re
rs

 
a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
b

e
in

g
 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

in
 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

A
n
 

a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 w

it
h

 c
a

re
rs

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 

n
e
w

 
C

a
re

rs
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

in
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

. 

W
C

P
I0

3
1
 

R
a

te
 o

f 
p

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 (
p

e
r 

1
0
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

) 
(A

S
C

O
F

 2
A

(2
))

 

6
3
8
 

6
4
3
 

(2
7
5

) 
6
4
3
 

(2
7
5

) 


 
6
3
0
 

(2
6
9

) 
6
4
3

 
(2

7
5

) 




 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

It
 i

s
 i

n
c
re

d
ib

ly
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f

in
a
l 

o
u
t-

tu
rn

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

1
4
/1

5
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 1

5
/1

6
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

w
a

s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

1
2
 

m
o

n
th

s
 

e
a
rl
y
. 

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r 

d
a
ta

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

W
o

lv
e

rh
a
m

p
to

n
 i
s
 r

a
te

d
 i
n
 

th
e
 t

o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

u
p
p

e
r 

m
id

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 r

e
g

io
n
, 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
lp

e
d

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t.
 
T

h
is

 
ta

rg
e
t 

h
a
s
 
b

e
e

n
 
s
e

t 
a

s
 
p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
C

a
re

 F
u

n
d
 (

B
C

F
) 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 

u
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 2

0
1

5
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
 a

s
 p

e
r 

B
C

F
 p

la
n
s
. 

   



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

2
3
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

3
2
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e
iv

e
d
 

re
a
b

le
m

e
n

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

h
o

 r
e
m

a
in

 i
n
 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 h
o
m

e
 s

ix
 

m
o

n
th

s
 a

ft
e

r 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 f
ro

m
 t

h
o
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

8
4
.0

%
 

8
3
.0

%
 

(3
6
5

) 
8

4
.0

%
 


 

8
1
.8

%
 

(3
3
7

) 
8

4
.0

%
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

O
ff

e
ri
n
g

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 r
e

a
b

le
m

e
n

t 
to

 r
e

c
o
v
e

r 
fr

o
m

 a
 f

a
ll 

o
r 

ill
n

e
s
s
 o

r 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 m
o

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e
 i
s
 k

e
y
 i
n
 

e
n
a

b
lin

g
 

th
e
m

 
to

 
re

m
a

in
 

in
d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t.
 

 
In

 
th

e
 

1
2
 

m
o

n
th

s
 

u
p
 

to
 

th
e
 

e
n
d
 

o
f 

M
a

rc
h

, 
4

1
2

 
p

e
o

p
le

 
h

a
d
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 

re
a
b

le
m

e
n

t.
 

A
t 

th
e
 

e
n
d

 
o
f 

S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r 
3

3
7
 

w
e

re
 e

it
h

e
r 

re
c
e

iv
in

g
 n

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
 

a
n
d

 
fe

w
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 
w

e
re

 
in

 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

o
r 

n
u
rs

in
g

 
c
a

re
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

re
a
b

le
m

e
n
t.

 
D

e
s
p
it
e

 
th

e
 

lo
w

e
r 

re
s
u
lt
, 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 w

it
h

in
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 p

a
ra

m
e

te
rs

. 

W
C

P
I0

3
3
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
E

d
u
c
a

ti
o
n
, 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 C
a
re

 P
la

n
s
 

(E
H

C
P

) 
c
o

n
v
e

rt
e

d
 

7
5
%

 
2
3
%

 
(2

7
3

) 

N
o

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
re

a
 


 

2
8
%

 
(3

3
9

) 
2
8
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

E
H

C
 N

e
e
d

s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
/T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 h

a
v
e

 j
u

s
t 

b
e
g

u
n
 

fo
r 

a
c
a
d

e
m

ic
 

y
e

a
r 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
. 

8
4
 

h
a
v
e

 
c
o

m
m

e
n
c
e

d
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

s
 i

t 
is

 a
 2

0
 w

e
e
k
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 n

o
n

e
 

h
a
v
e

 y
e

t 
b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
T

h
e
 b

a
s
e

lin
e
 f

ig
u

re
 o

f 
2

8
%

 
(3

3
9

) 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 
y
e

a
r 

a
n
d

 w
a

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
. 

In
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
5

/1
6

 a
c
a
d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r,

 
it
 i

s
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
5

4
8

 E
H

C
P

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
v
e

rt
e

d
 

ta
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
u

p
 t

o
 8

8
7

. 
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

c
o

h
o

rt
 

is
 1

1
9

0
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
is

 c
a

n
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

w
it
h

 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 
th

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 
n

o
t 

y
e

t 
b

e
e

n
 

c
o

n
v
e

rt
e

d
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 i

n
 a

n
d

 o
u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
. 

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

5
4
8

 i
s
 

4
6
%

 o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
c
o

h
o

rt
. 

  



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

2
4
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

3
4
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 c

h
ild

re
n

 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

9
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 P

la
n
 

1
0
0
%

 
N

o
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

8
0
%

 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

8
0
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

1
0
0

%
 
o
f 

th
e
 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 
y
e

a
r 

9
 
c
o

h
o

rt
 
h

a
d

 
a

 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
 

p
la

n
. 

M
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n
t 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 y

e
a
r 

9
 c

o
h
o

rt
 

w
ill

 b
e
g

in
 f

ro
m

 S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r.
 

W
C

P
I0

3
5
 

R
a

te
 o

f 
a

d
u

lt
s
 a

g
e

d
 1

8
-6

4
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 i
n

 p
e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
o

r 
n

u
rs

in
g

 
c
a

re
 (

p
e
r 

1
0
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

) 

1
4
.4

 
3

0
.7

 
(4

7
) 

2
9
.4

 
(4

5
) 


 

3
1
.4

 
(4

8
) 

2
4
.8

 
(3

8
) 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 c
o

h
o
rt

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 
in

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

c
a

re
 f

o
r 

s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

re
s
e
tt
le

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 t
h
o

s
e
 f

o
r 

w
h

o
m

 i
t 

is
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

W
C

P
I0

3
6
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
a

d
u

lt
s
 a

g
e
d

 1
8

-6
4
 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 r

e
s
e
tt
le

d
 f
ro

m
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
c
a
re

 i
n
to

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

3
5
 

8
 

6
 


 

1
0
 

1
0
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

1
0
 

p
e
o

p
le

 
h

a
v
e

 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 

b
e
e

n
 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

re
s
e
tt

le
d
 

fr
o
m

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
c
a

re
 i
n

to
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
. 

In
te

n
s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

 
is

 
b

e
in

g
 
c
a

rr
ie

d
 
o

u
t 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 
re

m
a

in
in

g
 
2

5
 
p

e
o

p
le

 
in

 
o

rd
e

r 
to

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 

    



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

2
5
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

3
7
 

R
a

te
 o

f 
a

d
u

lt
s
 a

g
e

d
 1

8
-6

4
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 p

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
o

r 
n

u
rs

in
g
 c

a
re

 (
p

e
r 

1
0
0

,0
0
0

 p
o

p
u
la

ti
o
n

) 

9
6
.4

 
1

1
0

.5
 

(1
6
9

) 
1

0
6

.6
 

(1
6
3

) 


 

1
0
9

.2
 

(1
6
7

) 
1

0
3

.3
 

(1
5
8

) 


 
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
 p

ro
fi
lin

g
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
t 

u
p
o

n
 t

h
e
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n

 o
f 

tw
o

 m
a
jo

r 
n

e
w

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 l

iv
in

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 

a
t 

C
a

rl
to

n
 

R
o

a
d

 
a

n
d
 

S
u

n
b

e
a

m
. 

In
 

o
n
e

 
o
f 

th
e
s
e
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 t
h

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 d
e
la

y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 
o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g

 w
o

rk
s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

b
y
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d

 t
h

is
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
. 

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

to
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 
n

u
rs

in
g

 
c
a

re
 

in
 

2
0
1

4
/1

5
 a

s
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 A

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

to
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

o
v
e

 m
o

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

to
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 
liv

in
g

 
w

ill
 
le

a
d

 
to

 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 
in

 
2

0
1

6
/1

7
. 

W
C

P
I0

3
8
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
n

e
w

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 l
iv

in
g

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
re

a
te

d
 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 l
e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 

5
0
 

6
 

6
 




1
0
 

1
0
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

1
0
 
p

e
o

p
le

 
h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 
h

e
lp

e
d

 
to

 
m

o
v
e

 
in

to
 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 

liv
in

g
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 
th

is
 

y
e

a
r 

a
n
d

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 
to

 
b

e
 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 
a

n
d

 
w

o
rk

e
d
 
w

it
h

 
in

 
o

rd
e
r 

to
 

e
n
s
u

re
 
th

a
t 

th
e
y
 
a

re
 
in

 
th

e
 
c
o

rr
e

c
t 

s
e

tt
in

g
s
 
fo

r 
th

e
ir
 

n
e
e

d
s
; 

h
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
is

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

 l
e

n
g

th
y
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e
 

M
e

n
ta

l 
C

a
p
a

c
it
y
 

A
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
a

n
d

 
C

o
u
rt

 
o
f 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 o

ft
e

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e

n
 r

e
-p

ro
fi
le

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

2
 n

e
w

 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 l

iv
in

g
 n

e
w

 b
u

ild
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
. 

N
e

w
 t

e
n
a

n
ts

 w
ill

 
b

e
g

in
 t

o
 m

o
v
e

 i
n

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 m
o

n
th

s
 a

n
d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
c
a

re
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 t
o

 r
e

a
c
h
 t

h
e
 1

5
/1

6
 t
a

rg
e
t.

 

  



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

2
6
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

3
9
 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 
S

e
x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o
n

 (
C

S
E

) 
w

h
o
s
e

 l
e
v
e

l 
o

f 
ri
s
k
 h

a
s
 

re
d
u

c
e
d
 

6
0
%

 
6
0
%

 
(1

2
) 

6
0
%

 


 
5
4
%

 
(1

3
) 

6
0
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
in

 
th

is
 

a
re

a
 

re
m

a
in

s
 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 

w
it
h

 
W

o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 m

a
d
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

la
s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 
In

 
a

 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 

s
u

m
m

e
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

l 
c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 
s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
s
 

m
e

a
n

t 
th

a
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 

re
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
r 

c
e
s
s
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

ri
s
k
 w

a
s
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 
a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 
o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 
th

e
 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

. 
S

m
a

ll 
n

u
m

b
e
rs

 m
a
k
e
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
v
o

la
ti
le

. 

W
C

P
I0

4
0
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o

 C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 w
h

e
re

 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 i
s
 a

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 f

a
c
to

r 

4
0
%

 
3

6
.1

%
 

(8
1
6

) 
4

0
.0

%
 


 

3
5
.4

%
 

(1
,1

4
1
) 

4
0
.0

%
 


 
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

Id
e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
o

r 
im

p
a
c
te

d
 b

y
 

D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 i
s
 a

n
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n
t 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

s
a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 c
h

ild
re

n
. 

It
 i

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

M
u

lt
i-

A
g

e
n
c
y
 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 
H

u
b
 

(M
A

S
H

) 
w

ill
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 

b
y
 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 
v
io

le
n
c
e

. 
In

 
p

a
ra

lle
l,
 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 
w

ill
 

b
e
 t

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 F
o
ru

m
 t

o
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
. 

     



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

2
7
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

4
1
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o

 A
d

u
lt
s
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 w
h

e
re

 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 i
s
 a

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 f

a
c
to

r 

1
2
%

 
9

.6
%

 
1

2
.0

%
 


 
7

.2
%

 
1

2
.0

%
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

W
h
ils

t 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e

 
w

it
h

in
 

a
d
u

lt
 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t,

 i
t 

is
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 a

s
c
e

rt
a

in
 

th
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
a

le
n
c
e

 o
f 

d
v
 i
s
 i
m

p
a
c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 

th
is

 r
e

s
u
lt
 a

s
 d

is
ti
n

c
t 

fr
o
m

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
is

s
u

e
s
 l

e
a
d

in
g
 

to
 

th
e
 

id
e
n

ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e

. 
In

 
c
a

s
e
s
 

w
h

e
re

 
D

V
 
h

a
s
 
b

e
e

n
 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 
a

s
 
a

 
fa

c
to

r 
o
f 

w
h

y
 
a

n
 

a
d
u

lt
 m

a
y
 b

e
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

, 
a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a
te

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
. 

W
C

P
I0

4
2
 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 u

s
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
o
 f

e
e
l 

s
a
fe

 

7
5
.5

%
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

7
5
.5

%
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

7
5
.5

%
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 w

a
s
 

7
4
.8

%
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 

2
0
1

3
/1

4
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
o

u
t-

tu
rn

 
o
f 

7
3
.2

%
 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 

th
a

t 
s
o
m

e
 

o
f 

th
e
 

m
o

s
t 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e

o
p
le

 i
n

 W
o

lv
e

rh
a

m
p

to
n
 f

e
e
l 
th

a
t 

th
e
 C

it
y
 i
s
 

a
 
s
a
fe

 
p

la
c
e
 
to

 
liv

e
. 

T
h
e

 
ta

rg
e
t 

to
 
im

p
ro

v
e

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 s

h
o
w

in
g

 a
m

b
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
 d

e
d

ic
a

ti
o
n

 t
o

 e
n
s
u

ri
n
g

 
th

a
t 

p
e
o

p
le

 f
e

e
l 
s
a
fe

. 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

re
s
u
lt
s
 s

h
o
w

 
th

a
t 

fo
r 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
 
th

e
 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 
re

s
u
lt
 
w

a
s
 

6
9
.2

%
, 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 

W
e
s
t 

M
id

la
n
d

s
 

w
a

s
 

6
9
.5

%
 

a
n
d
 

n
a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 

w
a

s
 

6
8
.5

%
. 

W
o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 

is
 

in
 

th
e
 

to
p
 

q
u

a
rt

ile
 

n
a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 

a
n
d

 
a

m
o

n
g

 
c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
rs

 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 

u
p
p

e
r 

m
id

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 r

e
g

io
n
a

lly
. 

   



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

2
8
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

4
3
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d
 w

it
h

 
w

h
o
m

 w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 
p

h
a

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ro
u
b

le
d
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

4
8
3
 

1
0
9
 

1
0
9
 


 

2
7
3
 

2
3
1

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 2

7
3

 f
a
m

ili
e

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

 w
h

o
m

 
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
g

u
n
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

1
1
6
 c

a
s
e
s
 

th
a
t 

a
re

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h

e
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 

fa
m

ily
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
. 

T
h

e
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o
n

 
o
f 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 i

s
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 b

u
t 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 e
n
s
u

re
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 
w

o
rk

 
is

 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 
to

 
e
m

b
e
d

 
th

e
 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

w
it
h

in
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

W
C

P
I0

4
4

a
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 e
n

g
a
g

e
d
 i
n

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o

r 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 :
 Y

o
u
n
g

 o
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

 

5
5
%

 
6
1
%

 
(1

9
) 

5
5
%

 


 
6
0
%

 
(2

1
) 

5
5
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

A
t 

th
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

th
e
re

 w
e

re
 3

5
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
h
o

rt
, 

2
1
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 i
n

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 (
E

T
E

E
) 

a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 o

rd
e

r.
  

T
h

is
 i

s
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e

 o
n
 t

h
e

 1
2
 t

h
a
t 

w
e

re
 
in

 
E

T
E

E
 
a

t 
th

e
 
s
ta

rt
 
o
f 

th
e
ir
 
o

rd
e
r.

 
 
1

7
 
o
f 

th
e
 

c
o

h
o

rt
 a

re
 s

c
h

o
o

l-
a
g

e
d
, 

1
2
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i

n
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
, 

7
1
%

. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 1

8
 a

re
 p

o
s
t-

s
c
h

o
o

l 
c
a
s
e

s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 

9
 a

re
 i
n

 E
T

E
E

, 
5

0
%

. 
N

o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

n
o
t 

E
T

E
E

 
a

re
 

N
A

L
M

 
(n

o
t 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

la
b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e
t)

 

    



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

2
9
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

4
4

b
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 e
n

g
a
g

e
d
 i
n

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o

r 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 :
 C

a
re

 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 

7
0
%

 
N

/A
 

7
0
%

 


 
5
8
%

 
(1

7
0

) 
5
5
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

jo
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 w

it
h

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 

ra
is

e
 a

s
p
ir
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

c
a
re

 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 a

n
d
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 e
d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 2
9
5

 c
a

re
 l

e
a
v
e

rs
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
h
o

rt
, 

1
7
0

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 i
n

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

, 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
. 

O
f 

th
e
 
1

2
5

 
w

h
o
 
a

re
 
n

o
t,

 
2

8
 
a
re

 
n

o
t 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

la
b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e
t 

d
u
e

 
to

 
ill

n
e
s
s
, 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
, 

p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
, 

m
o

th
e
rh

o
o

d
 o

r 
b

e
in

g
 i

n
 c

u
s
to

d
y
. 

T
h

e
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 

b
e
e

n
 

c
la

ri
fi
e

d
 

a
n
d

 
m

ir
ro

rs
 

th
e
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 l

o
o
k
s
 a

t 
th

e
 E

E
T

 s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
c
a

re
 l

e
a
v
e

rs
 

w
h

o
 a

re
 a

g
e

d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 1
6

 a
n
d

 2
1
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

W
C

P
I0

4
5
 

R
a

te
 o

f 
L

o
o
k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
C

h
ild

re
n

 (
L

A
C

) 
(p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

) 

1
0
9
 

1
3
3
 

(7
6
6

) 
1
2
9
 

(7
4
4

) 


 

1
2
3
 

(7
1
1

) 
1
2
4

 
(7

1
4

) 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

tr
a

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

w
o

rk
 

is
 
fi
n

a
lly

 
s
e

e
in

g
 a

 d
ir
e

c
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 L
o
o
k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
. 

 P
la

n
s
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
a
rd

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

L
A

C
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 p
e
rm

a
n
e

n
c
y
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 

o
n
 

tr
a

c
k
 

w
h

ils
t 

th
e
 

c
re

a
ti
o
n

 
o
f 

o
n
e

 
‘E

d
g

e
 

o
f 

C
a

re
’ 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
n
d

 
th

e
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
o
s
e

 
c
o

m
in

g
 

in
 

to
 

th
e

 
s
y
s
te

m
 

h
a
s
 

s
e

e
n

 
a
 

h
u
g

e
 

re
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 e

n
te

ri
n
g

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

 
A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 J

u
ly

 a
n
d

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
d

 a
n
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 

n
e
t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

L
A

C
. 

   



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

3
0
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

4
6
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 j
u
d

g
e

d
 b

y
 O

F
S

T
E

D
 t
o

 b
e
 'g

o
o
d
' 

o
r 

'o
u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g

’ 

7
8
%

 
N

o
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

7
8
%

 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

7
8
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
 

O
F

S
T

E
D

 
A

n
n
u

a
l 

re
p
o

rt
 

o
n
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

w
ill

 
n

o
t 

b
e
 

p
u
b

lis
h

e
d

 u
n
ti
l 

D
e

c
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

a
c
a
d

e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
1

4
/1

5
, 

th
is

 
p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o
n

 
c
o

n
ta

in
s
 

th
e
 

o
ff

ic
ia

l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 j

u
d

g
e

d
 b

y
 O

F
S

T
E

D
 t

o
 b

e
 “

g
o
o
d
 

o
r 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g
” 

a
n
d

 
a

s
 
a

 
re

s
u
lt
 
th

is
 
m

e
a
s
u

re
 
w

ill
 
b

e
 

re
p
o

rt
e

d
 

a
s
 

p
a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
 

re
p
o

rt
 

in
 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 
2
0
1
6
. 

W
C

P
I0

4
7
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p

u
p

ils
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 i
n
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 
R

e
a
d

in
g

, 
W

ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 M
a

th
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 

8
0
.0

%
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

8
0
.0

%
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

8
0
.0

%
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

is
 i

n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

 
in

 
th

e
 

“K
e

y
 

S
ta

g
e

 
2

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
T

a
b
le

s
 

2
0
1

5
” 

in
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 t

h
is

 m
e

a
s
u
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
p
o

rt
e

d
 

a
s
 

p
a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
 

re
p
o

rt
 

in
 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 
2
0
1
6
. 

W
C

P
I0

4
8
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p

u
p

ils
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
* 

- 
C

 G
ra

d
e

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 M

a
th

s
 

5
4
.0

%
 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

5
4
.0

%
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

5
4
.0

%
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

is
 i

n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

 
in

 
th

e
 

“K
e

y
 

S
ta

g
e

 
2

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
T

a
b
le

s
 

2
0
1

5
” 

in
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 t

h
is

 m
e

a
s
u
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
p
o

rt
e

d
 

a
s
 

p
a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
 

re
p
o

rt
 

in
 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 
2
0
1
6
. 

   



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

3
1
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

4
9
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

w
it
h

 u
n

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n
 8

%
 o

f 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

s
h

a
re

 

2
0
%

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

2
0
%

 


 
6
0
%

 
(4

6
) 

2
0
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

L
o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 m

e
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
d
 

m
a

in
ta

in
e
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

b
a
la

n
c
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 8

%
 t

h
re

s
h
o

ld
 

d
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
b

a
la

n
c
e

s
. 
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 a

le
rt

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

c
la

w
b

a
c
k
 

o
f 

u
n
s
p

e
n
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

W
C

P
I0

5
0
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 s
e

c
o

n
d
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 
u

n
c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a
n

 5
%

 o
f 

b
u
d
g

e
t 
s
h

a
re

 

0
%

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

0
%

 


 
3
3
%

 
(2

) 
0
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

L
o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 m

e
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
d
 

m
a

in
ta

in
e
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

b
a
la

n
c
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 8

%
 t

h
re

s
h
o

ld
 

d
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
b

a
la

n
c
e

s
. 
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 a

le
rt

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

c
la

w
b

a
c
k
 

o
f 

u
n
s
p

e
n
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

W
C

P
I0

5
1
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
u

n
iq

u
e
 h

it
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 W

o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 (
W

IN
) 

1
5
0

,0
0

0
 

5
3
,2

9
2
 

5
0
,0

0
0
 


 
1

0
9

,0
9

9
 

1
0
0

,0
0

0
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

O
v
e

r 
th

e
 l

a
s
t 

3
 m

o
n
th

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
tt

e
n
d

e
d

 1
0
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 W

IN
 t

o
 a

 w
id

e
r 

a
u
d

ie
n
c
e

. 
 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 o

b
v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e
e

n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
b

y
 t

h
e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

a
d
d

it
io

n
 n

e
w

 h
it
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
t 

is
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

y
e

a
r-

e
n
d

 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

ill
 

b
e
 

m
e

t.
 

   



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

3
2
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

5
2
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

lis
ti
n

g
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 W

o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 (

W
IN

) 

6
8
8
 

6
0
1
 

5
8
4
 


 

6
6
7
 

6
1
9

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

O
v
e

r 
th

e
 l

a
s
t 

fe
w

 m
o

n
th

s
, 

n
u
m

e
ro

u
s
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
W

IN
 

h
a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

w
h

ic
h

 
h

a
s
 

re
s
u
lt
e

d
 

in
 

v
a

ri
o
u

s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 c

o
n
ta

c
ti
n
g

 u
s
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 i

n
c
lu

d
e

 
th

e
ir
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

p
o
rt

a
l.
 

 
In

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

th
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 c

ro
s
s
 s

e
c
to

r 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 A
d

v
ic

e
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

g
ro

u
p

 
h
a

s
 

h
e
lp

e
d

 
to

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

p
ro

m
o

te
 

th
e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

W
C

P
I0

5
3
 

R
a

te
 o

f 
re

c
o

rd
e

d
 c

ri
m

e
 (

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u
la

ti
o
n
) 

T
o
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 

1
6
3
9
 

(4
,1

4
7
) 

1
6
2
9
 

(4
,1

2
0
) 


 

3
3
0
7
 

(8
3
6

5
) 

3
4
0
3

 
(8

6
0

8
) 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
c
o
rd

e
d

 c
ri
m

e
s
 i

n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 b

ri
n

g
in

g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
re

s
u
lt
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 l

a
s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 P
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

 i
s
 

o
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
a
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

3
3
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

5
4

a
 

R
a

te
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 v
io

le
n
t 

c
ri
m

e
 (

w
it
h

 
in

ju
ry

) 
(p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 a
g

e
d
 1

0
-1

7
) 

: 
V

ic
ti
m

s
 

T
o
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 

3
5
 

(8
3
) 

2
4
 

(5
7
) 


 

6
0
 

(1
4
1

) 
4
9
 

(1
1
6

) 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
a

n
d

 i
n

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

th
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i

n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 

la
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

is
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

a
 f

o
rc

e
-w

id
e
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 v
io

le
n
t 

c
ri
m

e
 (

a
ll 

a
g

e
s
),

 a
n
d

 o
f 

s
e

a
s
o

n
a

l 
v
a

ri
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
ly

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 t
h

e
 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
v
io

le
n
t 

c
ri
m

e
 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 w

a
s
 o

n
e

 f
e

w
e

r 
th

a
n
 

th
e
 

s
a

m
e

 
p

e
ri
o

d
 

la
s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 
 

T
h

is
 

is
 

e
n
c
o
u

ra
g

in
g

 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 

d
u
e

 
to

 
th

e
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 
in

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
, 

c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

. 

W
C

P
I0

5
4

b
 

R
a

te
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 v
io

le
n
t 

c
ri
m

e
 (

w
it
h

 
in

ju
ry

) 
(p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 a
g

e
d
 1

0
-1

7
) 

: 
O

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 

T
o
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 

1
4
 

(3
3
) 

1
5
 

(3
5
) 


 

2
6
 

(6
1
) 

2
8
 

(6
5
) 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

E
a

rl
ie

r 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 

w
o

rk
 

h
a
s
 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 

to
 

e
n
g

a
g

e
 

y
o

u
n

g
 

o
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

 
w

it
h

 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 
b

e
fo

re
 
e

n
tr

y
 
to

 
th

e
 

c
ri
m

in
a
l 

ju
s
ti
c
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
. 

In
 

a
d
d

it
io

n
 

th
e
 

w
o

rk
 

o
f 

th
e
 

Y
o

u
th

 
O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 
T

e
a
m

 
(Y

O
T

) 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

b
e
s
p

o
k
e
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 

in
 

re
la

ti
o
n

 
to

 
Y

o
u
th

 
V

io
le

n
c
e

 
to

 
th

o
s
e
 

s
ta

tu
to

ri
ly

 s
e

n
te

n
c
e

d
, 

w
it
h

 a
n
 i

n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

m
p

h
a
s
is

 o
n
 

a
n
 ‘

e
a
rl
y
 h

e
lp

’ 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
a

rg
e
ti
n

g
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 m
a

d
e
 

th
e
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

o
f 

‘O
u

t 
o
f 

C
o

u
rt

 
D

is
p

o
s
a

ls
’ 

fo
r 

y
o

u
th

 
v
io

le
n
c
e

. 
  

 T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r.
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 h

a
d

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

ff
e

c
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 t
h

e
 

o
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

 
in

 
a

 
v
io

le
n
t 

c
ri
m

e
 

w
h

ic
h

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 

to
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

w
it
h

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

o
n
 

ta
rg

e
t 

to
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 
to

 
d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

  



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

3
4
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

5
5
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 m
a

d
e

 t
o
 C

h
a
n

n
e

l 
P

a
n
e

l 
(P

re
v
e

n
t 

A
g

e
n
d

a
) 

T
o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 

5
 

0
 


 

1
3
 

3
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

h
a
n

n
e

l 
P

a
n
e

l 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 

to
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

n
d

 i
s
 l

ik
e

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
m

p
o
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 

th
e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

re
v
e

n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n

 o
n

 1
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
5

. 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

3
5
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

5
6
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

9
5
%

 
2

6
.7

%
 

(£
2
5

,2
3

5
,3

6
6

) 
2

6
.7

%
 



5
1
.3

%
 

(£
4
9

.7
3

5
,7

0
8

) 
5
1

.3
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 
is

 
ta

k
in

g
 
p

la
c
e
 
e

a
c
h
 
m

o
n
th

 
w

it
h

 
7

2
,0

0
0

 
re

m
in

d
e

rs
 

a
n
d
 

1
3
,0

0
0

 
s
u

m
m

o
n
s
e

s
 

fo
r 

n
o
n

-
p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

h
a
v
in

g
 

b
e
e

n
 

is
s
u

e
d

 
to

 
d

a
te

. 
 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 
is

 
m

o
re

 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 
th

is
 

y
e

a
r 

d
u
e

 
to

 
th

e
 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a

m
o

u
n

ts
 
w

h
ic

h
 
fa

ll 
to

 
b
e

 
c
o

lle
c
te

d
 
fr

o
m

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 
a
g

e
 

re
c
ip

ie
n
ts

 o
f 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n

. 
 

W
C

P
I0

5
7
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

9
6
.7

%
 

2
6
.7

%
 

(£
2
5

,2
3

5
,3

6
6

) 
2

6
.7

%
 



5
7
.5

%
 

5
2
.6

%
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 
is

 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 
a

h
e

a
d

 
o
f 

ta
rg

e
t.

 
 
E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 
is

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 
w

it
h

 
re

m
in

d
e
rs

 
a

n
d

 
s
u

m
m

o
n
s
e

s
 

b
e
in

g
 i

s
s
u

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
y
 n

o
n

-p
a
y
m

e
n
t.
  

C
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

fu
ll 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
c
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 
o

w
n

 
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 
fo

r 
th

e
 
fu

ll 
y
e

a
r.

  
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
is

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 e
a
rl
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 d

im
in

is
h

 a
s
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e

s
. 
 

W
C

P
I0

5
8
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
p

e
n

d
 w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

lie
rs

 w
h

o
s
e

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 W
V

 p
o
s
tc

o
d

e
 

3
1
.0

8
%

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
: 

3
3
%

 

3
1
.0

8
%

 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
: 

3
6
%

 

3
1
.0

8
%

 


 
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 W

e
e
k
, 

w
e

 r
e

c
e
n
tl
y
 h

e
ld

 a
 “

M
e

e
t 

th
e
 

B
u

y
e

r”
 e

v
e

n
t 

to
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
e
t 

w
it
h

 m
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 t
w

o
 h

u
n

d
re

d
 s

u
p
p

lie
rs

, 
m

a
n
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

lo
c
a
l 

W
o

lv
e

rh
a

m
p
to

n
 

a
re

a
. 

In
d
ic

a
ti
v
e

ly
, 

o
u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 m

e
a

s
u
re

 i
s
 a

ro
u

n
d
 3

6
%

 t
o
 d

a
te

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

u
g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

’ll
 e

x
c
e

e
d

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
. 

  



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

3
6
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

5
9
 

C
o

s
t 

p
e
r 

s
q

u
a
re

 m
e

tr
e
 o

f 
o

u
r 

o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

p
o
rt

fo
lio

 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 


 
N

o
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 


 
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e

 t
h
e
 

c
o

s
t 

p
e
r 

s
q

u
a
re

 
m

e
tr

e
 

o
f 

th
e
 

o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

ro
p
e

rt
y
 

p
o
rt

fo
lio

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 

th
e
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
L

a
n

d
lo

rd
 

w
o

rk
 

a
n
d
 

F
u
tu

re
S

p
a
c
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

in
 

lin
e
 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 

a
g

re
e
d
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

W
C

P
I0

6
0
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
u

s
to

m
e
rs

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
e
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

7
0
%

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
: 

8
1
.8

8
%

 

7
0
%

 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 
In

te
ri

m
: 

8
7
.7

6
%

 

7
0
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

T
h

is
 

q
u
a

rt
e

r 
c
u

s
to

m
e
r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 
is

 
a

h
e

a
d

 
o

f 
o

u
r 

b
e
n

c
h
m

a
rk

 t
a

rg
e
t.

 N
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 W
e

e
k
 9

 –
 

1
3
 

O
c
to

b
e

r,
 

a
ff

o
rd

e
d

 
th

e
 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

to
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 
th

e
 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 
o

f 
th

is
 

im
p

o
rt

a
n
t 

d
a
ta

. 
A

t 
th

e
 

e
n
d

 
o
f 

th
is

 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 y

e
a
r 

it
 i

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 
h

a
v
e

 a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 t

h
e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t.
 T

h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 

m
a
k
e

 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

b
a
s
e

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

to
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
ll 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

c
h

a
n

n
e

ls
 

–
 

te
le

p
h

o
n

y
, 

fa
c
e
 
to

 
fa

c
e
 
o

r 
o

n
lin

e
. 

A
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 
th

is
 
is

 
a

n
 

a
n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e
t,

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 o

n
 a

 m
o

n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 t
o
 

a
llo

w
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 
b

a
s
e

d
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
to

 
b

e
 

m
a
d

e
 

a
s
 

is
s
u

e
s
 a

re
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 l
e

a
v
in

g
 d

a
ta

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 u
n
ti
l 
a

n
 e

n
d

 o
f 

y
e

a
r 

o
u
tt
u

rn
. 

    



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

3
7
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

6
1
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a

lls
 t

o
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e

s
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 a

t 
1

s
t 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

7
0
%

 
8
4
%

 
(6

6
,2

9
3
) 

7
0
%

 


 
8
4
%

 
(5

6
,4

7
6
) 

7
0
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

D
u

ri
n
g

 t
h

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

ro
m

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

 
h

a
v
e

 
tr

a
n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 
in

to
 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

. 
E

n
d
 
to

 
e

n
d

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 
fo

r 
th

e
s
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 
h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 

re
v
is

it
e

d
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

 r
a

te
s
 o

f 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n

 a
t 

fi
rs

t 
p
o

in
t 

o
f 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

fo
r 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 r

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
p

o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

fo
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

h
is

to
ri
c
a

lly
 

fr
o

n
te

d
 

b
y
 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

h
a
ri
n
g

 
o
f 

b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 
th

e
 
N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 

O
n

e
 
S

to
p
 
S

h
o
p

 
B

e
n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

tr
a

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i

n
to

 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 o
n
g

o
in

g
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n

 a
c
h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 t
a

rg
e
t 

a
t 

y
e

a
r 

e
n
d

. 

W
C

P
I0

6
2
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

e
b
s
it
e

 t
ra

n
s
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 

6
3
.9

%
 

(4
3
6
) 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 


 
5

2
.1

%
 

(4
5
1
) 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 



 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

D
u

ri
n
g

 t
h
e

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

th
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 
o

n
 
lin

e
 
T

ip
 
p

e
rm

it
 
a

n
d

 
b

o
o

k
in

g
 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 

in
tr

o
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 t

o
 v

ie
w

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 b

ill
s
 o

n
 l

in
e
 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 ‘
M

y
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t’
 f

u
n
c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e

. 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 

m
a
k
e

 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
ils

 
w

e
b

s
it
e

 
m

o
re

 
tr

a
n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 S
O

C
T

IM
 4

* 
h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
; 

th
is

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 

in
tr

o
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

a
 

c
u

s
to

m
e
r 

e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

tf
o
rm

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 

s
e

e
 

a
n
 

in
c
re

m
e

n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

th
is

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
t.
 

   



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

3
8
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

6
3
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o

u
r 

e
lig

ib
le

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
p
p

ra
is

a
l 

1
0
0
%

 
N

o
t 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 
1
0
0
%

 


 
5
3
%

 
1
0
0
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

A
 

d
a
ta

 
c
le

a
n

s
e
 

o
f 

th
e

 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

d
a
ta

 
is

 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

o
n
g

o
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

O
c
to

b
e
r,

 
a

t 
w

h
ic

h
 

ti
m

e
 

d
a
ta

 
fo

r 
th

is
 

m
e

a
s
u
re

 
w

ill
 

b
e
c
o

m
e

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

. 
 

W
C

P
I0

6
4
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
s
 d

a
y
s
 l
o

s
t 
p

e
r 

F
u
ll 

T
im

e
 E

q
u

iv
a

le
n
t 

(F
T

E
) 

to
 s

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 
2

.9
3

 D
a

y
s
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 


 
4
.9

9
 D

a
y
s
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

W
h
ils

t 
w

e
 

d
o
 

n
o
t 

h
a
v
e

 
a

 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
 

ta
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 
m

e
a
s
u

re
, 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 
A

p
ri

l 
–
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 q

u
it
e

 h
ig

h
 f

o
r 

th
is

 p
o
in

t 
in

 t
im

e
. 

O
u
r 

s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 f
o
r 

2
3
.6

%
 (

1
.1

8
 

D
a

y
s
),

 w
h

ils
t 
o

u
r 

lo
n
g

-t
e

rm
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

 f
o
r 

7
6
.4

%
 

(3
.8

2
 D

a
y
s
).

 A
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
is

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 i

s
 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 p

re
d

ic
t,
 o

u
r 

e
n
d

 o
f 

y
e

a
r 

o
u
tt

u
rn

 c
o

u
ld

 p
la

c
e
 u

s
 

in
 

th
e
 

b
o
tt

o
m

 
q

u
a
rt

ile
 

w
h

e
n

 
c
o

m
p

a
ri
n
g

 
a
g

a
in

s
t 

A
ll 

E
n

g
lis

h
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
, 

A
ll 

E
n

g
lis

h
 M

e
tr

o
p
o

lit
a

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
s
 

a
n
d

 w
h

e
n

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 o

u
r 

B
la

c
k
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
 n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rs

. 

W
C

P
I0

6
5
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
F

re
e

d
o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 (

F
O

I)
 r

e
q

u
e

s
ts

 
re

s
p
o

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 t
im

e
fr

a
m

e
 

9
7
%

 
1

0
0

.0
%

 
9

7
.0

%
 


 
9

9
.9

%
 

9
7
.0

%
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

O
n

e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
w

e
n
t 

o
v
e

r 
a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 o

f 
a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 
e

rr
o

r 
a

n
d
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
m

a
n
u

a
l 

d
a
ta

b
a

s
e
. 
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

te
a
m

. 
 T

h
e
 I
G

 T
e

a
m

 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 I
C

T
 a

t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 
to

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
 a

n
 i
n

te
ri
m

 r
e

c
o
rd

in
g

 d
a
ta

b
a

s
e
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 
e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
m

a
n

u
a

l 
k
e

y
in

g
 i
s
 k

e
p
t 
to

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

. 
IC

T
 

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 o

n
 t
h

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

n
d

 w
e

 a
re

 h
o

p
in

g
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 
th

is
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 b

y
 t
h

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

3
9
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

6
6
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
S

u
b
je

c
t 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 r

e
q

u
e
s
ts

 r
e

s
p
o

n
d

e
d

 t
o
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 t
im

e
fr

a
m

e
 

8
5
%

 
9

7
.0

0
%

 
8
5
%

 


 
9

7
.4

%
 

8
5
.0

%
 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

1
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

p
e
r 

e
a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

  


 

J
u

ly
 –

 t
h

is
 w

a
s
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 v

o
lu

m
in

o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 –

 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 S

A
R

s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
r 

P
e

o
p

le
 

a
re

. 
 D

e
la

y
s
 c

a
n
 o

c
c
u
r 

w
h

e
n

 w
e

 r
e

c
e
iv

e
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 

v
o

lu
m

in
o

u
s
 r

e
q

u
e
s
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

. 
 W

e
 a

re
 

b
u
ild

in
g

 r
e

s
ili

e
n
c
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 t
e

a
m

 (
th

ro
u
g

h
 

tr
a

in
in

g
) 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 c
a

n
 b

e
 m

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 h
ig

h
 v

o
lu

m
e

s
 o

f 
la

rg
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
. 


 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

–
 u

n
fo

rt
u

n
a
te

ly
 t

h
is

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 

s
a
t 

in
 

a
n
o

th
e

r 
IG

 i
n

b
o

x
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
n
’t
 p

ic
k
e

d
 u

p
 o

n
 i
n

 
ti
m

e
 –

 i
t 
tu

rn
e
d

 o
u
t 
th

a
t 
w

e
 d

id
n
’t
 h

o
ld

 t
h

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
y
w

a
y
. 

 


 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

–
 t

h
is

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 

w
a

s
 o

f 
a

 s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 n
a
tu

re
, 
a

n
d
 w

e
n
t 

o
v
e

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 

d
e
la

y
 w

it
h

 r
e

c
e
iv

in
g

 a
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o

n
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
 f

ile
. 
A

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e
la

y
 w

a
s
 e

n
c
o

u
n

te
re

d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

t 
th

e
 

p
o
in

t 
o
f 

s
ig

n
-o

ff
/a

p
p

ro
v
a

l.
 

W
C

P
I0

6
7
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
u

s
to

m
e
rs

 w
h

o
 f

e
e
l 
in

fo
rm

e
d
 a

b
o
u

t 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

B
a

s
e
lin

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

A
 s

u
rv

e
y
 (

in
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

) 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 

to
 c

o
lle

c
t 

d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
. 
T

h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

n
d

 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b

lic
is

e
d
 i
n

 d
u

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

. 



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 P

a
g

e
s
 

4
0
 o

f 
4
1

 

R
e

f 
M

e
a
s

u
re

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
L

a
te

s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

R
A

G
 

W
C

P
I0

6
4
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h

e
m

 

8
0
%

 
N

o
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

8
0
%

 


 

N
o

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

8
0
%

 


 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
: 

A
n

 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
s
u
rv

e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 a
s
c
e

rt
a

in
 t

h
e
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
d

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 
s
h

o
rt

 '
s
n

a
p
-s

u
rv

e
y
' 
in

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

/ 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 u

s
 w

it
h

 a
n

 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 

  



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 2 of 5 

 

 Agenda Item No: 7  

 

Scrutiny Board 
15 December 2015 
 

  
Report title Information Governance Performance Report – 

Quarter Two 2015/16 
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Councillor Paul Sweet 
Governance  

Wards affected All 

Accountable director Kevin O’Keefe, Governance 

Originating service Democracy 

Accountable employee(s) Anna Zollino-

Biscotti 

Tel 

Email 

Information Governance Manager 

 

01902 555166 

anna.zollino-biscotti@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Information Governance Board 

Strategic Executive Board 

Cabinet Performance Management Panel  

4 December 2015 

10 November 2015 

23 November 2015 

 

 

Recommendation(s) for action or decision: 

 

The Scrutiny Board is recommended to: 

 
1. Review and comment on the Quarter Two performance for Information Governance 

 
2. Identify and feedback any further action that may be necessary. 

 

3. Recommend any issues to be referred to the Scrutiny Board for further consideration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 To report on the performance of Information Governance for Quarter One (April – June 

2015). 

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 The Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) conducted consensual audits of the 

Council in October 2011 and July 2012. 

       

2.2 The October 2011 audit covered requests for personal data and requests made under 

the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOI). The ICO’s subsequent overall opinion was 

that there was a very limited assurance that processes and procedures were in place and 

being adhered to.  

 

2.3 The ICO carried out a further audit on 19 July 2012 to measure the extent to which The 

City of Wolverhampton Council had implemented the agreed recommendations and 

identify any subsequent change to the level of assurance previously given. This was 

based on an update provided in March 2012 and subsequent management information.  

The ICO raised the Council’s status from Red “Very Limited Assurance” to Amber 

“Limited Assurance” as an acknowledgement that progress had been made. 

 

2.4 The Council provided a final management update to the ICO on 20 December 2012, after 

which the ICO confirmed that the audit process had been brought to a conclusion.  

Throughout 2013, work continued to ensure that a strategic approach was adopted to 

how the Council manages information assets. 

 

2.5 In February 2014, the ICO  asked for further updates on progress, as a result of 

information incidents the Council was managing.  The Council was then placed under an 

enforcement notice to achieve 100% of employees having undertaken the mandatory 

‘protecting information training’. 

 

2.6 In June 2014, the Council complied with the enforcement notice and achieved 100% of 

employees completing the ‘protecting information’ training.  

 

2.7 In order to ensure ongoing improvements with information governance, this report 

outlines current performance.    

 

3.0 Progress/Update 

 

3.1 The IG performance figures are contained in Appendix A.  

 

3.2 The number of freedom of information requests from the media has now been included in 

the Information Governance performance reports.  Please refer to Appendix A.   

 



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 4 of 5 

 

3.3 The Independent Commission on Freedom of Information has asked for a call for 

evidence to consider the implications of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, in 

particular, the balance between transparency and the burden of the Act on public 

authorities.  The call for evidence closed on 21 November 2015 and the Independent 

Commission will publish responses early in the New Year.  An update of the outcome 

and responses will be provided to the Scrutiny Board when available.  

 

4.0 Financial implications 

 

4.1 There are no financial implications associated with the recommendation in this report as 

Councillors are requested to review the progress made on information governance.   

 

4.2 It is worth noting, however, that a failure to effectively manage information governance 

carries a financial risk.  Inaccurate and out of date information can lead to poor decision 

making and a potential waste of financial resources.  In addition to this, poor information 

governance can actually result in a fine of up to £500,000 from the ICO.   

  

[GE/30112015/M] 

 

5.0 Legal implications 

 

5.1 The Council has a legal duty under the Data Protection Act 1998, Freedom of Information 

Act 2000 and Environmental Information Regulations 2004 to appropriately manage and 

protect information assets. 

 

5.2     The integration of Public Health into the Council in April 2012 required the Council to 

provide assurance to the NHS that it had in place suitable information governance 

policies, procedures and processes. 

 

5.3 Failure to effectively manage information governance could increase risk of exposure to 

fraud and malicious acts, reputational damage, an inability to recover from major 

incidents and potential harm to individuals or groups due to inappropriate disclosure of 

information. 

 

5.4 The Information Commissioner has the legal authority to: 

 

 Fine organisations up to £500,000 per breach of the Data Protection Act or Privacy & 

Electronic Communication Regulations 

 Conduct assessments to check organisations are complying with the Act 

 Serve Enforcement Notices and 'stop now' orders where there has been a breach of 

the Act, requiring organisations to take (or refrain from taking) specified steps in order 

to ensure they comply with the law 

 Prosecute those who commit criminal offences under section 55 of the Act 

 Conduct audits to assess whether organisations processing of personal data follows 

good practice 

 Report issues of concern to Parliament.  

 



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 5 of 5 

 

[RB/01122015/Y] 

 

6.0 Equalities implications 

 

6.1 There are no equality implications arising from this report and its recommendations. 

 

6.2 All policies and procedures developed as part of the information governance maturity 

model will undergo an equalities analysis screen and full analysis if appropriate.  

 

7.0 Environmental implications 

 

7.1 There are no environmental implications arising from this report. 

 

8.0 Human resources implications 

 

8.1 All employees are required to comply with Information Governance legislation and are 

required to complete the mandatory ‘protecting information training’. 

 

9.0 Corporate landlord implications 

 

9.1 There are no corporate landlord implications arising from this report.  

 

10.0 Schedule of background papers 

 

10.1 Update on Information Governance report to Cabinet – 26 March 2014.  

 



To
ta

l
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
%

To
ta

l
%

To
ta

l
%

To
ta

l
%

To
ta

l
%

To
ta

l
%

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

4
7

1
0

0
.0

0
%

2
8

1
0

0
.0

0
%

3
8

1
0

0
.0

0
%

1
1

3
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
3

6
1

0
0

.0
0

%
2

3
1

0
0

.0
0

%
2

4
1

0
0

.0
0

%
8

3

P
e

o
p

le
2

5
1

0
0

.0
0

%
3

1
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

8
1

0
0

.0
0

%
7

4
P

e
o

p
le

1
2

9
1

.6
7

%
1

0
.0

0
%

4
7

5
.0

0
%

1
7

P
la

ce
3

5
1

0
0

.0
0

%
5

2
9

9
.0

8
%

1
9

1
0

0
.0

0
%

1
0

6
P

la
ce

9
1

0
0

.0
0

%
3

1
0

0
.0

0
%

1
3

1
0

0
.0

0
%

2
5

W
M

P
F

3
1

0
0

.0
0

%
0

1
0

0
.0

0
%

0
1

0
0

.0
0

%
3

W
M

P
F

0
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

1
0

0
.0

0
%

0
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

W
M

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
0

0
0

0
W

M
Tr

an
sp

o
rt

0
0

0
0

O
ve

ra
ll

1
1

0
1

0
0

.0
0

%
1

1
1

9
9

.1
0

%
7

5
1

0
0

.0
0

%
2

9
6

O
ve

ra
ll

5
7

9
8

.2
5

%
2

8
9

6
.4

3
%

4
1

9
7

.5
6

%
1

2
6

M
e

d
ia

R
e

q
u

e
st

s
*

2
7

3
0

2
0

7
7

Q
u

ar
te

r
x

2
0

1
4

/1
5

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

FO
Is

D
ir

e
ct

o
ra

te

SA
R

s

D
ir

e
ct

o
ra

te

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
e

r

Su
b

je
ct

A
cc

e
ss

R
e

q
u

e
st

(S
A

R
)

R
e

sp
o

n
se

R
at

e
s

Q
2

2
0

1
5

/1
6

Fr
e

e
d

o
m

o
f

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

(F
O

I)
R

e
sp

o
n

se
R

at
e

s
Q

2
2

0
1

5
/1

6

FO
In

u
m

b
e

r
re

ce
iv

e
d

(r
e

sp
o

n
se

ra
te

)
b

y
D

ir
e

ct
o

ra
te

Q
2

-
2

0
1

5
/1

6
SA

R
n

u
m

b
e

r
re

ce
iv

e
d

(r
e

sp
o

n
se

ra
te

)
b

y
D

ir
e

ct
o

ra
te

Q
2

-
2

0
1

5
/1

6

Q
u

ar
te

r
2

2
0

1
5

/1
6

9
9

.7
0

%

0
.0

0
%

1
0

.0
0

%

2
0

.0
0

%

3
0

.0
0

%

4
0

.0
0

%

5
0

.0
0

%

6
0

.0
0

%

7
0

.0
0

%

8
0

.0
0

%

9
0

.0
0

%

1
0

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

1
0

.0
0

%

2
0

.0
0

%

3
0

.0
0

%

4
0

.0
0

%

5
0

.0
0

%

6
0

.0
0

%

7
0

.0
0

%

8
0

.0
0

%

9
0

.0
0

%

1
0

0
.0

0
%

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

Su
m

m
ar

y
Q

u
ar

te
r

Tw
o

-
2

0
1

5
/1

6 9
7

.5
6

%
9

6
.4

3
%

9
8

.2
5

%
1

0
0

%
9

9
.1

0
%

1
0

0
%

P
ro

d
u

ce
d

b
y

th
e

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

Te
am

,
0

9
N

o
v

2
0

1
5

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

In
ci

d
e

n
ts

Q
2

2
0

1
5

/1
6

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

3
8

%

P
eo

p
le

3
8

%

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

Ta
rg

et

M
o

n
th

ly
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

N
e

w
St

ar
te

rs
-

1
1

1
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

5
7

%
N

o
t

co
m

p
le

te
d

4
3

%Tr
a

in
in

g
Q

2
2

0
1

5
/1

6

W
M

P
F

2
4
%

FO
IR

e
sp

o
n

se
R

at
e

Q
u

ar
te

r
1

2
0

1
5

/1
6

1
0

0
%

9
8

%

Q
u

ar
te

r
1

2
0

1
5

/1
6

Q
u

ar
te

r
2

2
0

1
5

/1
6

9
7

.4
1

%
SA

R
R

e
sp

o
n

se
R

at
e

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

Ta
rg

et

M
o

n
th

ly
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

*
F

O
I

re
g
im

e
is

a
p
p
lic

a
n
t

b
lin

d
;

th
e

fi
g
u
re

s
p
ro

vi
d
e
d

o
n
ly

in
cl

u
d
e

th
o
se

w
h
e
re

w
e

ca
n

id
e
n
ti
fy

th
e

re
q
u
e
st

o
r

a
s

b
e
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

M
e
d
ia

.





This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 2 of 21 

 Agenda Item No:  8 

 

Scrutiny Board 
15 December 2015 
 

  
Report title Quarter 2 Corporate, Social Care and Public 

Health Complaints Report 
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Councillor Andrew Johnson 
Resources 

Wards affected All 

Accountable director Keith Ireland, Managing Director 

Originating service Customer Services 

Accountable employee(s) Alison Dowling 

Tel 

Email 

 

Sarah Campbell 

Tel 

Email 

Customer Relations and Complaints Mgr 

01902 553203 

Alison.Dowling@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

Complaints Manager 

01902 551901 

Sarah.Campbell@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Corporate Leadership Team  

People Leadership Team 

Place Leadership Team 

Strategic Executive Board 

23 November 2015 

30 November 2015 

1 December 2015   

8 December 2015 

 

Recommendation(s) for action or decision: 

 

The Scrutiny Board is recommended to: 

 
1. Review complaints management and performance for the period 1 July 2015 to 30 

September 2015. 

 

Recommendations for noting: 

 

The Scrutiny Board is asked to note: 

 

1. New combined report of Statutory Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints 

for the period Quarter 2 (July to September 2015). 

 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 3 of 21 

2. Part A of the report relates to statutory complaints activity for Adult Social Care, Children 

and Young People Social Care and Public Health, Part B relates to all other complaints 

activity governed by the corporate complaints procedure. 

 

  



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 4 of 21 

Part A – Adult Social Care, Children and Young People Social Care and Public Health 

Complaints Activity. 

 

1.0 Background 

 

1.1 Complaints activity concerning Adult, Children and Young People’s Services and Public 

Health are governed by legislative framework and have to be dealt with in accordance 

with statutory guidance.  

 

1.2 For Children’s and Family Services, Regulation 14 (1) of The Children Act 1989 

Representations Procedure (England) Regulations 2006 places a 10 working day time 

limit for resolution, most Stage one complaints should ideally be concluded within this 

time limit. 
  
1.3 Where the service cannot provide a complete response, it can implement a further 10 

days extension (regulation 14(5)).  If necessary, the Complaints Manager may also 
suspend stage one until an advocate has been appointed (regulation 14 (3)).  The 
maximum amount of time that stage one should take is 20 working days.  After this 
deadline the complainant can request consideration at stage two if they so wish. 

 
1.4 Where the complainant feels that they have not received a satisfactory outcome they will 

be informed that he/she has the right to move on to stage two if they wish.   
 
1.5 In Early Help, which is not governed by the legislation of the Children Act 1989, the 

authority has adopted the legislative guidelines for timescales for response and closure 
to complaints across all service areas in order to provide a continuity of service. 

 
1.6 Adult Social Care and Health complaints have to be dealt with in accordance with The 

Local Authority Social Services and National Health Service Complaints (England) 
Regulations 2009. The Local Authority currently has a joint protocol for the handling of 
cross boundary complaints. 

 
1.7 Public Health Complaints have to be dealt with in accordance with The NHS Bodies and 

Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public Health and Local 
Healthwatch) Regulations 2012. 

   
1.8 Whilst the regulations do not stipulate timescales for resolution to complaints, the People 

directorate operate a ten day organisational timescale. This can be extended to 20 
working days for more complex cases. 

 

1.9 Non statutory People Directorate complaints are dealt with in accordance with the 

Corporate Complaints Procedure. 

 

1.10 Details of the appropriate complaints procedures can be found on the Council Internet 

site.  
 
2.0 Complaints Intervention 
 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 5 of 21 

2.1 The following actions are in operation to monitor satisfactory resolution of complaints in a 
timely manner:  

 

 Proactive chasing of managers responding to complaints, in accordance with 
escalation plan in operation. 

 Mediation between complainants and investigating officers. 

 Quality assurance checks undertaken of complaint response letters. 

 Weekly reporting to Service Directors and Heads of Services on the status of 
complaints, detailing any areas for concern where managers will need to prioritise 
outstanding complaints and resolution in order to receive a satisfactory prompt 
outcome for the complainant. 

 

 Customer Feedback Activity 

 

3.0 Children and Young People (Appendices 1 and 3) 
 
 During this quarter: 
  
3.1 A total of 34 formal complaints were received compared to 39 in quarter 1; representing a 

decrease of 12.82%.  However, when compared to the half yearly figures from 2014/15 
where 64 complaints were received, there has in fact been an increase of 14.06%. 

 
3.2 15 new complaints were received for the Children in Need/Child Protection (CIN/CP) 

teams representing 44% of all complaints. This compares to 24 cases (62%) for the 
previous quarter.  Pleasingly this shows a considerable reduction in volume of new 
complaints for the CIN/CP teams. 

 
3.3 18 complaints were received by the Looked After Children teams compared to eight the 

previous quarter.  This represents an increase of 125%.  The areas of particular concern 
are the Looked After Children (LAC) Team 3 and the Leaving Care/Transition Team.  
From the Leaving Care/Transition Team complaints, two related to the ‘Staying Put’ 
Policy and two concerning disagreement with placement moves. 

 
3.4 One complaint related to Early Help Services compared to six the previous quarter. 
 
3.5 38 complaints were resolved which was eight more in volume than those resolved in the 

previous quarter.  
 
3.6 50% were responded to within the initial ten day statutory timescales, compared to last 

quarter’s figure of 40%.  However, overall 84% were closed within 20 working days, 
compared to 70% in quarter 1. The average number of days to close for all complaints 
over the term fell from 15 to 13 days. 

 
3.7 Of the 38 cases closed; 18% were upheld, compared to quarter 1 figure of 33%; and 

45% were partially upheld, compared to quarter 1 figure of 37%. The volume of 
complaints where the Council was not found at fault has increased from 30% to 37%. 

 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 6 of 21 

3.8 One complaint is currently being considered at stage two of the Children’s Act Statutory 
Complaints Procedure by two external investigating officers.  This complaint relates to an 
assessment undertaken by the CIN/CP service – the complaint was not upheld at stage 
one.  The outcome of this will be shared in the next reporting period. 

 
3.9 Top featured categories for formal complaints received were Communication (14 cases) 

and Quality of Service (nine cases).  The complaints in relation to communication tend to 
arise from the failure to keep families up to date on the progress of their involvement with 
social care. 

 
3.10 There has been a reduction in volume of complaints relating to the conduct/attitude of the 

social care professional.  Two cases were received in this quarter compared to six in the 
previous. 

 
4.0 Adult Social Care and Public Health (Appendices 2 and 4) 
 
 During this quarter: 
 
4.1 31 formal complaints were received compared with 20 complaints in the previous quarter, 

representing an increase of 55%, and an increase of 72% when compared against 
quarter 2 of 2014/15.  One related to Public Health functions. 

 
4.2 The main areas of increase are the Adult Community Team East where seven cases 

were received compared to one in quarter 1; and the Therapy Assessments where three 
cases were received compared to none in quarter 1. 

 
4.3 The highest volume of complaints was received by the Adult Community Team East 

where seven complaints were received. 
 

4.4 40% of complaints were upheld, compared to quarter 1 when the figure was 15%, 
representing a significant increase.  Cases which were partially upheld have reduced 
from 50% to 36%; and those cases which were not upheld have decreased from 35% to 
24%. 

 
4.5 The number of complaints responded to within the initial ten day timescale has increased 

from 15% to 40%.  However, 60% of all complaints closed were completed within the 
Secondary target of 20 days; which was the same as in the last quarter. 

 
4.6 The average number of days to close all complaints over the term increased from 18 

days to 22 days. 

 
4.7 The Customer Relations and Complaints Team received seven further queries which, 

after initial enquiries, were found to fall outside the jurisdiction of the People Directorate 
or were treated as requests for service or informal complaints. These were redirected 
accordingly. 

4.8 30 compliments were received. 
 
5.0 Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) Enquiries or Investigations or Corporate 

Stage 2 investigations 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 7 of 21 

 

Three cases are currently being considered by the LGO: 

 

 An enquiry was received relating to lack of support and financial assistance to  

family foster carers.  This was upheld at stage one.  The complainants took legal 

action against the Authority and stage two was declined.  Following a previous 

enquiry from the LGO, stage one was reconsidered and upheld.  The case was 

kept open for an extended period for consideration at stage two; however, upon 

closure, the complainants contacted the LGO who are now undertaking a full 

investigation. 

 Another enquiry relates to the provision of CAMHS support for a young person 

where a previous Statutory stage 2 which had been undertaken and upheld.  

However, the advocate requested consideration at stage three.  The grounds for 

progression to stage three were a different set of circumstances and, therefore, 

not appropriate for escalating to stage three. Due to continued dissatisfaction, the 

case is now being considered by the LGO. 

 The Adult Social Care enquiry relates to the review of the rate of Direct Payment 

to employ a Personal Assistant (PA), which was not upheld.  The relevant 

information has been provided to the LGO who have made a final decision and 

found no fault with the local authority. 

 
6.0  Learning from Complaints (Appendix 5) 

6.1 Children and Young People, Adult Social Care and Public Health services are committed 
to learning from customer feedback and require the completion of a Learning 
Log/Implementation Plan from each complaint investigated. Where complaints highlight 
that things have gone wrong, managers are required to identify any remedial and 
improvement action.   

 
6.2 Feedback from compliments is also considered as it provides a valuable source of 

information affirming when services make a difference and personal attributes of the 
worker has added value to the outcome for users and carers.  
 

6.3 Feedback is provided to all Heads of Service and Senior Management Teams on a 
regular basis, in order to promote positive learning and to influence service improvement. 

 
6.4 Service Directors are provided with a summary of learning from complaints and 

implementation plans on a quarterly basis, such that they form a regular agenda item for 
discussion.   

 
6.5 Head of Service are provided with completed Implementation Plans in order to ensure 

recommendations are implemented. 
 
Part B – Corporate Complaints Activity 
 

7.0 Purpose 

 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 8 of 21 

7.1 The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of the corporate complaints, 

compliments, Local Government Ombudsman and Housing Ombudsman enquiries 

received by the Council during Quarter 2 (July to September 2015). 
 
7.2 All corporate complaints, compliments, Housing Ombudsman and Local Government 

Ombudsman enquiries are considered a form of customer feedback.  The Customer 
Feedback team monitor and record all enquiries.  The team analyses and monitors 
customer feedback which provides details about the types of complaints that are received 
by the authority, and highlights suggested customer driven improvements to service 
provision or delivery to directorates. 

 

8.0 Stage one complaints 

 

8.1 During Quarter 2 (July to September 2015) the Council received 82 stage one 

complaints; all complaints are assessed as to whether they are upheld (Council at fault) 

or not upheld (Council not at fault) by the Corporate Complaints Manager/Complaints 

Assistant.  Of the 82 stage one complaints received during Quarter 2, 75 (91%) 

complaints were not upheld (council not at fault) and seven (9%) were upheld (council at 

fault).  As a result of continuous monitoring with service managers, the issues identified 

from the upheld (council at fault) complaints have been addressed.  As a remedy to the 

complaint, an apology is issued to the customer informing them of the improvements that 

have been made to service delivery as a consequence of their complaint.  Appendix 6 

shows a summary of stage one complaints received. 

 

8.2 During Quarter 2 (July to September 2015), Revenues and Benefits received the highest 

number of stage one complaints (13), followed by Waste Management (12); however, 

none of Revenues and Benefits complaints were upheld (council not at fault). These 

figures have decreased for both teams in comparison to the number of complaints 

received during Quarter 1; Revenues and Benefits has decreased by 19% and Waste 

Management by 43%.  The average response time for both these service groups is nine 

days; this has contributed significantly to achieving an overall response time of 13 days 

to complaints for Quarter 2 (July to September 2015).  

 

8.3 The target response time for stage one complaints is 95% of complaints responded to 

within an average of 21 calendar days. During Quarter 2 (July to September 2015) 100% 

(82) stage one complaints were responded to within this target timescale.  The Customer 

Feedback Team also provide support to investigating officers to ensure that they meet 

these target response deadlines. Investigating officers are contacted on a weekly basis 

through phone or email to confirm deadlines; where delays are unavoidable, the 

Customer Feedback team ensure that complainants are kept updated. 

 

9.0 Stage two complaints 

 

9.1 If a customer is not satisfied with the response provided at stage one of the complaints 

procedure, they have the option to escalate their complaint to stage two.  

 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 9 of 21 

9.2 During Quarter 2 (July to September 2015), the Council received 11 stage two 

complaints; this equates to 13% of stage one complaints escalating to stage two in this 

quarter.  

 

9.3 The Council received 11 stage two complaints; seven for Place Directorate, two for 

Corporate Directorate and two for People Directorate; none of those stage two 

complaints were upheld (council not at fault). This is reflected in Appendix 7. 

 

10.0 Local Government Ombudsman enquiries 

 

10.1 During Quarter 2 (July to September 2015), the Council received two LGO enquiries; 

both enquiries were for the Place Directorate; one enquiry related to Bereavement 

Services and one enquiry related to Planning Department.  Both enquiries are still under 

investigation and an update will be provided within Quarter 3 Report (October to 

December 2015).  This is reflected in Appendix 7. 

 

11.0 Local Government Ombudsman assessment enquiries 

 

11.1 In order for the LGO to determine whether a case should be formally investigated, local 

authorities are requested to provide further information about a complaint; this 

information is requested via an “assessment enquiry”.    

 

11.2 During Quarter 2 (July to September 2015) the Council received six LGO assessment 

enquiries; two for Corporate Directorate, two for Place Directorate and two for People 

Directorate.   

 

11.3 Of the two for Corporate Directorate, two were received for Revenues and Benefits; one 

progressed to a full LGO investigation and one advised by the LGO to complete the 

corporate complaints procedure. 

 

11.4 Of the two for Place Directorate, one was received for Bereavement Services; the LGO 

instructed to progress to a full investigation. One was received for Public Realm 

Services; the LGO advised that they had decided not to investigate. 

 

11.5 Of the two for People Directorate, one was received for Adult Social Care; the LGO 

instructed that they would progress to a full investigation. One was received for Children 

Social Care; the LGO instructed that the case had been passed to their investigation 

team for further consideration.  

 

12.0 Housing Ombudsman 

 

12.1 During Quarter 2 (July to September 2015), one initial enquiry was received from the 

Housing Ombudsman; the Housing Ombudsman advised that the complaint be 

progressed to stage two of Wolverhampton Homes’ complaints procedure. 

 

13.0 Compliments  

 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 10 of 21 

13.1 During Quarter 2 (July to September 2015), the Council has received 119 compliments 

from customers. Bereavement Services accounted for the highest number of 

compliments with 40, followed by Planning with 24 and Housing Options/Outreach with 

22.  All compliments are recorded by the Customer Feedback Team and reported as part 

of the team’s quarterly monitoring process.   

 

14.0 Customer Focus Groups  

 

14.1 Complaint Focus Groups are arranged by the Customer Feedback Team on a quarterly 

basis. They are attended by customers who have raised issues with the Council 

regarding specific issues. A focus group took place on 21 October 2015; the group 

discussed opening times for Anchor Lane and Shaw Road.  The group also reviewed 

new marketing leaflets for bin contamination and recycling.  The notes from this focus 

group have been circulated to all attendees and relevant officers within appropriate 

service groups.  Findings from the focus group will be presented to the appropriate 

Heads of Service and to the next Service Improvement Group which will be attended by 

senior officers from the relevant service areas. Officers will be expected to consider and, 

where possible, act on findings presented to ensure that improvements within their 

services are customer led. Outcomes from Service Improvement Groups are then fed 

back to focus group attendees.   

 

15.0 Service Improvement Reports  

 

15.1 When a complaint is upheld (Council at fault) and the findings of a subsequent 

investigation are for a change to policy or service delivery, the Customer Feedback Team 

produce a service improvement report. Recommendations within these reports are 

agreed with appropriate Heads of Service and shared with the relevant Service Director, 

Strategic Director and the Managing Director. 

 

15.2 One service improvement report has been compiled regarding a stage two complaint for 

Bereavement Services.  Two service improvement reports are currently being compiled 

for the People Directorate regarding two upheld Senstart LGO enquiries. 

 

16.0 Ward Data  

 

16.1 During Quarter 2 (July to September 2015), ward complaint data has been collated; 

monitoring ward data provides an insight into trends and numbers in complaints for each 

ward. This is information is detailed at Appendix 5.        

 

17.0 Monitoring Information 

 

17.1 There are no concerns with the data analysis, and there is no evidence of any groups 

being disproportionately affected. The equalities data is based upon what complainants 

have provided and therefore there are no concerns of any groups being 

disproportionately affected. This is reflected in Appendix 4. 

 

18.0 Service updates from the Complaints Report Quarter 1 – 2015-16 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 11 of 21 

 

18.1 Local Government Ombudsman enquiries  

 

 Three final outcomes have been received from the LGO during Quarter 2; two enquiries 

in relation to Senstart and one for Adult Social Care.  With regards to the two enquiries 

for Senstart the LGO decided that there was maladministration and recommendations 

were made for improvements.  The recommendations related to: 

 

 Case one - review timescales for placement breakdown and methods of recording 

targets reviews 

 Case two – consultation with the independent school to provide educational 

resources and a financial remedy made to the complainant  

 

With regards to the case for Adult Social Care, the LGO decided that there was no 

evidence or fault on the part of the Council.  

 

18.2 Housing Ombudsman enquiries 2014-15 

 

 Two enquiries in relation to Wolverhampton Homes have now been finalised; one enquiry 

was not upheld and one case was concluded with no further action. 

 

18.3 Service Improvement Reports 

  
The Scrutiny Panel requested that future complaint reports provide an example of an 
upheld complaint which resulted in a service improvement report.  During quarter 1 (April 
2015 to June 2015) Bereavement Services were found to be at fault at stage two for 
record keeping. The Corporate Complaints Team liaised with this service and a 
programme has been set up by the Bereavement Manager to work with document 
specialists to ensure that all records are both readily available and accessible.   

 

19.0 Financial Implications 

 

19.1 There are no financial implications associated with the recommendation in this report.  

[GE/30112015/E]. 

 

20.0 Legal Implications 

 

20.1 The statutory complaints procedure must comply with various statutes. These include: 

 

 Children and Family Services - The Children Act 1989, Representations 

Procedure (England) Regulations 2006.  The Local Authority functions covered 

include services provided under Parts III, IV and V of the Children Act 1989 

 

 Adult Social Care - The Local Authority Social Services and National Health 

Service Complaints (England) Regulations 2009; which came into force on 1st 

April 2009. 

 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 12 of 21 

 Public Health - The NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, 
Care Trusts, Public Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012.  

 
[RB/01122015/U]. 

 

21.0 Equalities Implications 

 

21.1 There are no equalities implications associated with this report. 

 

22.0 Environmental Implications 

 

22.1 There are no environmental implications associated with this report. 

 

23.0 Human Resources Implications 

 

23.1 There are no human resource implications associated with this report. 

 

24.0 Corporate Landlord Implications 

 

24.1 There are no corporate landlord implications associated with this report. 

 

25.0 Schedule of Background Papers 

 

25.1 None for consideration.  

 

Appendices  

 

1. Children and Young People Customer Feedback Dashboard 

2. Adult Social Care and Public Health Services Customer Feedback Dashboard 

3. People Directorate Organisational Learning 

4. Corporate Complaints Equalities Data Stage 1 

5. Corporate Ward Data 

6. Corporate Customer Feedback Stage 1 Dashboard 

7. Corporate Customer Feedback LGO Enquiries and Ward Data 

 

 

 

 



Q
2

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Yo

un
g 

P
eo

pl
e

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

us
to

m
er

 F
ee

d
b

ac
k

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 -

 Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 (J

ul
y 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
5)

34 13
18

%
37

%
4

5%

Fo
rm

al
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
re

ce
iv

ed
Th

is
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s
a 

de
cr

ea
se

 o
f

S
ta

g
e 

1 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
co

m
p

ar
is

o
n 

fo
r 

q
ua

rt
er

 2

A
ve

ra
g

e 
co

m
p

la
in

t
re

sp
o

ns
e 

ti
m

e
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
he

re
 t

he
C

o
un

ci
l i

s 
at

 f
au

lt
 (u

p
he

ld
)

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 w

he
re

th
e 

C
o

un
ci

l i
s

p
ar

ti
al

ly
 a

t 
fa

ul
t

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 w

he
re

th
e 

C
o

un
ci

l i
s

no
t 

at
 f

au
lt

R
es

p
o

ns
e 

ti
m

es
ca

le
s

20
14

/1
5

32

20
15

/1
6

34

D
A

Y
S

12
.8

2%

Is
su

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tifi
ed

fro
m

 u
ph

el
d 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s

an
d 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ad

dr
es

se
d;

re
m

ed
ie

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
s

by
 a

po
lo

gi
si

ng
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

in
g

th
em

 o
f t

he
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e.

21
 d

ay
s

or
 o

ve
r

tim
es

ca
le

W
ith

in
10

 d
ay

s
tim

es
ca

le
11

-2
0 

da
ys

tim
es

ca
le

50
%

16
%

34
%



Q
2

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Yo

un
g 

P
eo

pl
e

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

us
to

m
er

 F
ee

d
b

ac
k

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 -

 Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 (J

ul
y 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
5)

S
ta

g
e 

1 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
 c

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
B

re
ak

do
w

n 
by

 q
ua

rt
er

S
ta

g
e 

2 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
 c

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n 
-

LG
O

 e
nq

ui
ri

es
 o

r 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

B
re

ak
do

w
n 

by
 q

ua
rt

er

S
ta

g
e 

1 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d

B
re

ak
do

w
n 

by
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
a

S
ta

g
e 

1 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d

B
re

ak
do

w
n 

by
 c

at
eg

or
y

0204060

32

39

32

0
1

34

50

36

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

0

1

Quarter 1

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

0

Social Work Unit 1a

Social Work Unit 2a

Social Work Unit 2c

Social Work Unit 3a

Social Work Unit 4a

Social Work Unit 4b

Social Work Unit 5a

Social Work Unit 7a

Social Work Unit 7b

Social Work Unit 8a

Social Work Unit 8b

Social Inclusion

Adoption Team

LAC Team 1

LAC Team 2

LAC Team 3

Leaving/Care/LAC Transition Team 1

Leaving/Care/LAC Transition Team 2

Upper Pendeford Farm

C
ha

rg
es

 /
 F

ee
s

1

D
am

ag
e 

/ 
Lo

ss
1 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
/ 

In
fo

14

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
9

C
on

du
ct

 /
 A

tt
itu

de
2

D
is

ag
re

e 
w

ith
 P

ol
ic

y 
/ 

C
rit

er
ia

4

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 S

er
vi

ce
2

C
on

ta
ct

 A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
1

26 11
C

o
m

p
lim

en
ts

In
fo

rm
al

 
co

m
p

la
in

ts

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

3

1

1

1

3

1

6

3

3

1

C
IN

/C
P

E
ar

ly
 H

el
p

E
xt

er
na

l P
ro

vi
de

r
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n



Q
2

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
an

d 
P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 C
us

to
m

er
 F

ee
d

b
ac

k
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

 -
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 (J
ul

y 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

5)

31 22
40

%
24

%
36

%

Fo
rm

al
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
re

ce
iv

ed
Th

is
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s
a 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
f

S
ta

g
e 

1 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
co

m
p

ar
is

o
n 

fo
r 

q
ua

rt
er

 2

A
ve

ra
g

e 
co

m
p

la
in

t
re

sp
o

ns
e 

ti
m

e
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
he

re
 t

he
C

o
un

ci
l i

s 
at

 f
au

lt
 (u

p
he

ld
)

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 w

he
re

th
e 

C
o

un
ci

l i
s

p
ar

ti
al

ly
 a

t 
fa

ul
t

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 w

he
re

th
e 

C
o

un
ci

l i
s

no
t 

at
 f

au
lt

R
es

p
o

ns
e 

ti
m

es
ca

le
s

20
14

/1
5

18

20
15

/1
6

31

D
A

Y
S

55
%

Is
su

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tifi
ed

fro
m

 u
ph

el
d 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s

an
d 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ad

dr
es

se
d;

re
m

ed
ie

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
s

by
 a

po
lo

gi
si

ng
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

in
g

th
em

 o
f t

he
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e.

21
 d

ay
s

or
 o

ve
r

tim
es

ca
le

W
ith

in
10

 d
ay

s
tim

es
ca

le
11

-2
0 

da
ys

tim
es

ca
le

40
%

40
%

20
%



Q
2

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
an

d 
P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 C
us

to
m

er
 F

ee
d

b
ac

k
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

 -
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 (J
ul

y 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

5)

S
ta

g
e 

1 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
 c

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
B

re
ak

do
w

n 
by

 q
ua

rt
er

S
ta

g
e 

2 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
 c

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n 
-

LG
O

 e
nq

ui
ri

es
 o

r 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

B
re

ak
do

w
n 

by
 q

ua
rt

er

S
ta

g
e 

1 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d

B
re

ak
do

w
n 

by
 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

S
ta

g
e 

1 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d

B
re

ak
do

w
n 

by
 c

at
eg

or
y

0

15 6

20

18 11 1
1

0
1

30

30
30

4

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

0

30 7
Prospect Tree

Allied Care

Therapy Assessments

Intake Team

Commisioning

Disability Team

Assessment/Billing

Merry Hill House

Directorate

Adult Community Team East

Adult Community Team West

Adult Community Team North

Health And Social Care Team

Public Health

1

1

3

1

1

2

1

1

1

7

6

1

4

1

C
on

tr
ac

te
d 

/ 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t
D

is
ab

ilit
y 

an
d 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e
P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

C
ha

rg
es

/F
ee

s
2

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

/ 
In

fo
8

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
8

C
on

du
ct

/A
tt

itu
de

4

D
is

ag
re

e 
w

ith
 P

ol
ic

y/
C

rit
er

ia
5

D
el

ay
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

/R
es

ou
rc

es
2

Fa
ilu

re
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

1

B
re

ac
h 

of
 C

on
fid

en
tia

lit
y

1

C
o

m
p

lim
en

ts

In
fo

rm
al

 
co

m
p

la
in

ts

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

C
om

m
un

iti
es

P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

1

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

Q
1

Q
2

0 Q
3

4 Q
4

2
2

Q
1

Q
2

Q
2

Q
1

Q
3

Q
4

Q
1

Q
2

30

21

36

30

20

31

0



P
eo

pl
e 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e

C
us

to
m

er
 F

ee
db

ac
k 

- 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l L
ea

rn
in

g
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 3

 -
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 (J
ul

y 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

5)
Le

ar
ni

ng
 fr

om
 C

us
to

m
er

 F
ee

d
b
ac

k 
is

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 im
p
or

ta
nt

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

p
hi

lo
so

p
hy

. M
an

ag
er

s 
re

sp
on

d
in

g 
to

 c
om

p
la

in
ts

 a
re

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
d
 t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

an
y

sh
or

tc
om

in
gs

 w
ith

in
 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

. I
n 

a 
se

rv
ic

e 
st

riv
in

g 
fo

r 
ex

ce
lle

nc
e 

th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ro
om

 fo
r 
co

m
p
la

ce
nc

y 
an

d
 w

he
re

 t
he

re
 is

 a
n 

op
en

 c
ul

tu
re

 o
f r

efl
ec

tiv
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

, c
om

p
la

in
ts

ca
n 

at
 b

es
t 
b
e 

us
ed

 in
 t
he

 d
es

ig
n,

 d
el

iv
er

y 
an

d
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
hi

gh
lig

ht
in

g 
co

nc
er

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 w
el

fa
re

 o
f a

d
ul

ts
: c

hi
ld

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
p
le

 a
nd

fa
m

ili
es

. B
el

ow
 a

re
 b

rie
f d

es
cr

ip
tio

ns
 o

f l
ea

rn
in

g 
fr
om

 c
om

p
la

in
ts

 fo
r 
th

is
 q

ua
rt
er

.

A
S

C
 –

 T
he

ra
p

y 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f t
im

e 
it

is
 ta

ki
ng

 fo
r 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f n

ee
ds

 fo
r

eq
ui

pm
en

t. 
Le

ar
ni

ng
:A

 re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

pr
io

rit
is

at
io

n 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

is
 to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
,

an
d 

a 
bu

si
ne

ss
 c

as
e 

ha
s 

re
ce

nt
ly

 b
ee

n
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

nd
 s

en
t t

o 
H

O
S

 a
nd

 S
er

vi
ce

D
ire

ct
or

 w
ith

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
n 

ho
w

 to
ta

ck
le

 w
ai

tin
g 

lis
t a

nd
 fu

tu
re

 d
em

an
d.

A
S

C
 –

 C
o

m
m

un
it

y 
Te

am
 W

es
t

D
el

ay
 in

 o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 re

sp
ite

 c
ar

e 
fo

r 
el

de
rly

re
la

tiv
e.

 L
ea

rn
in

g
:T

he
 n

ew
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

so
ci

al
w

or
ke

r 
to

 a
gr

ee
 a

 p
la

n 
of

 a
ct

io
n 

to
 s

ha
re

w
ith

 th
e 

te
am

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e

is
 u

se
d 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 th

is
 s

itu
at

io
n

ha
pp

en
in

g 
ag

ai
n.

 A
ls

o,
 to

 e
m

ph
as

is
e 

th
e

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f c
le

ar
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n.

A
S

C
 –

 C
o

m
m

un
it

y 
Te

am
 E

as
t

Th
e 

pr
ot

ra
ct

ed
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 d

el
ay

s 
in

as
ce

rt
ai

ni
ng

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 a
rr

an
gi

ng
 m

ee
tin

gs
an

d 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
 c

ar
e 

an
d

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ld
er

ly
 fa

th
er

. L
ea

rn
in

g
:

B
et

te
r 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l i

ss
ue

s.
 In

 th
e

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

so
ci

al
 w

or
ke

r, 
an

d 
if

th
e 

si
tu

at
io

n 
is

 e
sc

al
at

in
g,

 th
en

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 re
al

lo
ca

te
 c

as
e.

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d
 Y

o
un

g
 P

eo
p

le
 -

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n 
Te

am
A

 c
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 m
ad

e 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
de

la
y

in
 p

as
si

ng
 o

n 
or

 p
os

si
bl

e 
m

is
la

yi
ng

 o
f c

on
ta

ct
 le

tt
er

s 
to

 b
e 

se
nt

to
 th

e 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

bi
rt

h 
m

ot
he

r. 
Le

ar
ni

ng
:A

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
m

es
sa

ge
on

 th
e 

in
bo

x 
st

at
in

g 
th

e 
in

bo
x 

is
 c

he
ck

ed
 o

n 
a 

w
ee

kl
y 

ba
si

s 
an

d
ad

vi
si

ng
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 o
f w

ho
m

 th
ey

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
nt

ac
t i

f a
 re

sp
on

se
 is

no
t r

ec
ei

ve
d 

w
ith

in
 a

 w
ee

k 
or

 if
 th

e 
m

at
te

r 
is

 u
rg

en
t . 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d
 Y

o
un

g
 P

eo
p

le
 –

 L
A

C
 T

ea
m

 3
Tw

o 
si

st
er

s 
w

is
h 

to
 k

ee
p 

th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

r 
w

he
n 

th
ey

 a
re

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 a

no
th

er
 te

am
. 

Le
ar

ni
ng

:A
 b

et
te

r 
tr

an
si

tio
n/

ha
nd

ov
er

 o
f c

as
e 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d

pr
ov

id
in

g 
th

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 re

as
su

ra
nc

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t w
ith

 a
co

ns
is

te
nt

 s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

r.

E
ar

ly
 H

el
p

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Th

is
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

 re
la

te
d 

to
 a

 d
el

ay
 in

 th
e 

E
du

ca
tio

n,
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 C
ar

e 
ne

ed
s

as
se

ss
m

en
t b

ei
ng

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

an
d 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
, a

nd
 th

e
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f a
id

s 
to

 a
ss

is
t a

t s
ch

oo
l. 

D
ue

 to
 v

ar
io

us
 fa

ct
or

s
ex

ce
pt

io
ns

 h
ad

 to
 b

e 
pl

ac
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
tim

es
ca

le
s 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

Le
ar

ni
ng

:W
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

ns
 to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
pr

oc
es

se
s,

 it
 is

 im
pe

ra
tiv

e 
to

 n
ot

ify
 th

e 
fa

m
ily

 a
nd

 e
xp

la
in

 th
e 

re
as

on
s 

w
hy

.
P

ro
to

co
ls

 h
av

e 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

st
at

ut
or

y 
se

rv
ic

es
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 r
ad

io
 a

id
s.

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d
 Y

o
un

g
 P

eo
p

le
 –

 S
o

ci
al

 W
o

rk
 U

ni
t

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 s

ur
ro

un
ds

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 to
 c

ha
ng

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
’s

 p
la

ce
m

en
t t

o
re

tu
rn

 h
om

e 
an

d 
th

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
’s

 w
is

he
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

pl
ac

em
en

t c
ha

ng
e 

to
be

 ‘f
ro

ze
n’

 u
nt

il 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

 re
sp

on
de

d 
to

. 
Le

ar
ni

ng
:

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

is
 th

e 
ke

y 
to

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 w

or
ki

ng
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

p
w

ith
 e

ve
ry

on
e,

 a
nd

 re
gu

la
r 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

rs
on

 w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
be

ne
fic

ia
l i

n 
th

is
 m

at
te

r. 
To

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 w
or

k 
is

co
m

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
 a

ll 
pa

rt
ie

s 
is

 e
ss

en
tia

l i
n 

or
de

r 
to

 b
et

te
r 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
pe

rs
pe

ct
iv

es
 o

f t
he

 s
itu

at
io

n 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

as
si

st
in

g,
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
an

d 
en

ab
lin

g
th

e 
pl

an
 to

 b
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 a

nd
 b

ei
ng

 a
bl

e 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

de
si

re
d 

ou
tc

om
e

of
 a

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l r

eh
ab

ilit
at

io
n 

ho
m

e 
fo

r 
yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
.

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d
 Y

o
un

g
 P

eo
p

le
 –

 
R

es
id

en
ti

al
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
H

o
m

e
A

 m
em

be
r 

of
 s

ta
ff 

al
lo

w
ed

 a
 y

ou
ng

 p
er

so
n 

to
 b

or
ro

w
 a

no
th

er
yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
’s

 b
ik

e 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 n
ev

er
 re

tu
rn

ed
. L

ea
rn

in
g

:S
ta

ff
no

w
 h

av
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

n 
In

ve
nt

or
y 

is
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 fo
r 

al
l y

ou
ng

pe
op

le
. L

ar
ge

 it
em

s 
w

ill 
be

 la
be

lle
d 

an
d 

se
cu

re
d 

in
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e
co

nt
ai

nm
en

t a
w

ay
 fr

om
 th

e 
ite

m
s 

be
lo

ng
in

g 
to

 th
e 

H
om

e.

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d
 Y

o
un

g
 P

eo
p

le
 –

 
Le

av
in

g
 C

ar
e/

Tr
an

si
ti

o
ns

 T
ea

m
Yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
 u

nh
ap

py
 w

ith
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l c

ha
ng

e 
of

pl
ac

em
en

t a
nd

 w
is

he
s 

th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e
to

 b
e 

lo
ok

ed
 a

t i
n 

te
rm

s 
of

 h
im

 b
ei

ng
 a

bl
e 

to
 re

m
ai

n 
in

 h
is

cu
rr

en
t p

la
ce

m
en

t w
he

re
 h

e 
ha

s 
m

ad
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

ro
gr

es
s

in
 h

is
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 a
nd

 a
tt

itu
de

. L
ea

rn
in

g
:T

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 w
e

ar
e 

ha
pp

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f c
ar

e 
th

er
e 

w
ill 

be
 6

 w
ee

kl
y 

ca
re

pl
an

ni
ng

 m
ee

tin
gs

 in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 p

la
ce

m
en

t
of

fe
rs

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
ab

ilit
y 

to
 k

ee
p 

yo
un

g 
pe

rs
on

 s
af

e 
w

ill 
be

m
on

ito
re

d 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

ed
. Y

ou
ng

 p
er

so
n 

w
ill 

al
so

 b
e 

in
vi

te
d

to
 a

tt
en

d 
th

es
e 

m
ee

tin
gs

.



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 13 of 21 

44% 
Female 

56% Male 
Female

Male

Appendix 4 

 

Equalities data for stage 1 complaints – July 2015 – September 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Service Group Female Male 

 Governance 2 7 

 Finance 6 6 

 City Assets 6 6 

 City Environment  11 23 

 Customer Services  1 1 

 Older People  5 1 

 Corporate     2 0 

 City Economy  2 2 

 Transformation  1 0 

 Total 36 46 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 14 of 21 

Appendix 5 

 

Complaint Ward Data Quarter 2 – July - September 2015 

 

Key 

 

G=Gender 

E=Ethnicity 

D=Disability 

A=Age 

 

Ward Number of 

complaints 

received 

Complaint 

upheld 

Equalities 

Data 

Nature of complaint 

Bilston East 2 Yes G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

incorrect information on 

the open register 

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding tree 

cutting  

 

Bilston North  1 No G=Female 

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

refuse officer conduct  

 

Blakenhall 5 No G=Female 

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

disposal of community 

assembly hall  

 

  No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding lost 

property at library  

 

  No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding tree 

overhanging garden  

 

  No G=Female 

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

court summons  

 

  No G=Male 

E=British 

D= 

A=45-PA 

Complaint regarding tree 

blocking light not being 

cut back 

 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 15 of 21 

Bushbury 

North  

5 No G=Female 

E=White/British 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

lack of action to request  

 

  No G=Female  

E=White/British 

D=Yes 

A=25-44 

Complaint regarding 

officer conduct   

 

  No G=Male 

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

Cemetery grass cutting 

and maintenance  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding fair  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

traffic signs & closure of 

disabled bays in 

Wolverhampton  

 

Bushbury 

South and Low 

Hill 

3 No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

maladministration  

 

  No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding tree 

inspection  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

incorrect advice 

provided by officers to 

tenant  

 

East Park 3 No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

conduct of council tax 

officer  

 

  No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Compliant regarding 

benefits and tax  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding rent 

letter and call times  

 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 16 of 21 

Ettingshall  9 No G=Female   

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

leisure centre reception 

staff  

 

  No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

cancellation of leisure 

membership 

 

  No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

customer service  

 

  No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

homeless application  

 

  No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding non 

receipt of housing 

benefit 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

refuse site  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding flag 

stone in market  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

recycling bin not being 

emptied and officer 

conduct  

 

  No G=Male 

E=British 

D= 

A=16-24 

Complaint regarding 

refuse collection  

 

Fallings Park  2 No 

 

G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

recycling  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

lack of support with 

parking issues  

 

  



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 17 of 21 

Graiseley 2 No G=Female  

E=Asian/Indian 

D=No 

A=25-44 

Complaint regarding 

council tax demand  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

lack of warden control 

on Park  

 

 

Heath Town 4 No G=Female  

E=British 

D=No  

A=45-PA 

Complaint regarding 

food waste collection  

 

  Yes G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

failure to empty green 

bin  

 

  No G=Male  

E=Asian/Indian 

D=Yes 

A= 

Complaint regarding  

electoral officer  

 

  No G=Male  

E=British 

D=No  

A=16-24 

Complaint regarding 

registration of marriage  

 

Merry Hill 2 No G=Female  

E=British 

D=Yes 

A=PA-74 

Complaint regarding 

facilities at leisure centre  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

inflatable world at park  

 

Oxley  4 No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

open register  

 

  No G=Male  

E=British  

D=No 

A=45-PA 

Complaint regarding 

election letters  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding no 

response to service 

request   

 

  



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 18 of 21 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

parking enforcement  

 

Park  4 No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

school transport 

decision  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

lack of service  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

leisure staff customer 

services  

 

  Yes G=Male  

E=Asian/Indian 

D=No 

A=45-PA 

Complaint regarding 

refuse collection/bin 

contamination  

 

Penn  1 Yes G=Female  

E=White/British 

D=No  

A=45-PA 

Complaint regarding 

inconsistent responses 

during project  

 

Spring Vale 1 No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding tree 

roots  

 

St Peter’s  4 No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

officer conduct in library  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding bus 

lane   

 

  No G=Male  

E=Asian/Indian 

D=no  

A=25-44 

Complaint regarding 

council tax information  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding FOI 

department  

 

Tettenhall 

Regis  

2 No G=Male  

E= 

Complaint regarding 

library services 



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 19 of 21 

D= 

A= 

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

refuse collection  

 

Tettenhall 

Wightwick 

3 No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

library procedure  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding  

leisure centre swimming 

lessons  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

grass cutting  

 

Wednesfield 

North 

6 No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

library staff  

 

  No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

new bin request  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

customer service re: 

refuse  

 

  No G=Male  

E=British  

D=Yes 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

travellers  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding tree 

being overgrown unsafe 

and blocking light  

 

  Yes G=Female 

E= 

D= 

A=PA-74 

Complaint regarding 

refuse officer conduct  

 

Wednesfield 

South  

1 No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

lack of response from 

council tax  



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 20 of 21 

Email 

Complaint 

9 No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

inflatable world at park 

 

  No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

library staff  

 

  No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

officer conduct during 

house inspection 

 

  No G=Female  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

Wolverhampton Show  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

leisure centre reception 

staff  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

council tax service  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

councils policy on 

leisure membership  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

staff member  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding tree 

causing damage   

 

Outside area  9 No G=Female 

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

quality of service and  

unpaid fees  

 

  Yes 

 

G=Female  

E=White/British 

D=No  

A=45-PA 

Complaint regarding 

Registrars reception  

 

  



This report is PUBLIC [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

Report Pages 
Page 21 of 21 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

cemetery 

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

council tax court 

summons  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

lack of action from 

transportation  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

lack of response from 

council tax 

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

outstanding council tax 

due to probate  

 

  No G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

selective housing 

licence  

 

  Yes G=Male  

E= 

D= 

A= 

Complaint regarding 

leisure centre 

membership policy  

 

Total  82 7   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



S
ta

ge
 1

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
us

to
m

er
 F

ee
d

b
ac

k
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 1

: Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 (A

p
ri

l -
 J

un
e 

20
15

)

Q
2

13

82
9%

91
%

D
A

Y
S

S
ta

ge
 1

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
us

to
m

er
 F

ee
d

b
ac

k

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

re
ce

iv
ed

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 w

he
re

 t
he

C
o

un
ci

l i
s 

at
 f

au
lt

 (u
ph

el
d)

R
es

p
o

ns
e

ti
m

es
ca

le
s

A
ve

ra
g

e 
co

m
p

la
in

t
re

sp
o

ns
e 

ti
m

e
S

ta
g

e 
1 

co
m

p
la

in
ts

ca
m

p
ar

is
o

n 
fo

r 
q

ua
rt

er
 2

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 w

he
re

 t
he

C
o

un
ci

l i
s 

no
t 

at
 f

au
lt

20
14

/1
5

12
7

20
15

/1
6

82

Is
su

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tifi
ed

 fr
om

 u
ph

el
d 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

an
d

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ad

dr
es

se
d;

 re
m

ed
ie

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
th

e 
cu

st
om

er
s 

by
 a

po
lo

gi
si

ng
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

in
g 

th
em

 o
f t

he
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e.

N
ot

re
sp

on
de

d 
to

w
ith

in
tim

es
ca

le
s

0%
R

es
po

nd
ed

 to
 

w
ith

in
 ti

m
es

ca
le

s
(T

ar
ge

t: 
95

%
)

10
0%

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
: Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 (J
ul

y 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

5)

du
e 

to
 s

er
vi

ce
 g

ro
up

s 
be

in
g

m
or

e 
pr

o-
ac

tiv
e 

in
 re

so
lv

in
g

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

at
 s

er
vi

ce
 le

ve
l.

35
%

C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

do
w

n 
by



Civic Hall and Outdoor Events

Facilities Management

Housing Support

Parking Services

Revenues and Benefits

Waste Management 

Libraries

Bereavement Services

Private Sector Housing

Parks

Elections

Market Service

Public Realm Services

Registrars

Corporate Landlord

Leisure Centres 

Transportation

Regulatory Services

Legal Services

FOI and Data Protection

Pupil and Student Services

Customer Services

0510152025

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
: Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 (A
p

ri
l -

 J
un

e 
20

15
)

Q
2

S
ta

ge
 1

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
us

to
m

er
 F

ee
d

b
ac

k

S
ta

g
e 

1 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d

B
re

ak
do

w
n 

by
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
a

S
ta

g
e 

1 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
 c

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
B

re
ak

do
w

n 
by

 q
ua

rt
er

S
ta

g
e 

1 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
B

re
ak

do
w

n 
by

 d
ire

ct
or

at
e

C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

w
er

e 
no

t u
ph

el
d 

un
le

ss
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
in

di
ca

te
d.

02040608010
0

12
0

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
: Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 (J
ul

y 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

5)

10
9

10
5

12
7

82

12
2

10
1

20
14

/1
5

2015/16

20
15

/1
6

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

4

1

1

1

13

12

6

2

3

1

4

1

9

3

1

6

5

2

2

1

1

3

(3) Upheld

(1) Upheld

(1) Upheld

(1) Upheld

(1) Upheld

P
la

ce

P
eo

p
le

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

27

6

49



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
: Q

ua
rt

er
 1

 (A
p

ri
l -

 J
un

e 
20

15
)

Q
2

S
ta

ge
 2

 -
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

us
to

m
er

Fe
ed

b
ac

k,
 L

G
O

 E
nq

ui
ri

es
&

 W
ar

d 
D

at
a

S
ta

g
e 

2 
co

m
p

la
in

ts
ca

m
p

ar
is

o
n 

fo
r 

q
ua

rt
er

 2

LG
O

 e
nq

ui
ri

es
 f

o
r 

q
ua

rt
er

 2

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d

 b
y 

w
ar

d

o
f 

w
hi

ch
U

p
he

ld
(C

ou
nc

il 
at

 fa
ul

t)

20
14

/1
5

6

20
15

/1
6

11

20
14

/1
5

19

20
15

/1
6

2

0
P

ar
t 

U
p

he
ld

(C
ou

nc
il 

pa
rt

ly
 

at
 fa

ul
t)

0
N

o
t 

U
p

he
ld

(C
ou

nc
il 

no
t a

t f
au

lt)

11

Bilston East 

Bilston North 

Blakenhall

Bushbury North 

Bushbury S. & Low Hill

East Park 

Ettingshall 

Fallings Park 

Graiseley 

Heath Town

Merry Hill 

Oxley 

Park 

Penn 

Spring Vale 

St Peters 

Tettenhall Regis

Tettenhall Wightwick

Wednesfield North

Wednesfield South 

No address given (Email)

Out of area

2

1

5

5

3

3

9

2

2

4

2

4

4

1

1

4

2

3

6

1

9

9

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 7
: Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 (J
ul

y 
- 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

5)

89
%

 d
ec

re
as

e 
fo

r
20

15
/1

6 
Q

2 
co

m
pa

re
d

to
 2

01
4/

15
 Q

2 
-

C
us

to
m

er
 F

ee
db

ac
k

Te
am

 h
as

 re
ce

iv
ed

 m
or

e
in

iti
al

 L
G

O
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t
en

qu
iri

es
 fo

r 
Q

2 
(6

) t
ha

n
fu

ll 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 (2
).



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 2 of 12 

 

 Agenda Item No:  9 

 

Scrutiny Board 
15 December 2015 
 

  
Report title Scrutiny Work Programme 2015/16 
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Councillor Paul Sweet 
Governance 

Wards affected All 

Accountable director Kevin O’Keefe, Governance 

Originating service Democracy 

Accountable employee(s) Adam Hadley 

Tel 

Email 

Group Manager - Democracy 

01902 555043 

Adam.Hadley@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Scrutiny Board  8 September 2015 

3 November 2015 

 

Recommendation(s) for action or decision: 

 

The Scrutiny Board is recommended to: 

 

(1) Review and develop the Scrutiny Board Work Programme 2015-16 to take account 

of emerging issues and councillor suggestions 

 

(2) To allocate any cross cutting pieces of work 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 3 of 12 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 To update and agree the Scrutiny work programme for 2015-16. 

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 The remit of the Scrutiny Board was agreed by Annual Council 15 May 2013.  This remit 

included the specific responsibility to oversee the operation of the call-in mechanisms 

and to oversee the work programmes of Scrutiny Panels to avoid duplication of work and 

to ensure coherence of approach to cross-cutting policy themes.  The Board may 

determine that one named Panel shall take lead responsibility for a cross-cutting policy 

theme or may determine that the work be shared between one or more panels. 

 

3.0 Work Programme Planning 

 

3.1  The work programme (Appendix 1) is a working document which is reviewed at each 

agenda planning meeting to determine the timeliness and relevance of items for scrutiny.  

Any member can also ask for an item to be considered by Scrutiny.  At each Scrutiny 

Board an updated work programme will be presented for discussion and agreement.     

 

3.2 New items for consideration are highlighted in blue.  

 

4.0 Financial implications 

 

4.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in this report. 

Within Governance, there is a scrutiny budget to support the investigation of issues 

highlighted by councillors through the work programmes of the panels and the reviews 

and inquiries.  

 

[GE/01112015/M] 

 

5.0 Legal implications 

 

5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.  

 

[RB/01122015/P] 

 

6.0 Equalities implications 

 

6.1 There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.  

 

7.0 Environmental implications 

 

7.1 There are no direct environmental implications arising from this report.  

 

  



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 4 of 12 

 

8.0 Human resources implications 

 

8.1 There are no direct HR implications arising from this report.  

 
9.0 Corporate landlord implications 

9.1 There are no direct corporate landlord implications arising from this report.  

 

10.0 Schedule of background papers 

 

10.1 Report to Scrutiny Board agreeing the new method of agreeing the scrutiny work 

programme – 15 April 2014 

 

  

  



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 5 of 12 

 

Scrutiny work programme  

 

Scrutiny Reviews 2015-16 

 

 Child Sexual Exploitation 

 

The Scrutiny Review Group 23.11.15 to consider evidence from  Cabinet Member for 

Education. The review have two final evidence sessions planned: 

 30.11.15 

 10.12.15 

Cllr Jaspal attended a CSE conference in London and also a review meeting in 

Birmingham to consider progress made in implementing recommendations from their 

review.   

The review meeting on 10.12.15 will consider evidence from West Midlands Police  and 

also agree draft findings  and recommendations.  

Meetings with representatives of the following organisations have been arranged: 

 Wolverhampton CCG 

 Independent School Representative on Wolverhampton Safeguarding Children Board 

 

 Electoral Registration and Participation 

 

The Scrutiny Review Group last met on 16 November 2015 to hear evidence from the 

Ethnic Minority Council and note the electoral participation and registration survey asking 

individuals their views.  

The next meeting has been scheduled for 9 December, subject to confirmation, to hear 

from Wolverhampton Homes engagement group and the YMCA, among others. A final 

meeting will be scheduled for the New Year to consider all evidence received and 

collated to date and review possible recommendations.  

The findings of the review will inform future work on increasing registration and 

participation and identify barriers for the council to address. 

 

 City of Wolverhampton Council Volunteering Offer 

 

The Scrutiny Review Group has held four meetings to gather evidence and carry out site 

visits to voluntary organisations.  At the last meeting 18 November 2015 Councillors 

reviewed the evidence gathered at the previous meetings.  The Review Group  

considered the findings from the evidence table in a round table discussion with 

representatives from Unison and the Wolverhampton Voluntary Sector Council 

(WVSC),Volunteer Centre.   The Review Group identified their conclusions based on the 

evidence.  At the next meeting 9 December 2015 the conclusions will be reported and 

recommendations to Cabinet will be agreed.   

The draft report will be presented to the final meeting of the Review Group on 21 January 

2016 and by Cabinet (23 March 2016).  The findings of the review group will inform the 

City of Wolverhampton Council Volunteering Offer and the wider Wolverhampton 

Volunteering Strategy which will be considered by Cabinet on 16 May 2016.  

 

 



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 6 of 12 

 

Work programme  

  

Scrutiny Board 

 

Date Work items 

30 June 2015  The Corporate Plan and Wolverhampton Way 

 The ICT and Digital Strategy 

 Work programme 

21 July 2015  Corporate Performance Report - Quarter 4 2014/15 

 Complaints Report - Quarter 4 2014/15 

 Information Governance Performance Report – Quarter 

4 2014/15 

8 Sept 2015  Tracking and monitoring of reviews  

- Private Rented Sector Housing (DB) 

- Prevent (EPS) 

- First Impressions of the City 

 Complaints Report - Quarter 1 2015/16 

 Work programme 

3  Nov 2015  Information Governance Performance Report – Quarter 
1 2015/16  

 Welfare Reform, Unclaimed Benefits (DB) 

 Work programme 

15 Dec 2015  Draft Budget 2016/17  

 Corporate Performance Report – Quarter 1 and 2 
2015/16 

 Information Governance Performance Report – Quarter 

2 2015/16  

 Complaints Report - Quarter 2 2015/16 

 Work programme 

19 Jan 2016  Task and finish report from Regulatory Services 
(Travellers and Gypsies) 

 Tracking and monitoring of reviews 
- Employability and Skills  

 Review of Senior Officers role in C3 programme 

 Work programme 

1 March 2016  Corporate Performance Report - Quarter 3 2015/16 

 Complaints Report - Quarter 3 2015/16 

 Tracking and monitoring of reviews 

- Infant Mortality (EPS) 

- Channel Shift (LG) 

 Information Governance Performance Report – Quarter 
3 2015/16 

 Work programme 

26 April 2016  Annual report 

 Work programme 



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 7 of 12 

 

Adults and safer City  

Date Work items 

 

14 July 2015  Preparing for the Prevent Duty 

 Better Care technology and strengthening support at home 

(Pre-decision scrutiny) 

22 Sept 2015 Safeguarding people in vulnerable situations  

 Reducing Gang Harm Strategy  

 The Violence Against Women & Girls Strategy  

 Targeted youth support 

 Youth Council safety and young people as victims of crime 

 Outcome of consultation on the future of adults short breaks 
services and Oxley Plus day service  - Pre-decision scrutiny 

10 Nov 2015 Pre-decision Scrutiny  
Better Care technology and strengthening support at home 
(Cabinet 11 Nov 2015) 

24 Nov 2015 Draft budget 2016/17 
Outcome on the consultation to move Duke Sreet to the 
Healthy Living Centre 

Jan 2016 Visit to site Assistive technologies  

26 Jan 2016 Promoting independence for people with disabilities and 
for  older people 

 Mental health (early intervention) 

 Assistive technologies  

 Aids and adaptations (July 2015) 

 Quality assurance process/data (re: contract / compliance) 

 West Midlands Police Update : Local Policing Plan 2015-16 

progress report and Draft Youth Strategy consultation  

Joint Council  

22 March 2016 Enabling communities to support themselves 

 Community resilience 

 Crime reduction, community safety and drugs strategy  

 Wolverhampton Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 

2014/15 

 Wolverhampton Voluntary Sector Compact 

 
Anti-Social Behavioural Team -  update on Public Space Protection Order in addressing anti-
social behaviour. March? 



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 8 of 12 

 

Children, young people and families  

 

Date Work items 

 

08 July 2015  Primary School Organisation Strategy 2015-2018 

 Role of the local authority in raising school standards of 
attainment 

 Wolverhampton Children,Young People and Families Plan 
2015-2025 

09 Sept 2015  Corporate Parenting, Children in Care Council and the role 

of Councillors 

 Wolverhampton Youth Zone  

28 Sept 2015  pre-decision scrutiny:  
  

 Proposed new fostering fees and allowances 
 

25 Nov 2015  Draft Budget 2016/17 

 Children’s services re-design 

20 Jan 2016  Wolverhampton Safeguarding Board Annual Report 
2014/15  

 CAMHS 
 

13 April 2016  Academy Partnership Protocol 

 Secondary School Standards: 
 

• Secondary school end of KS4 and KS5 validated 
results 

• Secondary school Ofsted outcomes and current LA 
categorisation  

• Next steps to make further improvements 
 

 Secondary School 10 year strategic plan - draft 
 

 

  



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 9 of 12 

 

Confident Capable Council  

 

Date Work items 

 

22 July 2015  Future Money - making the most efficient use of financial 

resources 

 Future People - creating a skilled, flexible workforce 

07 Oct 2015  Future Money - making the most efficient use of financial 

resources 

 Future People -  Employee Volunteering Scheme – progress 

report 

 

02 Dec 2015  Future Money - Draft Budget 2016-17  

 Future Practice - ensuring we have fit for purpose, robust 

and effective governance  

  

03 Feb 2016  Future Space - developing the right accommodation to 

deliver the Council’s services  

 Future Money - making the most efficient use of financial 

resources 

 Future Money : Agresso Performance 

 

20 April 2016  Future Customer – improving customer service  

 Future Works - ensuring we have the right IT infrastructure 

and business processes 

 Future Money - making the most efficient use of financial 

resources 

 Future People - Employee Volunteering Scheme – progress 

report 

 

 

 

  



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 10 of 12 

 

Health Scrutiny Panel 

 

Date Work items 

16 July 2015  End of Life Strategy Report – RWNHS Trust 

 Musculoskeletal Consultation Report 

24 Sept 2015  Francis update - Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust 

 Francis update - BCPFT  

 Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust Jeremy Vanes, 

Chairman CQC Inspection Report update 

26 Nov 2015  Draft Budget 2016/17 

 Consultation – Public Health Contracting of services  

 Review of the work programme items for the remainder of 
the municipal year 

 CQC Inspection BCPFT (16.11.2015) update 

 A health workforce for the future – University of 

Wolverhampton 

  Francis report update (following health and wellbeing) – 
CCG 

 The Future of Mental Health Services 

14 Jan 2016  Infant mortality CCG performance (Cabinet 

recommendation from 22nd July) 

  Smoking and Alcohol in pregnant mothers (Public Health) 

 Update on RWT CQC Inspection  

 The Future of Mental Health Services Update 

Feb 2016  Visit to UTC – University of Wolverhampton 

25 Feb 2016  BCPFT - CAMHS (John Campbell) 

 Eating disorders 

 Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust Jeremy Vanes, 
Chairman A&E site opening and update 

 Healthy Lifestyles Service – In house & external delivery 
models option appraisals  

 Children 5-19 (0-19) Healthy Children Programme  

07 April 2016  Choose well campaign – NHS ENGLAND 

 Bed sores and ulcers in elderly  - NHS TRUST 

 ‘Home as a hub’ – CCG 

 

Other topics for consideration 

 GP referral pathways and GP performance   

 Communications – use of social media and patient surveys 

 Quality Accounts 

Training session 

 Substantial Variations 



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 11 of 12 

 

Stronger City economy  

 

Date Work items 

28 July 2015 External funding and corporate priorities 

 Overview of External funding  

 Corporate priorities and work programme 

24 Sept 2015 Attracting inward investment  

 Development and inward investment. 

 Promoting inward investment and attracting business and 

enterprise within the City offer. Who/what are the supply chain 

have we got the skills and talent to make the City attractive 

 Case study - Wiggle  

 Statistical data, trend analysis on attracting inward investment 

for the City 

6 Oct 2015 Visitor Economy  

1) Understanding our key markets: where do they come from and 

what do they want? 

2) Wolverhampton’s offer – Video  

3) Improving our offer 

4) Case study – The Grand Theatre  

5) Visitor week briefing  

01 Dec 2015 Budget and Employment and Skills commission report  

 Budget  

 Employment and Skill Commission report 

19 Jan 2016 Aim for the Black Country  
Task and Finish group 

26 Jan 2016 Potential for site visit in preparation for the next session to 
see how and who is getting it right 

 The Custard factory visit with University partners 

09 Feb 2016 Business and Enterprise 

 New model for business support, including companies that are 
expanding and support for innovation 

 Case study – Research and development , world class 
university, excellent quality of life, high levels of technology  

 Witness: representative from the University 

 Statistical data, trend analysis for the City on business and 
enterprise  

19 April 2016 The City Economy 

 Evaluation of the year of scrutiny for a stronger City economy  

 What had changed, what does the future City economy look 
like?  

 Witness - Aspiration and innovation 

 Case study – Best practice and next steps  

 

 



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Report Pages 
Page 12 of 12 

 

Vibrant and sustainable City  

 

 

Date Work items 

 

23 July 2015  'Rent with confidence' campaign 

 Waste management and minimisation 

3 September 

2015  

 West Midlands Strategic Transport Plan 

 

01 Oct 2015  Review of Commercial Property Portfolio 

 Wolverhampton Active Travel Strategy 

 Sustainability Implementation Plan monitoring report 

2014/15 

 

03 Dec 2015  Draft Budget 2016/17 
 

11 Feb 2016  City Centre Regulation of street trading, displays 

 Food Waste Strategy 

14 April 2016  Residents parking 

 Keeping the City clean 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting (3 November 2015)
	5 Draft Budget 2016/17
	6 Corporate Performance Report - Quarter Two 2015/16
	7 Information Governance Performance Report - Quarter 2 2015/16
	8 Quarter 2 Corporate, Social Care and Public Health Complaints Report
	9 Work Programme

